# Amador County General Plan

California Environmental Quality Act Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations

# **Table of Contents**

1	Introduction		
	1.1	Overview	1
	1.2	Project Description	
	1.3	Project Objectives	
	1.4	Record of Proceedings	
	1.5	Custodian and Location of Records	
	1.6	Basis for Board Findings	
	1.7	Incorporation by Reference.	
	1.8	General Findings	
2	Impacts Determined not to be Significant		
	2.1	Agricultural Resources	8
	2.2	Air Quality	
	2.3	Biological Resources	
	2.4	Geology, Soils, Mineral Resources, and Paleontological Resources	
	2.5	Hazards and Hazardous Materials	
	2.6	Hydrology and Water Quality	
	2.7	Land Use Planning	
	2.8	Population and Housing	
	2.9	Public Services and Utilities	
	2.10	Transportation	
	2.10	Energy	
3		ets that Can Be Mitigated to a Level of Insignificance	
3	-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	3.1	Aesthetics	
	3.2	Air Quality	
	3.3	Biological Resources	
	3.4	Cultural Resources	
	3.5	Geology, Soils, Mineral Resources, and Paleontological Resources	
	3.6	Hazards and Hazardous Materials	
	3.7	Hydrology and Water Quality	
	3.8	Noise	
	3.9	Public Services and Utilities	34
4	Significant and Unavoidable Impacts		
	4.1	Aesthetics	
	4.2	Agricultural and Forest Resources	
	4.3	Air Quality	43
	4.4	Biological Resources	47
	4.5	Greenhouse Gas Emissions	
	4.6	Hazards and Hazardous Materials	53
	4.7	Hydrology and Water Quality	54
	4.8	Noise	
	4.9	Population and Housing	60
	4.10	Public Services and Utilities	61
	4.11	Transportation	64

5	Cumulative Impacts		69
	5.1	Impact 6-1 Cumulative Aesthetic Impacts	69
	5.2	Impact 6-2 Cumulative Agricultural and Forest Resources Impacts	
	5.3	Impact 6-3 Cumulative Air Quality Impacts	
	5.4	Impact 6-4 Cumulative Biological Resources Impacts	71
	5.5	Impact 6-5 Cumulative Cultural Resources Impacts	72
	5.6	Impact 6-6 Cumulative Geology, Soils, Minerals, and Paleontological Resources Impacts	73
	5.7	Impact 6-7 Cumulative Greenhouse Gas Emissions Impacts	73
	5.8	Impact 6-8 Cumulative Hazards and Hazardous Materials Impacts	74
	5.9	Impact 6-9 Cumulative Hydrology and Water Quality Impacts	75
	5.10	Impact 6-10 Cumulative Land Use and Planning Impacts	76
	5.11	Impact 6-11 Cumulative Noise Impacts	76
	5.12	Impact 6-12 Cumulative Population and Housing Impacts	77
	5.13	Impact 6-13 Cumulative Public Services and Utilities Impacts	78
	5.14	Impact 6-14 Cumulative Transportation Impacts	79
6	Project Alternatives		80
	6.1	Alternative 1 – No Project/Existing General Plan	81
	6.2	Alternative 2 – City- and Community-Center Growth	85
	6.3	Alternative 3 – Restricted Growth	
7	Findi	ng Regarding Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program	94
8	Statement of Overriding Considerations		94
	8.1	The General Plan Reflects Current Trends, Changes in the Regulatory Environment, and Emerging Opportunities	05
	8.2	Framework for Achieving the Community's Goals	
	8.3	Long-Range Guide for Growth and Conservation	
	8.4	Community Objectives	
	8.5	Addressing Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions	
	8.6	Improving Fiscal Sustainability	
	0.0	improving i isom sustamatinty	100

### 1 Introduction

#### 1.1 Overview

#### 1.1.1 CEQA PROCESS

These findings are made pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Pub. Res. Code §21000 et seq., "CEQA") and the CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code Regs. Title 14, §15000 et seq.) by the Amador County Board of Supervisors (Board) as the lead agency decision-making body for the Amador County General Plan ("General Plan" or "project.") These findings pertain to Environmental Impact Report ("EIR") 2009072089.

To assist the County in determining the focus and scope of analysis for the EIR, the County circulated a Notice of Preparation (NOP) dated July 29, 2009 to government agencies, special service districts, organizations, and individuals with an interest in or jurisdiction over the project. The NOP review period starting on July 30, 2009 and extending until August 31, 2009. This step ensured early consultation on the scope of the EIR. The County held two public scoping meetings for the project on August 13, 2009 to receive comments on the NOP. The County also conducted public outreach on various formats and settings to support the Draft General Plan and EIR and received substantial email input from citizens and agencies. The Draft General Plan EIR was released on October 31, 2014 for review by public agencies, organizations, and members of the public. Two joint public meetings of the Board and Planning Commission were held on the Draft EIR and Draft General Plan on December 2, 2014 and January 20, 2015. Comments on the Draft EIR were accepted throughout the meeting and were recorded. All comments as to the adequacy of the Draft EIR received by 5:00 p.m. on January 30, 2015, were responded to by the County in writing.

The Final EIR contains the Draft EIR, comments received on the Draft EIR, written responses to the significant environmental issues raised in those comments, revisions to the text of the Draft EIR reflecting changes made in response to comments and other information, along with other minor changes to the text of the Draft EIR.

Amador County published the Final EIR on June 21, 2016. The County provided written responses to all public agencies that commented on the Draft EIR on June 22, 2016, which is at least 10 days prior to certifying the EIR.

After the Final EIR was published, information was added to the Final EIR, consisting of the Final EIR Errata dated September 21, 2016 and Appendix H (Energy Impacts), that clarifies, amplifies, and/or makes insignificant modifications to the Final EIR. The County held a public hearing on October 4, 2016 (To Be Determined), to consider certification of the Final EIR.

#### 1.1.2 Type of EIR

The EIR for the General Plan is a Program EIR, which CEQA Guidelines Section 15168(a) defines as an EIR that may be prepared on a series of actions that can be characterized as one large project and are related (1) geographically; (2) as logical parts in the chain of contemplated actions; (3) in connection with the issuance of rules, regulations, plans, or other general criteria to govern the conduct of a continuing

program; or (4) as individual activities carried out under the same authorizing statutory or regulatory authority and having generally similar environmental impacts that can be mitigated in similar ways.

A Program EIR can provide a comprehensive environmental review for a program of related projects, such as the General Plan, that are to be developed over a long period of time. This allows lead agencies to consider program-wide alternatives and cumulative impacts consistently, and avoids unnecessary repetition of analysis in subsequent project-specific reviews (see CEQA Guidelines Section 15168(b)).

The degree of specificity in an EIR corresponds to the degree of specificity of the underlying activity being evaluated (CEQA Guidelines Section 15146). The General Plan EIR analyzes impacts of the General Plan at the same level of detail as the General Plan. This EIR provides a foundation for second-tier CEQA documents for subsequent projects, but does not analyze the project-specific impacts of individual projects. Project-specific and site-specific details of subsequent projects will vary widely. When a first-tier Program EIR is prepared, "leaving project-specific details to subsequent EIRs when specific projects are considered" is a proper approach to CEQA tiering (In re Bay Delta [2008] 43 Cal. 4th 1143, 1174).

#### 1.1.3 FINDINGS REQUIREMENT

CEQA provides that "public agencies Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081 and 14 California Code of Regulations Section15091, no public agency shall approve or carry out a project for which an EIR has been certified which identifies one or more significant effects on the environment that would occur if the project is approved or carried out unless the public agency makes one or more of the following findings with respect to each significant impact:

- 1. "[c]hanges or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect as identified in the final EIR,"
- 2. "[s]uch changes or alterations are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another public agency and not the agency making the finding [and] [s]uch changes have been adopted by such other agency or can and should be adopted by such other agency," or
- 3. "[s]pecific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the final EIR".

CEQA defines "feasible" to mean "capable of being accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable period of time, taking into account economic, legal, environmental, social and technological factors" (Public Resources Code Section 21061.1; CEQA Guidelines, 14 California Code of Regulations Section 15364). The concept of feasibility also encompasses whether a particular alternative or mitigation measure promotes the Project's underlying goals and objectives, and whether an alternative or mitigation measure is impractical or undesirable from a policy standpoint. See *City of Del Mar v. City of San Diego* (1982) 133 Cal.App.3d 410; *California Native Plant Society v. City of Santa Cruz* (2009) 177 Cal.App.4th 957.

Because the General Plan EIR identified significant effects that may occur as a result of the project, and in accordance with the provisions of CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines, the Board hereby adopts these CEQA Findings of Fact. For each of the significant effects identified, as set forth in greater detail in these Findings below, the Board makes one or more findings required under Public Resources Code Section 21081. Those findings are presented below, along with a presentation of facts in support of the findings. The Board certifies these findings are based on full appraisal of all viewpoints, including all comments

received up to the date of adoption of these findings, concerning the environmental issues identified and discussed. .

Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines does not require specific findings to address environmental effects that an EIR identifies as having "no impact" or a "less than significant" impact. Nevertheless, these Findings fully account for all resource areas, including resource areas that were identified in the EIR to have either no impact or a less than significant impact on the environment.

#### 1.2 Project Description

The General Plan, as described below and in EIR Chapter 3, establishes a planning framework and policies through the year 2030 and will replace the existing General Plan.

#### 1.2.1 PROJECT LOCATION

Amador County's planning area encompasses the land outside city limits within the County's boundaries (that is, excluding the land within the city limits of Amador City, Ione, Jackson, Plymouth, and Sutter Creek). Goals and policies, as well as land use and circulation plans set forth and quantified in the General Plan, address the planning area, which is the "project site" as defined by CEQA. Since the NOP was published in 2009, there have been expansions of city limits, resulting in some areas being removed from the former planning area; however, EIR analyses were conducted for the current jurisdiction of the County.

#### 1.2.2 PROJECT CHARACTERISTICS

Each California city and county is required to prepare a general plan to provide comprehensive, long-term guidance "for the physical development of the county or city, and any land outside its boundaries which in the planning agency's judgment bears relation to its planning" (see Government Code Section 65300). The Amador County General Plan consists of nine elements, or chapters, that together meet state requirements for a general plan. These elements are: 1) land use, 2) circulation, 3) economic development, 4) conservation, 5) open space, 6) governance, 7) safety, 8) noise, and 9) housing. The General Plan also includes an introduction chapter and a glossary. Due to statutory requirements, the Housing Element was updated on a different timeline during the preparation of the General Plan, and most recently updated again in December 2015 as part of a joint effort with the five cities. The Housing Element was subject to its own CEQA review, and will be incorporated into the rest of the General Plan, once the General Plan is adopted. Impacts of implementing the Housing Element therefore, are not considered in the General Plan EIR or these findings.

The General Plan represents the County's policy for determining the appropriate physical development and character of Amador County, and designates the location of different land use categories. The environmental impact analysis in the EIR is based on the change between existing conditions and likely development in accordance with the General Plan by 2030, with a separate discussion of the impacts of maximum theoretical buildout (Chapter 4.15).

The General Plan assumes a population of 25,241 in the unincorporated area of the County in 2030, based on Department of Finance projections for the County as a whole, 13,364 dwelling units, 17,586 local jobs, and approximately 6.1 million square feet of non-residential development at buildout of the Land Use Designations depicted in the County's Land Use Diagram (General Plan Land Use Element Figure LU-1). In addition, the General Plan accommodates additional parks and recreational facilities, school facilities

and expansions, open space for conservation and for passive recreational use, open space buffers, drainage areas and non-vehicular trails, public infrastructure, and other improvements.

#### 1.3 Project Objectives

Per section 15124 of the CEQA Guidelines, an EIR must provide a statement of project objectives. This statement of objectives is used to guide the environmental impact analysis and as the basis for evaluating alternatives to the General Plan.

The General Plan proposes an update of the County's existing General Plan, most of which was updated between 1988 and 1991. This comprehensive General Plan Update involves significant revisions to goals, objectives, and policies, as well as a reorganization of the document, new policy diagrams, and various other important updates. The County's intent for development and conservation is outlined throughout the Elements of the General Plan.

As part of the General Plan update public outreach process, County residents established a Community Vision Statement, "Vision 2030." The Vision Statement is the foundation for General Plan goals, policies, and programs. It is an expression of residents' shared values and desires for Amador County's future. The Vision identifies the ideal conditions to work toward over the next 15 years and provides guidance for policy makers as they work to improve the quality of life in Amador County. For purposes of the EIR, the vision statement establishes the basic premises of the overarching project objectives, as follows:

- Project Objective 1: Adopt a General Plan that complies with current state law.
- Project Objective 2: Focus development of new residential, commercial, and industrial uses in and near existing communities.
- Project Objective 3: Accommodate the most recent population growth, housing, and employment projections in an orderly manner.
- Project Objective 4: Encourage development of higher-wage jobs and support business, especially locally-owned and unique businesses.
- Project Objective 5: Support provision of housing affordable to those who live or work in Amador County, including accommodating HCD's housing unit allocations for the County.
- Project Objective 6: Protect Amador County's unique character, including historic and cultural heritage, scenic vistas, agriculture, rivers, streams, natural areas, and historic buildings and towns.
- Project Objective 7: Judiciously manage and enhance the County's natural resources, including mineral, agricultural, timber, water, soil, air, open space, and wildlife resources.
- Project Objective 8: Provide a multi-modal circulation network that accommodates vehicles, pedestrians, cyclists, and public transit.
- Project Objective 9: Maintain and enhance access to services, including health services, emergency services, quality child care and senior services, and educational opportunities for children and adults.

- Project Objective 10: Provide for the continued economic viability of the County's agricultural production.
- Project Objective 11: Conserve the land base necessary to conduct agricultural activities.

Based on the community vision, the General Plan defines long-term community goals and policies, through text and maps in each of nine elements (see below for a description of these elements, except for the Housing Element). Each element also has implementation programs set forth in the Implementation Plan, which serve as the basis for future programming decisions related to the assignment of staff and expenditure of County funds.

#### 1.4 Record of Proceedings

For purposes of CEQA and these Findings, the Record of Proceedings for the proposed project consists of the following documents and other evidence, at a minimum:

- The Notices of Preparation (NOP) and all other public notices issued by the County of Amador in conjunction with the proposed project, comments received in response to the NOP, and comments made at the scoping meetings.
- The Draft Environmental Impact Report (Draft EIR), and the General Plan Technical Background Reports, along with technical appendices (Appendices A F).
- All written comments submitted by agencies or members of the public during the public review comment period on the Draft EIR.
- All responses to written comments submitted by agencies or members of the public during the public review comment period on the Draft EIR.
- The Final Environmental Impact Report (Final EIR) for the proposed project, which includes Chapter 10 (Comments and Responses), Appendix G (Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program), and Appendix H (Energy Impacts).
- All written and verbal public testimony presented during a noticed public hearing for the Draft General Plan at which such testimony was taken.
- The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP), which includes the policies and programs in the General Plan determined necessary to address potentially significant impacts associated with implementation of the General Plan.
- The documents, reports, and technical memoranda included or referenced in the technical appendices of the Draft EIR.
- All documents, studies, EIRs, or other materials incorporated by reference in the Draft EIR and Response to Comments.
- Amador County Staff Reports related to the General Plan.
- The Resolution adopted by the County of Amador in connection with the proposed project, and all documents incorporated by reference therein.

- Any documents expressly cited in these Findings or in the resolution adopting these Findings.
- Any other relevant materials required to be in the record of proceedings by Public Resources Code Section 21167.6(e) (excluding privileged materials).

The Board relied on all of the documents listed above in reaching its decision on the General Plan, even if one or more of the documents was not formally presented to the Board or County staff as part of the County files generated in connection with the General Plan.

#### 1.5 Custodian and Location of Records

The documents and other materials that constitute the administrative record for Amador County's actions related to the project are located at the Amador County Planning Department, 810 Court Street. Jackson, CA 95642.

Copies of these documents, which constitute the record of proceedings, are, and at all relevant times, have been and will be available upon request at the Amador County Planning Department. This information is provided in compliance with Public Resources Code Section 21081.6(a)(2) and CEQA Guideline Section 15091(e).

#### 1.6 Basis for Board Findings

In making its determination to certify the Final EIR and to approve the General Plan, the Board recognizes that the General Plan addresses a number of potentially controversial environmental issues, and that a range of technical and scientific opinion exists with respect to those issues. The Board has acquired an understanding of the range of this technical and scientific opinion by its review of the Draft EIR, the comments received on the Draft EIR and the responses to those comments in the Final EIR, as well as testimony, letters, and reports regarding the Final EIR and the merits of the Project.

The Board has reviewed and considered, as a whole, the evidence and analysis presented in the Draft EIR, the evidence and analysis presented in the comments on the Draft EIR, the evidence and analysis presented in the Final EIR, the information submitted on the Final EIR, and the reports prepared by the experts who prepared the EIR, the County's General Plan consultants, and by staff, addressing these comments.

The Board has gained a comprehensive and well-rounded understanding of the environmental issues presented by the 2030 General Plan and EIR. In turn, this understanding has enabled the Board to make its decisions after weighing and considering the various viewpoints on these important issues. The Board accordingly certifies that its findings are based on a full appraisal of all of the evidence contained in the Final EIR, as well as the evidence and other information in the record addressing the Final EIR.

#### 1.7 Incorporation by Reference

As noted, the The certified Final EIR and approved General Plan are incorporated into these findings in their entirety. Without limitation, this incorporation is intended to elaborate on the scope and nature of mitigation measures, the basis for determining the significance of impacts, the comparative analysis of

alternatives, and the reasons for approving the General Plan in spite of the potential for associated significant and unavoidable adverse impacts.

#### 1.8 General Findings

#### 1.8.1 RELATIONSHIP OF FINDINGS TO FINAL EIR CONTENTS

These Findings summarize the evidence, reasoning, and conclusions of the Board regarding the environmental impacts of the General Plan and the mitigation measures included as part of the Final EIR and adopted by the Board as part of the General Plan. To avoid duplication and redundancy, and because the Board agrees with, and hereby adopts, the conclusions in the Final EIR, these findings will not always repeat the analysis and conclusions in the Final EIR, but instead incorporates them by reference herein and relies upon them as substantial evidence supporting these findings. In making these findings, the Board has considered the opinions of other agencies and members of the public. The Board finds that:

- the determination of significance thresholds is a judgment decision within the discretion of Amador County's Board;
- the significance thresholds used in the EIR are supported by substantial evidence in the record, including the expert opinion of the EIR preparers and County staff; and
- the significance thresholds used in the EIR provide reasonable and appropriate means of assessing the significance of the adverse environmental effects of the Project.

Although, as a legal matter, the Board is not bound by the significance determinations in the EIR (see Public Resources Code, Section 21082.2, subd. [e]), the Board finds them persuasive, and hereby adopts them as its own.

A full explanation of these findings can be found in the Final EIR, and these findings hereby incorporate by reference the discussion and analysis in the Final EIR supporting the Final EIR's determination regarding the General Plan's impacts and mitigating policies and programs designed to address those impacts. In making these findings, the Board ratifies, adopts and incorporates in these findings the determinations and conclusions of the Final EIR relating to environmental impacts and mitigation measures, except to the extent any such determinations and conclusions are specifically and expressly modified by these findings.

#### 1.8.2 FINDINGS ON RESPONSES TO DRAFT EIR COMMENTS AND FINAL EIR REVISIONS

Chapter 10 of the EIR includes the comments received on the Draft EIR and responses to those comments. The focus of the responses to comments is on the disposition of significant environmental issues as raised in the comments, as specified by CEQA Guidelines § 15088(b). The EIR also incorporates information obtained and produced after the Draft EIR was completed, including additions, clarifications, and modifications, including Appendix H (Energy Impacts) and errata dated September 21, 2016. The Board has reviewed and considered the Final EIR and all of this information. The Board finds that responses to comments made on the Draft EIR and revisions to the Final EIR merely clarify, amplify or make insignificant modifications to the analysis presented in the document and do not trigger the need to recirculate per CEQA Guidelines §15088.5(b). Similarly, revisions to the project description since publication of the Draft EIR do not result in any new significant impacts or any substantial increases in the severity of an environmental impact, and do not trigger the need to recirculate per CEQA Guidelines

§15088.5(b). This finding is based upon all the information presented in the Final EIR and the record of proceedings.

# 2 Impacts Determined not to be Significant<sup>1</sup>

The Board agrees with the characterization in the EIR of all project-specific impacts identified as "less than significant," and finds that those impacts have been described accurately and are either less than significant or have no impact as described in the EIR Although Section 15091 of the State CEQA Guidelines does not require specific findings to address environmental effects that an EIR identifies as having "no impact" or a "less than significant" impact, these findings account for all resource areas in their entirety. The impacts where General Plan would result in either no impact or a less than significant impact in the following resource areas include:

#### 2.1 Agricultural Resources

2.1.1 SUBSTANTIALLY CONFLICT WITH EXISTING WILLIAMSON ACT CONTRACTS USES (IMPACT 4.2-2)

Under the General Plan, future development of residential uses or lot splits within the AT (Agricultural Transition) land use designations could conflict with existing Williamson Act contracts or result in the cancellation of such contracts, potentially resulting in loss or conversion of Farmland. However, this would only represent a tiny fraction of the more than 93,000 acres of land under Williamson Act contracts in the County. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.1.2 CONFLICT WITH FORESTLAND AND TIMBERLAND ZONING (IMPACT 4.2-4)

Under the General Plan, proposed land use designations would not conflict with zone districts permitting forest and timber uses such as timber harvesting, silviculture, and tree farming. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.2 Air Quality

2.2.1 GENERATION OF LONG-TERM, OPERATIONAL, AND LOCAL MOBILE-SOURCE EMISSIONS OF CO (IMPACT 4.3-3)

Emissions of CO from local mobile sources and generated by long-term project operations would not result in or substantially contribute to emissions concentrations that exceed the 1-hour ambient air quality standard of 20 ppm or the 8-hour standard of 9 ppm, respectively. As a result, this impact would be less than significant.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> EIR Chapter 4 and Appendix H provide further factual support for these findings.

#### 2.3 Biological Resources

#### 2.3.1 POTENTIAL INTERFERENCE WITH WILDLIFE MOVEMENT (IMPACT 4.4-6)

Implementation of the General Plan would include new development in the planning area, including buildings, structures, paved areas, roadways, utilities, and other improvements. However, proposed new uses would not interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory wildlife species because it would not eliminate important connections between any areas of natural habitat that would otherwise be isolated. This impact would be less than significant.

# 2.4 Geology, Soils, Mineral Resources, and Paleontological Resources

#### 2.4.1 POTENTIAL FOR EXPOSURE TO SEISMIC GROUND SHAKING (IMPACT 4.6-1)

Implementation of the General Plan would not result in construction of improvements or buildings in areas prone to strong seismic ground shaking. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.4.2 POTENTIAL FOR SEISMIC GROUND FAILURE (IMPACT 4.6-2)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in construction of improvements or buildings in areas with the potential for seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction, but existing County Regulations and the California Building Standards Code (CBC, California Code of Regulations [CCR] Title 24) would reduce effects. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.4.3 POTENTIAL FOR EXPOSURE TO LANDSLIDES OR AVALANCHE (IMPACT 4.6-3)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in construction of improvements and buildings in areas prone to landsliding, although implementation of County regulations and grading restrictions, including those concerning steepening of slopes, would reduce the risk of damage. Very limited development of structures, roadways, or utilities could occur in areas subject to avalanche, but existing County Regulations and the CBC would reduce effects. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.4.4 POTENTIAL FOR UNSTABLE SOILS (IMPACT 4.6-5)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in construction of occupied structures in areas located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable or that would become unstable, potentially resulting in on- or off-site lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse, but existing County Regulations and the CBC would reduce effects. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.4.5 CONSTRUCTION IN AREAS WITH EXPANSIVE SOILS (IMPACT 4.6-6)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in construction of occupied structures in areas with expansive soils, but existing County regulations and the CBC would reduce effects. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.4.6 CONSTRUCTION IN AREAS WITH SOILS WITH POOR SEPTIC SUITABILITY (IMPACT 4.6-7)

Residential dwellings and non-residential uses implementing the General Plan could result in construction of occupied structures in areas with soils poorly suited to septic systems. Should septic systems be used in these areas, implementation of existing regulations would require use of best practices for septic systems. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.4.7 POTENTIAL DAMAGE FROM A SEICHE (IMPACT 4.6-10)

Land adjacent to the County's reservoirs is generally held in recreational use and open space, with few occupied structures. For those bodies of water in Amador County large enough to be subject to seiche, the General Plan would not change existing land uses or increase risks or exposure to hazards adjacent to these water bodies. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.5 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

#### 2.5.1 ROUTINE TRANSPORT, USE, OR DISPOSAL OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS (IMPACT 4.8-1)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in an increase in the routine transport, use, and/or disposal of hazardous materials, which could result in exposure of such materials to the public through either routine use or accidental release. However, compliance with existing federal, state, and local regulations would reduce risks of accidents associated with the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials to a less-than-significant level.

# 2.5.2 SAFETY HAZARDS TO PEOPLE RESIDING OR WORKING WITHIN 2 MILES OF A PUBLIC AIRPORT OR PUBLIC USE AIRPORT (IMPACT 4.8-5)

Implementation of the General Plan could result in construction of residential, commercial, and industrial uses in the Martell RSC in close proximity to Westover Field airport. However, General Plan policy language in LU-13.1 and LU-13.2 would ensure that projects implementing the General Plan would be consistent with ALUP and would not result in incompatible land uses or obstructions to navigable airspace. This impact would be less than significant.

# 2.5.3 SAFETY HAZARDS TO PEOPLE RESIDING OR WORKING IN THE VICINITY OF A PRIVATE AIRSTRIP (IMPACT 4.8-6)

Implementation of the General Plan could result in construction of residential and industrial uses in the vicinity of one or more of the private airstrips in the planning area. However, due to the land use designations and minimum lot sizes (40 acre minimum in both Agricultural General and Mineral Resource Zone) applied in proximity to the private airstrips, the concentration of people that could occur in areas subject to elevated crash hazards would not be substantially increased. Tall structures would require discretionary actions by the County due to existing height limitations in the Zoning Ordinance. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.6 Hydrology and Water Quality

#### 2.6.1 POTENTIAL FOR FAILURE OF A LEVEE OR DAM (IMPACT 4.9-6)

When levees or dams fail, people and structures are exposed to inundation, and death, injury, or loss of property could result. There are no levee flood protection zones within Amador County. The Pardee, Salt Springs, Lower Bear River, and Jackson Creek dams have been constructed and are maintained consistent with California Water Code Division 3. There is no substantial evidence to suggest that dam failure is likely, and implementation of the General Plan would do nothing to increase the potential for dam failure. Adoption and implementation of the proposed policies in the General Plan, combined with other relevant state and local regulations, would minimize the potential for effects on the planning area from inundation as a result of dam failure. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.7 Land Use Planning

#### 2.7.1 DIVIDE AN ESTABLISHED COMMUNITY (IMPACT 4.10-1)

New residential, commercial, and industrial uses would be focused in Regional Service Center and Town Center areas, and the Carbondale Industrial area where they could be served with the most efficient expansion of existing infrastructure. No new infrastructure improvements with the potential to divide existing communities (i.e., large roadways) are proposed as part of the General Plan. Goals LU-10 AND LU-11 and their associated policies would guide and focus residential and commercial development in the Regional Service Center and Town Center areas. A primary objective of the General Plan is to maintain and enhance established communities. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.7.2 CONFLICT WITH OTHER PLANS (IMPACT 4.10-2)

The General Plan would not conflict with other applicable land use plans, policies, or regulations. For example, implementation of the General Plan would be consistent with the County Zoning Ordinance, Amador Local Agency Formation Commission policies, and the Westover Field Airport Land Use Plan, This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.8 Population and Housing

#### 2.8.1 DISPLACEMENT OF EXISTING HOUSING OR PEOPLE (IMPACT 4.12-2)

Implementation of the General Plan would not result in the displacement of existing housing or people necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.9 Public Services and Utilities

#### 2.9.1 INCREASED GENERATION OF SOLID WASTE (IMPACT 4.13-4)

Class I waste is transported to General Environmental Management's hazardous waste storage and treatment facility in Rancho Cordova and Clean Harbors Aragonite, LLC in Grantsville, Utah, and Class II waste is anticipated to be transported to Recology Hay Road Landfill in Vacaville, California. Local solid waste haulers would have the responsibility to either handle disposition of these wastes by transfer to the appropriate receiving facility or provide information of proper disposition. Class III waste generated in the planning area is transported to the Kiefer Landfill. Currently, the landfill is operating below permitted capacity, and the closure date of the Kiefer Landfill is anticipated to be approximately 2064. Kiefer Landfill has sufficient permitted capacity to meet the County's solid-waste disposal needs based on development under the General Plan. This impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.9.2 INCREASED DEMAND FOR PUBLIC SCHOOL FACILITIES AND SERVICES (IMPACT 4.13-7)

Implementation of the General Plan would increase the demand for public school services in the ACUSD service area. Constructing and operating additional school facilities is the responsibility of the ACUSD, which would provide school facilities to serve growth in the planning area. New development would be required to pay state-mandated school impact fees to ACUSD. The additional students generated through implementing the General Plan would raise enrollment to 4,491 compared to a recent peak of 4,794 students in the 1998-99 school year. Therefore, it is unlikely that new or substantially expanded facilities beyond those already available to the district would be required to accommodate the enrollment increase from implementing the General Plan. This impact would be less than significant.

# 2.9.3 SUFFICIENCY OF PROPOSED PARKLAND TO MEET INCREASED DEMAND AND POTENTIAL INCREASED USE AND DETERIORATION OF EXISTING FACILITIES (IMPACT 4.13-8)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in new residents, which would increase the use and could cause the potential physical deterioration of existing park facilities. Future subdivisions and parcels maps for residential development within the planning area would be required, pursuant to County Code Chapter 17.50, to dedicate parkland or pay an in-lieu fee at fair market value. Because current parkland to population ratios exceed Quimby Act thresholds (i.e., 3 acres per 1,000 residents) and implementation of existing fee and land dedication requirements would ensure the provision of park and recreational facilities to serve the planning area, the impact related to the availability of park and recreation facilities would be less than significant.

#### 2.10 Transportation

#### 2.10.1 AIR TRAFFIC PATTERNS (IMPACT 4.14-3)

Implementation of the General Plan would not affect air traffic patterns, and compliance with existing airport land use regulations would result in a less-than-significant impact.

#### 2.10.2 DESIGN HAZARDS (IMPACT 4.14-4)

Implementation of the General Plan would include construction of new roadways and other circulation improvements and could increase hazards due to a design feature, changes in traffic patterns, or incompatible land uses. With compliance with Caltrans and County roadway improvement standards, this impact would be less than significant.

#### 2.10.3 Non-Motorized Transportation and Transit (Impact 4.14-5)

The General Plan would not propose changes (such as large-scale road improvements, utility corridor changes) that would impede current pedestrian, bicycle, or transit modes; would increase the use of alternative transportation modes, including pedestrian, bicycle, and transit trips; and would provide for additional non-motorized transportation and transit facilities. This impact would therefore be less than significant.

#### 2.11 Energy

As documented in Appendix H, implementation of the General Plan would not have a significant impact on energy resources. As demonstrated by Appendix H, it would not result in the wasteful, inefficient or unnecessary consumption of energy during construction or operation. Furthermore, as discussed in Appendix H, General Plan policies would incorporate renewable energy and energy efficiency measures into building design and transportation.

# 3 Impacts that Can Be Mitigated to a Level of Insignificance<sup>2</sup>

The EIR identified significant project-specific adverse impacts of the Draft General Plan and identified Plan policies and programs that avoid or substantially lessen those impacts. Those impacts and mitigation measures are identified in the following section. The County of Amador finds, based on the facts set forth in the record, which include but are not limited to the facts as set forth below, that the incorporation of the identified policies, programs, and mitigation measures will reduce the following identified significant project-specific adverse impacts to a level that is considered less than significant.

#### 3.1 Aesthetics

#### 3.1.1 DAMAGE TO SCENIC RESOURCES WITHIN A STATE SCENIC HIGHWAY (IMPACT 4.1-2)

Caltrans has designated SR 88 (Carson Pass Highway) from the Dew Drop Ranger Station, east, to the Nevada state line as a state scenic highway. Implementation of General Plan policies and Caltrans requirements for development adjacent to this segment of SR 88 would reduce the impact related to damage to scenic resources within a state scenic highway, but the impact would remain significant.

#### 3.1.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.1-2: Implement Program P-13, Scenic Highway Corridor Ordinance

a. The County will develop and adopt an ordinance specifying standards to implement state scenic highway requirements. The intent of this ordinance is to provide land use controls and regulatory safeguards to preserve and enhance an area of special and unique natural beauty and aesthetic interest in Amador County which has been identified as being a basic resource in the economy of the County. In order to accomplish this goal, the ordinance will establish design review controls to ensure that future development within this corridor will not substantially detract from the aesthetics and the County will consequently retain the overall scenic value, as well as economic resource value of SR 88. The objective of this ordinance will be to reduce or avoid visual impacts to state-designated scenic highway corridors. This ordinance will be based on standards in the County's 1985 Scenic Highways Element. Standards will address landscaping, signs, appearance of buildings (including exterior colors, materials, and height), parking, maintenance, grading, and undergrounding of utilities.

#### 3.1.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measure 4.1-2 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. The existing General Plan has scenic highway standards that are detailed and regulatory, and more appropriately located in the County's Code of Ordinances. Because implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.1-2 would reproduce the existing General Plan standards as an ordinance and require future projects within the scenic highway corridor to incorporate landscaping, signage, building appearance, and other features that do not substantially detract from the corridor's aesthetics, substantial damage to scenic resources would not occur, and the impact would be reduced to less than significant.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> EIR Chapter 4 provides further factual support for these findings.

#### 3.2 Air Quality

# 3.2.1 EXPOSURE OF SENSITIVE RECEPTORS TO CONSTRUCTION-GENERATED EMISSIONS OF NATURALLY OCCURRING ASBESTOS (IMPACT 4.3-5)

Asbestos is a toxic air contaminant. Residents and other receptors located close to construction activity would be exposed to dust from naturally occurring asbestos (NOA) rock and soils during earth disturbance activities. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.2.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.3-5: Naturally-Occurring Asbestos Control

The County will amend Chapter 15.40 of the County Code (governing grading and erosion control) to include a section addressing the reduction of asbestos exposure for grading permits in areas likely to contain naturally occurring asbestos (mapped as Ultramafic (um), Copper Hill Volcanics (Jch), the Gopher Ridge Volcanics (Jgo), or Logtown Ridge (Jlr) on the Geologic Atlas of California – Sacramento Sheet, or based on mapping developed by the California Geological Survey). Methods to reduce asbestos exposure may include requiring grading permits or building permits that would result in earth disturbance to have a California-registered geologist knowledgeable about asbestoscontaining formations inspect the project area, using appropriate test methods, for the presence of asbestos. If the investigation determines that NOA is present, then the County will require the project applicant to prepare an Asbestos Dust Control Plan as required in Section 93105 of the California Health and Safety Code, including measures to reduce exposures consistent with Section 93105(d) and (e) of the California Health and Safety Code. These measures include wetting unpaved areas subject to vehicle traffic; limiting speed to 15 miles per hour; stabilizing storage piles and disturbed areas with water, cover, or chemical suppressant; washing down equipment before moving from the property onto a paved public road; and applying water to prevent visible dust in areas where ground disturbance or grading occurs.

#### 3.2.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measure 4.3-5 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.3-5 would reduce potential impacts related to exposure to NOA because future projects that would occur under the General Plan would be required to develop an Asbestos Dust Control Plan and implement specified measures that would avoid or substantially reduce health risks from asbestos exposure. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

#### 3.2.2 EXPOSURE OF SENSITIVE RECEPTORS TO ODORS. (IMPACT 4.3-6)

The County has anticipated the possibility that sensitive receptors may be exposed to sources of odor during implementation of the General Plan. All new development projects will be required to meet existing regulations, including permitting requirements and disclosure laws. However, even with these measures, projects constructed under the General Plan could create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.2.2.1 Mitigation

### Mitigation Measure 4.3-6: Implement Measures to Control Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Odorous Emissions

- a. The County will require the project applicant(s) for all project phases to implement the following measures:
  - For every proposed land use that has the potential to emit odor, the project applicant shall perform a review as part of the CEQA analysis to determine whether existing or proposed sensitive receptors will be exposed to significant levels of odorous emissions.
  - For existing odor-producing sources, sensitive receptors shall be sited as far away as possible from the existing sources.
  - For new project-generated odor-producing sources, sensitive receptors shall be sited as far away as possible from the new sources.

#### 3.2.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measure 4.3-6 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.3-6 would reduce odor emissions because project-level CEQA review and mitigation measures imposed at the project level would avoid conflicts between odor emissions and sensitive receptors. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation because a substantial number of people would not be exposed to odor impacts.

#### 3.3 Biological Resources

# 3.3.1 SUBSTANTIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON RIPARIAN HABITAT, A SENSITIVE NATURAL COMMUNITY (IMPACT 4.4-2)

Implementation of the General Plan would include new development in the planning area, including buildings, structures, paved areas, roadways, utilities, and other improvements. These new uses would occur in existing, developed communities and undeveloped areas of the County. This could result in direct impacts to riparian areas through habitat conversion, encroachment, routine maintenance, or other activities in the immediate vicinity of rivers and other water bodies that currently support or could support riparian habitat. Indirect impacts to riparian habitat could result from changes in hydrology. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.3.1.1 Mitigation

Implement Mitigation Measure 4.4-1a and 4.4-1b. (see details under "4.4 Biological Resources")

#### Mitigation Measure 4.4-2: Riparian Habitat Protection

If projects require encroachment into the riparian habitat, project applicants will be required to develop a riparian habitat mitigation plan. The mitigation plan will include the following:

• implementation of Best Management Practices (BMPs) while working near riparian habitats to avoid inadvertent damage to riparian vegetation to be retained. BMPs will include establishment of no-disturbance buffers around the outer edge of the riparian vegetation to prevent root and crown damage, soil compaction, and implementation of standard BMPs to reduce erosion and

water quality impacts, and introduction and spread of invasive species. Exceptions to riparian buffers will be granted to permit necessary road and bridge repair and construction, trails construction, and other recreational access structures that are water dependent, such as docks and piers;

- methods to be implemented to avoid and/or compensate for impacts on riparian habitat at a ratio adequate to offset the loss of riparian habitat functions and values. At a minimum, riparian habitat losses will be compensated at a 1:1 ratio;
- identification of mitigation sites and criteria for selecting these sites;
- site-specific management procedures to benefit establishment and maintenance of native riparian plant species;
- monitoring protocol, including schedule and annual report requirements (compensatory riparian habitats shall be monitored for a minimum period of five years);
- ecological performance standards and corrective measures if performance standards are not met;
- responsible parties for monitoring and preparing reports; and
- responsible parties for receiving and reviewing reports and for verifying success or prescribing implementation or corrective actions.

Mitigation may be accomplished through preservation, replacement, restoration or enhancement of degraded habitat, re-establishing riparian vegetation in areas that historically supported it, or purchase of credits at an established mitigation bank, such as the Cosumnes Floodplain Mitigation Bank. Compensatory mitigation will be provided within Amador County to the extent feasible and available; however, certain impacts may be compensated at an agency-approved mitigation bank in an adjacent county if required by CDFW and an agency-approved mitigation bank is not available in Amador County. If a proposed project requires work on the bed or bank of a stream, or other water body, the project applicant will also obtain a streambed alteration agreement under Section 1602 of the Fish and Game Code from CDFW prior to project implementation, and will implement all requirements of the agreement in the timeframes required therein.

#### 3.3.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a, 4.4-1b, and 4.4-2 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a, 4.4-1b, and 4.4-2 would prevent substantial adverse impacts to riparian habitat because it would require impact avoidance or minimization through feasible project design modification or mitigation at a ratio sufficient to offset the loss of riparian habitat function and values. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

# 3.3.2 SUBSTANTIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON OAK WOODLAND, A SENSITIVE NATURAL COMMUNITY (IMPACT 4.4-4)

Implementation of the General Plan would include new development in the planning area, including buildings, structures, paved areas, roadways, utilities, and other improvements. These new uses could occur in existing, developed communities and undeveloped areas of the County. This could result in direct impacts to oak woodland from loss of individual oak trees and stands of oak trees and associated

species. It could also lead to increased habitat fragmentation which results in adverse effects to the plant and wildlife species dependent on oak woodlands. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.3.2.1 Mitigation

Implement Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a and 4.4-1b.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.4-4a: Implement Program D-1a(12), Development Proposal Evaluation

The County will review proposed projects for consistency with goals, policies, and implementation programs of this general plan.

Evaluation criteria for discretionary development proposals include:

• Impacts to oak woodlands. The County will assess impacts of proposed projects on oak woodlands, and require mitigation per Public Resources Code Section 21083.4.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.4-4b: Oak Woodlands

When considering discretionary development proposals implementing the General Plan, the County, through CEQA reviews, will require that project applicants map oak woodland resources on the project site and, where feasible, establish buffers around existing oak woodland stands to prevent adverse effects. The County will require implementation of BMPs while working near oak woodlands to be retained to avoid inadvertent damage to oak trees. BMPs will include establishment of no-disturbance buffers around the outer canopy edge to prevent root and crown damage, soil compaction, and standard management practices to reduce introduction and spread of invasive species and other indirect effects.

For those impacts on oak woodland that cannot be avoided, the County will require the project applicant to minimize adverse effects. If conversion of oak woodland will occur, the County will require one or more of the following mitigation measures be implemented to mitigate the impact from loss of oak woodland habitat pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21083.4:

- Conserve oak woodlands through the purchase of conservation easements
- Plant acorns and container stock from a local seed source to replace oak woodland removed. The following parameters will be applied:
  - Plant an appropriate number of trees, including maintaining plantings and replacing dead or diseased trees
  - Maintain trees for seven years after the trees are planted
  - Planting may not account for more than 50% of the required mitigation
  - Mitigation through planting may be used to restore former or degraded oak woodlands.
- Contribute funds to the Oak Woodlands Conservation Fund, as established under subdivision (a)
  of Section 1363 of the Fish and Game Code, for the purpose of purchasing oak woodland
  conservation easements

The County will require project applicants to develop a mitigation and monitoring plan to compensate for the loss of oak woodland habitat. The mitigation and monitoring plan will describe in detail how loss of oak woodlands shall be avoided or offset, including details on restoration and creation of habitat, compensation for the temporal loss of habitat, success criteria ensuring habitat function goals and objectives are met, performance standards to ensure success, and remedial actions if performance standards are not met. The plan will include detailed information on the habitats present within the preservation and mitigation areas, the long-term management and monitoring of these habitats, legal protection for the preservation and mitigation areas (e.g., conservation easement, declaration of restrictions), and funding mechanism information (e.g., endowment).

If planting is used as part of compensatory mitigation, an oak planting plan will be developed by a qualified professional such as a professional biologist, arborist, or registered professional forester using the best available science and will clearly state all mitigation measures required.

Oak woodlands habitat placed under conservation easements will be at appropriate ratios to offset the loss of habitat functions and values of the oak woodland to be lost. Oak woodland habitat preserved this way should have similar tree sizes and densities, species composition, site condition, and landscape context to the oak woodland to be removed to serve the same function and have similar habitat value. At a minimum, 1 acre of oak woodland habitat providing similar functions and values will be placed under conservation easement for every acre of oak woodlands habitat lost.

The County may also permit project applicants to contribute to an established oak woodland fund to meet up to 50 percent of their mitigation requirements.

#### 3.3.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a, 4.4-1b, 4.4-4a, and 4.4-4b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a, 4.4-1b, 4.4-4a, and 4.4-4b would prevent substantial adverse impacts on oak woodlands resulting from General Plan implementation because it would require impact avoidance or minimization through feasible project design modification or mitigation at a ratio sufficient to offset the loss of oak woodland habitat function and values. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

# 3.3.3 SUBSTANTIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON FEDERALLY PROTECTED WETLANDS, WATERS OF THE UNITED STATES AND WATERS OF THE STATE (IMPACT 4.4-5)

Implementation of the General Plan would include new development in the planning area, including buildings, structures, paved areas, roadways, utilities, and other improvements. These new uses could occur in existing, developed communities and undeveloped areas of the County. This could result in direct impacts to federally protected wetlands and other waters of the United States, and waters of the state, including vernal pools, seasonal wetlands, marshes and rivers, stream, drainages and other water bodies in the County. Impacts could occur through habitat conversion, encroachment, routine maintenance, or other activities in the immediate vicinity of rivers and other water bodies and in habitat supporting wetlands. Indirect impacts could result from changes in hydrology. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.3.3.1 Mitigation

#### Implement Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a and 4.4-1b.

#### **Mitigation Measure 4.4-5: Wetlands**

Project applicants will be required to conduct wetland delineations according to USACE standards and submit the delineations to the USACE for verification. Based on the verified delineation, project applicants will quantify impacts to wetlands and other waters of the United States resulting from their proposed projects. A permit from the USACE will be required for any activity resulting in impacts of "fill" of wetlands and other waters of the United States.

If projects require activities that result in impacts to wetlands and other waters of the United States, the County during discretionary project review will require project applicants to obtain all necessary permits under Section 404 of the CWA, and implement compensatory mitigation consistent with USACE and EPA's April 10, 2008 *Final Rule for Compensatory Mitigation for Losses of Aquatic Resources* (33 CFR Parts 325 and 332 and 40 CFR Part 230), including preparation of a wetland mitigation plan if required. The wetland mitigation plan will include ecological performance standards, based on the best available science that can be assessed in a practicable manner. Performance standards must be based on attributes that are objective and verifiable. The County will require project applicants to commit to replace, restore, or enhance on a "no-net-loss" basis (in accordance with USACE Section 404 no-net-loss requirements) the acreage of all wetlands and other waters of the United States that would be removed, lost, and/or degraded by discretionary projects. The County will require similar mitigation for loss of non-jurisdictional wetlands and waters that are waters of the state and have value as biological resources.

For Section 404 mitigation, in accordance with the Final Rule, mitigation banks (e.g., Cosumnes Floodplain Mitigation Bank) will be given preference over other types of mitigation because much of the risk and uncertainty regarding mitigation success is alleviated by the fact that mitigation bank wetlands must be established and demonstrating functionality before credits can be sold. The Final Rule also establishes a preference for compensating losses of aquatic resources within the same watershed as the impact site. A combination of mitigation bank credits and permittee-responsible on and off-site mitigation may be used as needed to fully offset project impacts on wetlands and other waters of the United States and waters of the state.

Project applicants that obtain a Section 404 permit will also be required to obtain certification from the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) pursuant to Section 401 of the CWA. If the project involves work on the bed or bank of a river, stream or lake, a Streambed Alteration Agreement from CDFW pursuant to Section 1602 of the Fish and Game Code will also be needed, which will include mitigation measures required by CDFW. The County will require project applicants to obtain all needed permits prior to project implementation, and to abide by the conditions of the permits, including all mitigation requirements.

#### 3.3.3.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a, 4.4-1b and 4.4-5 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a, 4.4-1b, and 4.4-5 would prevent substantial adverse impacts to wetlands and other waters of the United States and the state by requiring avoidance and minimization of impacts if feasible. If avoidance or minimization is not feasible, project applicants would be required to replace, restore, or enhance on a "no-net-loss" basis the acreage of all wetlands and other waters of the United States or state that would be removed, lost, and/or degraded by discretionary projects. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

#### 3.4 Cultural Resources

#### 3.4.1 DESTRUCTION OF OR DAMAGE OF KNOWN CULTURAL RESOURCES (IMPACT 4.5-1)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in new development in the planning area, including buildings, structures, paved areas, roadways, utilities, and other improvements which would have the potential to destroy or damage known cultural resources. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.4.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.5-1a: Historic Preservation, Cultural Resources

- The objective of Amador County's Implementation Plan Program D-6 is to substantially reduce or avoid impacts to cultural resources through preservation in place. Data recovery would only be implemented as a mitigation measure would only be implemented when preservation or other mitigation measures are is not feasible. Through the discretionary review process, the County will work with applicants to assure their projects comply with state and federal laws that preserve and protect cultural resources, including historic resources and archaeological sites. These mitigation measures would be developed by an archaeologist that specializes in prehistoric or historic archaeology, and/or an architectural historian (as appropriate) that meets the Secretary of Interior's Standards. With regard to historical resources of an archaeological nature, including traditional tribal cultural places, preservation of values would be the preferred method of protecting a sacred area from adverse impacts. Preservation in place may include avoiding a resource, incorporating sites within open space, covering sites with fill, or deeding sites into a permanent easement (14 CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.4(b)(3)(B)). If preservation is not feasible, then data recovery according to CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.4(b)(3)(C) shall be followed. one or more of the alternative methods outlined in CEOA Guidelines Section 15126.4(b)(3) may be implemented. The County will work with applicants to comply with state and federal laws that preserve and protect cultural resources, including historic resources and archaeological sites.
- b. When evaluating discretionary projects with historical resources that are historic structures, the County will use its review process to guide the applicant toward the use of the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring, and Reconstructing Historic Buildings; or use of the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation; and the Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings (Weeks and Grimmer 1995). The Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties presume each historical resource is unique. Thus, each significant resource presents its own identity and its own distinctive character. Character in this instance refers to those visual aspects and physical features that comprise the appearance of a historical resource. As commonly referred, character-defining features include the overall shape of the resource, its materials, craftsmanship, decorative details, interior spaces and features, as well as the various aspects of its site and environment (Nelson, ND). Following the Secretary's Standards will result in the retention of as many key character-defining features as possible in the protection, preservation, restoration, or renovation of cultural resources such as historic buildings, structures, objects, landscapes, or sites, where feasible. When possible, project applicants shall also strive to maintain or restore original proportions, dimensions, and elements of historic buildings or structures and preserve or restore features of historic objects, landscapes, or sites. Applicants may be required to use historic preservation techniques and standards to maintain the historical integrity of historic buildings or structures (including the Historic Building Code [Title 24, Part 8]) where mandated. Where restoration or renovation is undertaken to meet the proposed use of the owner, upgrades to plumbing, electrical, HVAC, and interior arrangements will be allowed. An expansion that meets building code

guidelines will be permitted so long as the style of the expansion matches the original structure. Individuals that meet the Secretary of Interior's Standards for architectural preservation will be used to determine that the impact on the historical resource resulting from the expansion is mitigated to a less—than—significant level. When evaluating discretionary projects with historical resources that are not historic structures, including but not limited to archaeological sites, significant impacts will be avoided or mitigated using the framework established by CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.4(b)(3). Preservation in place will be the preferred manner of mitigating impacts to archeological sites. When data recovery through excavation is the only feasible mitigation, a data recovery plan, which makes provisions for adequately recovering the scientifically consequential information about the resource, will be prepared and adopted prior to excavation. Such studies will be deposited with the California Historical Resources Regional Information Center. If an artifact must be removed during excavation or testing, curation may be an appropriate mitigation.

c. Where restoration or preservation of a cultural resource is not feasible, applicants shall document the resource and retain the information in a secure location. Access to confidential information will be conducted pursuant to federal and state laws, including but not limited to the California Public Records Act, Government Code § 6250 et seq., and the Information Practices Act of 1977, Civil Code § 1798 et seq. Archaeological collections will be curated according to the *Guidelines for the curation of Archeological Collections* (State Historical Resources Commission (1993), and will funded by the project applicant.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.5-1b: Implement CEQA Review of Discretionary Projects

The County will require applicants for discretionary projects that could have significant adverse impacts to prehistoric or historic-era archaeological resources to assess impacts and provide mitigation as part of the CEQA process, and consistent with the requirements of CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.4(b)(3) and Public Resources Code Section 21083.2, or equivalent County regulation. These regulations generally require consultation with appropriate agencies, the Native American Heritage Commission, knowledgeable Native American groups and individuals, new and updated record searches conducted by the North Central Information Center and federal and incorporated local agencies within and in the vicinity of the project site, repositories of historic archives including local historical societies, and individuals, significance determinations by qualified professionals, and avoidance of resources if feasible. If avoidance is not feasible, recovery, documentation and recordation of resources is required prior to project implementation, and copies of the documentation will be forwarded to the NCIC. However, all reasonable options and alternatives will be explored to maintain site integrity prior to the data collection phase. In the event human remains are discovered, the applicant and landowner will comply with California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 and California Public Resources Code Section 5097. When the County is the applicant the same mitigation applies.

#### 3.4.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.5-1a and 4.5-1b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Mitigation Measures 4.5-1a and 4.5-1b would substantially reduce or avoid impacts to CEQA-defined "historical resources," consistent with recommendations in CEQA Guidelines Section 15126.4(b). Preservation in place would be preferred, and data recovery would only be implemented as a mitigation measure when preservation or other mitigation measures are is not feasible. Development projects that implement the Draft General Plan would be required to identify resources, avoid resources where feasible, and when avoidance is not feasible substantially reduce impacts to resources under the direction of a qualified archaeologist or architectural historian. With regard

to <u>historical resources of an archaeological nature, including</u> traditional tribal cultural places, preservation of values would be the preferred method of protecting a sacred area from adverse impacts. With regard to <u>historical resources that are</u> historic structures, Secretary of Interior Standards for architectural preservation would be used to guide mitigation, and individuals meeting these standards would determine that the impact on the historical resource is mitigated to a less-than-significant level. Therefore, the impact would be reduced to less than significant.

# 3.4.2 DESTRUCTION OF OR DAMAGE TO AS-YET-UNKNOWN CULTURAL RESOURCES (IMPACT 4.5-2)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in construction and development activities that would include grading, excavation or other ground-disturbing activities. These activities could disturb or damage as-yet-undiscovered archaeological resources or human remains. This impact would be potentially significant.

#### 3.4.2.1 Mitigation

**Implement Mitigation Measures 4.5-1a and 4.5-1b.** 

#### Mitigation Measure 4.5-2: Impose Standard Conditions on Development

The County will continue to impose the following conditions on projects which include ground disturbing activity. Applicants, including the County, will be required to do the following:

- During ground-disturbing activity, if paleontological, historic or pre-historic resources such as chipped or ground stone, fossil-bearing rock, large quantities of shell, historic debris, building foundations, or human bone are inadvertently discovered, the operator/permittee shall immediately cease all such activities within 100 feet of the find and notify the Amador County Technical Advisory Committee. A qualified archaeologist shall be contracted by the operator/permittee to assess the significance of the find and prepare an evaluation, avoidance or mitigation plan, as appropriate, which shall be implemented before resuming ground disturbing activities.
- When a discretionary project will involve subsurface impacts in highly sensitive areas a qualified archaeologist will monitor ground disturbing activities, and will have the authority to halt construction until the resource can be evaluated and mitigated if necessary. Native American monitors will be invited to attend. may also be present for evaluation of resources. Native American monitors have knowledge required to adequately evaluate Native American values in the event that unknown cultural resources are exposed during project construction. Native American monitors will also have the authority to halt construction until the resource can be evaluated. In addition, future CEQA projects will require AB52 consultation with tribes including the development of mitigation measures.
- In the event of discovery or recognition of any human remains anywhere within the work area, the operator/permittee shall comply with the following protocol:
  - 1. Immediately cease any disturbance of the area where such suspected remains are discovered and any nearby areas reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent remains until the Amador County Coroner is contacted, per Section 7050.5 of the California Health and Safety Code. The coroner shall, within two working days:

- Determine if an investigation of cause of death is required;
- Determine if the remains are most likely that of Native American origin, and if so suspected, the coroner shall notify the NAHC within 24 hours of making his or her determination.
- 2. The descendants of the deceased Native Americans shall make a recommendation to the operator/permittee for the means of handling the remains and any associated grave goods as provided in Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 5097.98.
- 3. The NAHC shall immediately notify those persons it believes to be most likely descended from the deceased Native American.
- 4. The descendants may, with the permission of the landowner or their representative, inspect the site of the discovered Native American remains and may recommend possible treatment or disposition within 24 hours of their notification.
- 5. Whenever the commission is unable to identify a descendent, or the descendent identified fails to make a recommendation, or the landowner or his or her authorized representative rejects the recommendation of the descendent and the mediation provided for in subdivision (k) of PRC Section 5097.94 fails to provide measures acceptable to the landowner, the landowner or his or her authorized representative shall reinter the human remains and items associated with Native American burials with appropriate dignity on the property in a location not subject to further subsurface disturbance.

#### 3.4.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.5-1a, 4.5-1b and 4.5-2 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Mitigation Measures 4.5-1a, 4.5-1b, and 4.5-2 require halting construction upon the discovery of as-yet-undiscovered significant prehistoric sites and avoiding these resources where feasible, and substantially reduce impacts to resources under the direction of an archaeologist where avoidance would not be feasible. Standard conditions will be imposed on development as to the treatment of any-paleontological, historic or pre-historic resources such as chipped or ground stone, fossil-bearing rock, large quantities of shell, historic debris, building foundations, or human bone that are inadvertently discovered during ground-disturbing activity to avoid or significantly reduce potential adverse impacts to these resources. Native American monitors may also be present for evaluation of resources. Because these mitigation measures would prevent substantial adverse changes in the significance of unknown cultural resources, the impact would be reduced to less than significant.

#### 3.4.3 DISTURBANCE OF HUMAN REMAINS (IMPACT 4.5-3)

Many areas of Amador County are known to have been heavily utilized by Native American groups during the prehistoric period; in addition, the discovery of gold brought a rush of new residents starting in the mid-1800s. While some burial ground locations (generally from the historic era) are known, there is the possibility that ground disturbing activities that would occur during implementation of the General Plan could encounter prehistoric or historic human remains. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.4.3.1 Mitigation

#### **Implement Mitigation Measures 4.5-1b and 4.5-2.**

#### 3.4.3.2 Finding

Because implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.5-1b and 4.5-2 would require compliance with state laws which require contact with the County coroner and a professional archeologist to determine the nature of the find, as well as contact with the NAHC and appropriate treatment of the remains if determined to be those of a Native American, the impact associated with disturbance of human remains would be reduced to less than significant.

# 3.5 Geology, Soils, Mineral Resources, and Paleontological Resources

#### 3.5.1 SOIL EROSION OR LOSS OF TOPSOIL (IMPACT 4.6-4)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in new development in the planning area, including buildings, structures, paved areas, roadways, utilities, and other improvements that could lead to soil erosion or the loss of topsoil. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.5.1.1 Mitigation

**Implement Mitigation Measures 4.9-1a, 4.9-1c, 4.9-1d, 4.9-2, and 4.9-3** (see details under "3.6 Hydrology and Water Quality")

#### 3.5.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.9-1a, 4.9-1c, 4.9-1d, 4.9-2, and 4.9-3 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Mitigation Measures 4.9-1a, 4.9-1c, 4.9-1d, 4.9-2, and 4.9-3 would assure that implementation of the General Plan would not result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil, and therefore this impact would be less than significant.

#### 3.5.2 Loss of Availability of Known Mineral Resources (Impact 4.6-8)

Implementation of the General Plan could result in construction of new residential dwellings or non-residential uses in areas near existing or potential future mineral resource development, potentially affecting the availability of mineral resources. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.5.2.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.6-8a: Implement P Program P-9, Mineral Resource Management

In order to ensure extraction and processing of mineral resources and aggregate deposits may continue, the County will regulate land uses in Mineral Resource Zone 2 areas to ensure compatibility between mineral extraction, and surrounding existing and planned uses.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.6-8b: Implement Program D-1a(13), Development Project Evaluation

The County will review proposed projects for consistency with goals, policies, and implementation programs of this general plan.

- Evaluation criteria for discretionary development proposals include:
  - 13. The County will evaluate development proposals for compatibility with nearby mineral extraction activities and mapped resources to reduce or avoid the loss of mineral resource availability.

#### 3.5.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.6-8a and 4.6-8b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.6-8a and 4.6-8b would require the County to regulate land uses in MRZ-2 areas to ensure continued compatibility with mineral extraction and would also evaluate development proposals to reduce or avoid the loss of mineral extraction potential, including locally important minerals. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation because losses of availability of known mineral resources would be minimized.

# 3.5.3 POSSIBLE DAMAGE TO UNKNOWN, POTENTIALLY UNIQUE PALEONTOLOGICAL RESOURCES DURING EARTHMOVING ACTIVITIES (IMPACT 4.6-9)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in construction and other earthmoving activities that could disturb previously unknown paleontological resources in the unincorporated area of Amador County. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.5.3.1 Mitigation

#### **Implement Mitigation Measure 4.5-2 (related to paleontological resources)**

#### Mitigation Measure 4.6-9: Paleontological Resource Assessment

When reviewing discretionary development proposals where a CEQA document is required, the County will require project applicants to conduct a paleontological resources impact assessment for projects proposed within the Modesto, Riverbank, Mehrten, and Ione Formations. These formations are sensitive for paleontological resources and underlie certain areas of the County (as shown in Exhibit 4.6-3). Impacts to paleontological resources will be evaluated on a site-specific basis, pursuant to the State CEQA Guidelines. Where such impacts are found to be potentially significant, the County will require project applicants to implement feasible mitigation measures to reduce impacts, such as construction worker personnel education, consultation with a qualified paleontologist should resources be encountered, avoidance of resources if feasible, and recovery and curation of specimens, as appropriate.

Actions that do not meet the CEQA definition of a "project" and therefore do not require an environmental analysis under the CEQA process shall not be required to perform a paleontological resources analysis.

#### 3.5.3.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measure 4.6-9 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Because Mitigation Measure 4.6-9 would require site-specific investigation prior to discretionary projects involving ground disturbance in sensitive formations in Amador County, and offers a menu of potentially feasible measures to either avoid resources, or to recover and curate specimens, impacts on unique paleontological resources or sites would be avoided or substantially reduced. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

#### 3.6 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

#### 3.6.1 INTERFERENCE WITH AN ADOPTED EMERGENCY-RESPONSE PLAN (IMPACT 4.8-2)

Implementation of the proposed General Plan would result in additional traffic and residents requiring evacuation in case of an emergency. The current emergency response plans do not consider growth and development under the General Plan, and new development has the potential to impede existing emergency access to some portions of the planning area in the event of a disaster. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.6.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.8-2a: Implement Program P-12, Emergency Response

- a. In order to maintain effective emergency and disaster response and reduce hazards related to fire, flood, and public safety emergencies, the County will implement and periodically update disaster plans, including the Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan and Emergency Operations Plan, to meet federal, State, and local emergency requirements. This effort will include planning to coordinate response actions and the identification and planning for evacuation routes for dam failure, wildfire, and flooding.
- b. The County will regularly assess the resources needed to effectively respond to disaster situations, and ensure proper staffing levels at emergency response agencies.
- c. The County will regularly assess the operational integrity of essential public facilities during emergencies, including flood emergencies, and identify actions to maintain operations, as necessary.
- d. The County will update equipment and training as necessary, including adopting training standards that meet or exceed State and national standards.
- e. The County will develop its capability to handle mass shelters in case of major disasters by maintaining a list of appropriate emergency shelter locations. These sites should be well connected to evacuation routes.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.8-2b: Implement Program D-10, Evacuation Planning and Routes

- a. When considering development proposals and discretionary actions, the County will ensure that actions will not prevent the implementation of emergency response plans or viability of evacuation routes established by the Office of Emergency Services.
- b. Establish adequate fire buffers along heavily traveled roads by promoting grazing, thinning, mowing, plowing, disking, or controlled burning of roadside grass. Favor those methods that have the least impact on air quality, such as grazing.

#### 3.6.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.8-2a and 4.8-2b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Mitigation Measures 4.8-2a and 4.8-2b would require that adequate fire buffers along heavily traveled roads be established, that evacuation routes and emergency response plans be considered in the development review process, and that the County ensure that development proposals and discretionary actions do not prevent the implementation of emergency response plans or

viability of evacuation routes. This impact would therefore be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

3.6.2 POTENTIAL EXPOSURE OF PEOPLE AND THE ENVIRONMENT TO SIGNIFICANT PHYSICAL AND/OR CHEMICAL HAZARDS RELATED TO ABANDONED OR UNUSED MINES (IMPACT 4.8-3)

Implementation of the General Plan could place new development in proximity to abandoned or unused mines, potentially exposing people and the environment to physical and/or chemical hazards. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.6.2.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.8-3a: Implement Program D-9, Hazardous Materials

- a. The County will maintain and update a list of hazardous sites, buildings, and uses in the unincorporated area, or use databases tracking the location of hazardous materials sites, buildings, and similar features, including active and abandoned mines. If possible, the County will make this list available to applicants.
- b. The County will consult the hazardous sites list to evaluate and condition future development applications and projects, as necessary, to protect environmental and public health.
- c. For applications submitted to the County involving construction activities at Cortese-listed sites, project applicant(s) shall comply with requirements of the California Department of Toxic Substance Control, the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, and/or other applicable agency regulating the investigation and cleanup of the site.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.8-3b: Implement Program D-8, Soils and Geotechnical Evaluation

- a. The County will require geotechnical evaluation and recommendations in compliance with California Building Code requirements before construction of buildings meant for occupancy.
- b. The County will provide any available soil shrink-swell information upon request, and ensure appropriate foundation elements are included on all projects proposed in areas prone to expansive soils.
- c. New structures and improvements shall incorporate project features avoiding or minimizing the hazards identified through geotechnical evaluation to the satisfaction of the County.

#### 3.6.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.8-3a and 4.8-3b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.8-3a and 4.8-3b would prevent significant impacts related to potential exposure of people and the environment to physical and/or chemical hazards associated with active and abandoned mines because the location of mines would be documented, risks would be substantially reduced through permit conditions or requirements when granting discretionary or building permits, and geotechnical surveys would be required to include identification of potential subsurface voids associated with past mining activities. Risks would be substantially reduced through project conditions when approving discretionary projects and through requirements in building permits, in accordance with the California Building Code and other federal, state, and local regulations. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

# 3.6.3 CREATE A SIGNIFICANT HAZARD THROUGH LOCATION ON SITES ON THE CORTESE LIST (IMPACT 4.8-4)

Implementation of the General Plan could place new residential, commercial, or industrial uses in proximity to Cortese-listed sites. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.6.3.1 Mitigation

#### **Implement Mitigation Measure 4.8-3a**

#### Mitigation Measure 4.8-4: Implement Program P-14, Hazardous Materials Tracking

- a. In order to avoid or substantially reduce hazards related to the use, transport, or disposal of hazardous materials, the County will continue implementing the Certified Unified Program Agency program, identifying businesses using, storing, and/or transporting hazardous materials. The County will continue to monitor these operations, and will require compliance with State and federal laws.
- b. The County will review, revise, and continue permitting and inspection practices for businesses using, storing, and/or transporting hazardous materials, and will provide public agencies (the sheriff, fire departments, California Highway Patrol, and city police departments) with a list of such businesses upon request to encourage hazardous material training before an event occurs.

#### 3.6.3.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.8-3a and 4.8-4 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.8-3a and 4.8-4 would prevent significant hazards from development on sites on the Cortese List because the County would require that applications and activities on Cortese-listed sites comply with requirements of regulatory agencies, including cleanup requirements, designed to protect public health and the environment. This impact would be therefore reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

#### 3.7 Hydrology and Water Quality

# 3.7.1 VIOLATION OF WATER QUALITY STANDARDS OR WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS, OR OTHERWISE SUBSTANTIALLY DEGRADE WATER QUALITY (IMPACT 4.9-1)

Implementation of the General Plan could result in additional water pollutant discharges from surface runoff, construction activities, on-site wastewater treatment systems, mining activities, agricultural activities, and municipal and industrial point source. An increase in the amount of impervious surfaces (e.g., rooftops, sidewalks, driveways, streets, parking lots) as a result of implementation of the General Plan would result in higher rates of runoff during rain events. Surface runoff from impervious surfaces can be a source of surface water pollution. Although the goals and policies of the General Plan include Low Impact Development and other stormwater management and urban runoff pollution prevention practices, implementation requirements are not specified and therefore, this impact would be significant.

Onsite wastewater treatment systems could result in increased contamination of groundwater and surface water resources; however, implementation of General Plan policies and existing regulations assures that such impacts would be less than significant. Discharges from mining activities could adversely affect both surface and groundwater quality as well as aquatic ecosystems; however, implementation of General Plan policies and the Central Valley RWQCB Mining Program assures that such impacts would be less than significant. Discharges from agricultural activities could adversely affect water quality through the

discharge of nutrients, sediment, pathogens, pesticides, metals, and salts into surface waters, or through percolation to groundwater, however, implementation of General Plan policies and the Central Valley RWQCB ILRP assures that such impacts would be less than significant.

Discharges from municipal and industrial point sources (such as wastewater treatment plants) could result in surface and groundwater contamination if effluent is discharged without appropriate treatment. These point sources are regulated under Central Valley RWQCB NPDES permits and/or WDRs, which include requirements governing the types and amount of discharge and monitoring and reporting requirements specific to each permitted facility. NPDES permits and WDRs, and RWQCB enforcement of these permits, would assure impacts from municipal and industrial discharges would be less than significant because these permits set limits on the amount of pollutants that can be discharged to waterbodies through technology-based and/or water quality based effluent limits and monitoring is required to verify performance.

#### 3.7.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.9-1a: Implement Program P-5b, Stormwater Management

a. Develop a recommended menu of best management practices (BMPs) to limit soil erosion and runoff from residential, commercial, mining, industrial and hazardous materials sites, which may include (but are not limited to) reduced pavement cover, permeable pavement, and drainage features which increase infiltration and groundwater recharge. The County will require use of some or all of these measures as permit conditions to reduce or avoid adverse erosion, water quality, and hydrology effects, including potential effects on the lifespan of existing water storage facilities. The menu may include low-impact development practices (such as naturalized stormwater management techniques and climate appropriate landscaping) which should be reviewed as part of Program P-1(e).

#### Mitigation Measure 4.9-1b: Implement Program P-5a, Stormwater Management

a. The County will develop and implement a comprehensive stormwater management program. The objective of this program is to reduce adverse hydrology and water quality impacts by limiting the quantity and increasing the water quality of runoff flowing to the County's streams and rivers.

This program will incorporate stormwater management programs for agricultural land that are developed and maintained within the Amador County Department of Agriculture and follow state agricultural guidelines.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.9-1c: Implement Program P-1e, Zoning Code and Development Regulations

a. The County will review its design and improvement standards (in Chapter 17 of the Amador County Code), and modify codes and specifications as needed to provide for the use of low impact development techniques. The objective of these changes is to maintain the County's surface- and groundwater quality.

#### 3.7.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.9-1a, 4.9-1b, and 4.9-1c have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Mitigation Measure 4.9-1a would include development of a menu of BMPs to be implemented by future projects under the General Plan. Under Mitigation Measure 4.9-1b, implementation of a comprehensive stormwater management program and improvement of

existing drainage and development of new infrastructure, when needed, would be protective of water quality. Mitigation Measure 4.9-1c would require that LID techniques be used for new development.

Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.9-1a, 4.9-1b, and 4.9-1c would reduce water quality effects from nonpoint sources to a less-than-significant level because appropriate BMPs and LID features would prevent violations of water quality standards or WDRs, or substantial degradation of water quality.

#### 3.7.2 On-Site and Downstream Erosion, and Sedimentation (Impact 4.9-2)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in new development in the planning area, including buildings, structures, paved areas, roadways, utilities, and other improvements. This would increase the amount of impervious surfaces, thereby increasing the total volume and peak discharge rate of stormwater runoff, potentially altering local drainage patterns and increasing watershed flow rates above the natural background level (i.e., peak flow rates). Increased peak flow rates may exacerbate erosion in overland flow and drainage swales and creeks, and result in downstream sedimentation. Sedimentation, in turn, could increase the rate of deposition in natural receiving waters and reduce conveyance capacities, resulting in an increased risk of flooding. Erosion of upstream areas and related downstream sedimentation typically leads to adverse changes to water quality and hydrology. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.7.2.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure: Implement Mitigation Measure 4.9-1a

#### Mitigation Measure 4.9-2: Implement Program P-1c, Zoning Code and Development Regulations

a. The County will adopt development regulations with the objective of reducing the potential for erosion and landslides. These regulations include requirements to avoid locating development on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable or would become unstable as a result of the project. The regulations will also include site grading standards to avoid making unstable slopes steeper.

#### 3.7.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.9-1a and 4.9-2 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.9-1a and 4.9-2 would reduce this impact because the LID standards and other BMPs would assure that implementation of the General Plan would not result in substantial on- or off-site erosion or siltation, result in increased on- or off-site flooding or siltation, or exceed the capacity of stormwater drainage systems. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

#### 3.7.3 CONSTRUCTION-RELATED WATER QUALITY EFFECTS (IMPACT 4.9-3)

Construction and grading activities during development consistent with the General Plan could result in soil erosion and stormwater discharges of suspended solids and increased turbidity. Such activities could mobilize other pollutants from project construction sites as contaminated runoff to on-site and ultimately off-site drainage channels. Many construction-related wastes have the potential to degrade existing water quality. Project construction activities that are implemented without mitigation could violate water quality standards or cause direct harm to aquatic organisms. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.7.3.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.9-3: Implement Program D-5, Stormwater Protection

- a. Prior to the approval of project construction and grading activities, project applicant(s) shall prepare a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan consistent with the statewide National Pollution Discharge and Elimination System stormwater permit for general construction activity. Project applicant(s) shall also prepare and submit the appropriate Notices of Intent and any other necessary engineering plans and specifications for pollution prevention and control (including a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan) to Amador County and the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board. Where practical, stormwater management requirements related to the County's comprehensive stormwater management program (described in Program P-5) may be incorporated into the SWPPP. The objective of this program is to reduce or avoid impacts related to stormwater pollution.
- b. Where required by law, best management practices (identified in the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan shall be in place throughout all site work.
- c. All construction contractors shall retain a copy of the approved Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan on the construction site, when required by law.

#### 3.7.3.2 *Findings*

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measure 4.9-3 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan Implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.9-3 would substantially reduce this impact because preparation and implementation of a SWPPP with appropriate BMPs such as source control, detention basins, revegetation and erosion control would be required, in order to conform with the SWRCB statewide NPDES stormwater permit for general construction activity, and any other necessary site-specific WDRs or waivers under state or local regulations. This mitigation measure would assure that construction and grading activities would not violate water quality standards, otherwise substantially degrade water quality, or cause substantial harm to aquatic organisms. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

#### 3.7.4 EXPOSURE OF PEOPLE OR STRUCTURES TO FLOOD HAZARDS (IMPACT 4.9-5)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in new development in the planning area, including buildings, structures, paved areas, roadways, utilities, and other improvements. This could result in the exposure of people or structures to flood hazards. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.7.4.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.9-5a: Implement Program P-4, Flood Planning

- a. In order to avoid or substantially reduce the risk that flooding poses to people and property, the County will conduct an annual review of the floodplain map shown in Figure S-1 of the Safety Element, comparing Figure S-1 to flood mapping available from state and federal agencies such as the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the Department of Water Resources. The purpose of this review is to ensure changes are noted and corresponding portions of the General Plan, including land use designations if necessary, are revised.
- b. The County will update flood protection policies and programs in the General Plan and applicable land use regulations (including the Zoning Code) to integrate data from the State Plan of Flood Control and the Central Valley Flood Protection Plan on an annual basis, if required, based on the

annual review. For flood-related revisions to the Safety Element, the County will consult with relevant agencies serving the County, consistent with State law. Subsequent subdivision approvals, development agreements, permits, and other County entitlements will incorporate these revised policies and regulations.

c. The General Plan's description of locations which may accommodate floodwater for groundwater recharge and stormwater management will be updated following subsequent annual reviews, as necessary

#### Mitigation Measure 4.9-5b: Implement Program P-1b, Zoning Code and Development Regulations

a. The County will update development regulations to require on-site retention and detention of stormwater, with the objective of avoiding potential increases in downstream flood flows. The County will not regulate stormwater retention and detention to a greater degree than state or federal requirements, unless it is determined by the Board of Supervisors that a clear and overarching need exists.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.9-5c: Implement Program D-1a(11), Development Proposal Evaluation

a. The County will review proposed projects for consistency with goals, policies, and implementation programs of this general plan.

Evaluation criteria for discretionary development proposals include:

• Proximity to and compatibility with flood prone areas. In order to substantially reduce or avoid flood hazards, no development (as defined in 15.16.050 of the Amador County Code) may be proposed in floodways, and floodproofing must be adequate (including elevation above 100-year flood stage) for all developed uses proposed within the floodplain.

#### 3.7.4.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.9-5a, 4.9-5b, and 4.9-5c have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.9-5a, 4.9-5b, and 4.9-5c would require enforcement of and compliance with existing state and federal flood control regulations, and would minimize the exposure of people or structures to flood hazards resulting from development under the General Plan. Mitigation Measure 4.9-5a would require that the latest and most accurate flood mapping be used in County design standards. Mitigation Measure 4.9-5b and 4.9-5c include requirements that would prohibit development of structures in floodways, and ensure adequate drainage and detention of stormwater in the appropriate facilities, avoiding increases in severity for downstream flooding. Through these mitigation measures, implementation of the General Plan would not place housing within a floodways or expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving flooding. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

#### 3.8 Noise

3.8.1 EXPOSE PEOPLE RESIDING OR WORKING WITHIN AN AIRPORT LAND USE PLAN OR WITHIN 2 MILES OF A PUBLIC AIRPORT OR PUBLIC USE AIRPORT, OR IN THE VICINITY OF A PRIVATE AIRSTRIP TO EXCESSIVE NOISE LEVELS (IMPACT 4.11-6)

Long-term noise generated by airports could exceed noise level limits at existing and potential future sensitive receptors located in proximity. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.8.1.1 Mitigation

Mitigation Measure: Implement Mitigation Measures 4.11-2, 4.11-5a, and 4.11-5b

#### Mitigation Measure 4.11-6: Implement Program D-11(j), Noise Standards

The County will require that development proposals in the vicinity of airports/airstrips, including Westover Field and Eagle's Nest Airport, demonstrate compatibility with current and projected airport noise levels for each facility (including the Airport Land Use Plan) in accordance with the noise standards presented in Table N-3 [Table 4.11-1] of the General Plan.

#### 3.8.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.11-2, 4.11-5a, 4.11-5b, and 4.11-6 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.11-2, 4.11-5a, 4.11-5b, and 4.11-6 would prevent people and workers from being exposed to excessive airport noise levels because future noise sensitive uses proposed within the 65 CNEL contour of an airport would be required to consider noise generated at any nearby airports and incorporate design measures to insure that the noise standards associated with such uses, especially interior standards, would be achieved. This impact would be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

## 3.8.2 EXPOSE PERSONS TO OR GENERATE EXCESSIVE GROUNDBORNE VIBRATION OR GROUNDBORNE NOISE LEVELS (IMPACT 4.11-7)

Short-term project-generated construction source vibration levels could exceed Caltrans' recommended standard of 0.2 in/sec peak particle velocity (PPV) with respect to the prevention of structural damage for normal buildings and the FTA maximum acceptable vibration standard of 80 vibration decibels (VdB) with respect to human response for residential uses (i.e., annoyance), at vibration-sensitive land uses. However, vibration from vehicular traffic and industrial and commercial operations would not exceed Caltrans and FTA recommended standards. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.8.2.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.11-7a: Construction Vibration Setbacks

The County will require that development proposals that would potentially generate construction vibration in proximity to vibration sensitive receptors (structures and humans), employ appropriate setback distances for operating construction equipment and vehicles to reduce vibration levels below the recommended FTA and Caltrans guidelines of 80 VdB and 0.2 in/sec PPV, respectively when located within 500 feet and 300 feet of impact pile drivers, and within 70 feet and 45 feet of large bulldozers (and other heavy-duty construction equipment). Construction vibration impact and mitigation, including site-specific setback distances based on the project's anticipated vibration would be determined during project-specific CEQA review.

#### Mitigation Measure 14.11-7b: Mining Operation Vibration Setbacks

The County will require mining development proposals that would potentially generate vibration in proximity to vibration sensitive receptors (structures and humans), to employ appropriate setback distances for operating construction equipment and vehicles to reduce vibration levels below the recommended FTA and Caltrans guidelines of 80 VdB and 0.2 in/sec PPV, respectively. Vibration impact and mitigation, including site-specific setback distances based on the project's anticipated vibration, would be determined during project-specific CEQA review.

#### 3.8.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.11-7a and 4.11-7b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. With implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.11-7a and 4.11-7b, program-level vibration impacts from construction and mining would be less than significant after mitigation. These mitigation measures would assure that people are not exposed to excessive groundborne vibration. Individual new projects would be required to undergo project-specific environmental review. If project-level significant impacts are identified, setback distances would be required under CEQA to meet the performance standards in Mitigation Measures 4.11-7a and 4.11-7b.

#### 3.9 Public Services and Utilities

### 3.9.1 INCREASED DEMAND FOR FIRE PROTECTION FACILITIES, SYSTEMS, EQUIPMENT, AND SERVICES (IMPACT 4.13-5)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in increased demand for fire protection facilities and services within the AFPD service area, resulting in the need for additional facilities, the construction of which could have adverse impacts on the physical environment, and staff and equipment to maintain the existing level of service. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.9.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.13-5a: Implement Program P-6, Effective County Services

- a. In order to evaluate and maintain the effectiveness of County services, The County will develop service standards for library, public safety, fire response, emergency response, human, and social services. Actual performance will be compared to these standards on an annual basis, and results presented to the Board, with recommendations for action if necessary.
- b. Develop a standard for public safety staffing, facilities, and equipment. Based on the cost of maintaining this standard, the County will establish a program consistent with the Mitigation Fee Act to levy proportional impact fees on new development proposals.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.13-5b: Implement Program P-12, Emergency Response

a. In order to maintain effective emergency and disaster response and reduce hazards related to fire, flood, and public safety emergencies, the County will implement and periodically update disaster plans, including the Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan and Emergency Operations Plan, to meet federal, state, and local emergency requirements. This effort will include planning to coordinate response actions and the identification and planning for evacuation routes for dam failure, wildfire, and flooding.

- b. The County will regularly assess the resources needed to effectively respond to disaster situations, and ensure proper staffing levels at emergency response agencies.
- c. The County will regularly assess the operational integrity of essential public facilities during emergencies, including flood emergencies, and identify actions to maintain operations, as necessary.
- d. The County will update equipment and training as necessary, including adopting training standards that meet or exceed state and national standards.
- e. The County will develop its capability to handle mass shelters in case of major disasters by maintaining a list of appropriate emergency shelter locations. These sites should be well connected to evacuation routes.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.13-5c: Implement Program D-1a(3), Development Proposal Evaluation

a. The County will review proposed projects for consistency with goals, policies, and implementation programs of this general plan.

Evaluation criteria for discretionary development proposals will include:

Adequate provision of emergency services, including fire services. Applicants must demonstrate
that emergency services meeting the County's standards (see Program P-6 [Effective County
Services]) can be provided to the proposed project. The objective of this program is to avoid or
substantially reduce impacts to public services.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.13-5d: Implement Program F-3, Fire Services Funding

a. The County will consult with the Amador Fire Protection District to establish funding mechanisms, including impact fees, to offset fire protection costs for new development in areas of high wildfire risk.

#### *3.9.1.2 Findings*

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.13-5a, 4.13-5b, 4.13-5c, and 4.13-5d have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.13-5a, 4.13-5b, 4.13-5c, and 4.13-5d would reduce this impact because the County would establish service standards for fire protection, permit future development only in areas that meet those standards, and establish and collect fees necessary to support fire services. Impacts of specific new or expanded fire protection facilities would be mitigated through project-specific CEQA review. This impact would therefore be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

# 3.9.2 INCREASED DEMAND FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION FACILITIES, SYSTEMS, EQUIPMENT, AND SERVICES. (IMPACT 4.13-6)

Implementation of the General Plan would increase the demand for new or expanded police protection facilities and services, resulting in the need for additional facilities, the construction of which could have adverse impacts on the physical environment, and staff and equipment to maintain the existing level of service. This impact would be significant.

#### 3.9.2.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure: Implement Mitigation Measures 4.13-5a, 4.13-5b, and 4.13-5c

#### 3.9.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.13-5a, 4.13-5b, and 4.13-5 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.13-5a, 4.13-5b, and 4.13-5c would reduce this impact because the County would establish service standards for public safety services, and establish and collect fees necessary to support these services. Impacts of specific new or expanded law enforcement facilities would be mitigated through project-specific CEQA review. This impact would therefore be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

### 3.9.3 REQUIRE THE CONSTRUCTION OF NEW OR EXPANDED STORMWATER DRAINAGE FACILITIES. (IMPACT 4.13-9)

New and expanded stormwater drainage facilities would be needed to accommodate future land uses consistent with the General Plan. The impact would be significant.

#### 3.9.3.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.13-9a: Implement Program F- 1b, Infrastructure Improvements

b. The County will maintain and improve existing drainage and stormwater infrastructure. Where right-of-way is available, new drainage and stormwater infrastructure may be developed as needed. The County will explore consolidation of this function to a single County department or responsible agency. When maintaining or developing drainage and/or stormwater infrastructure, the County will consider vector control needs.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.13-9b: Implement Program P-5, Stormwater Management

- a. The County will develop and implement a comprehensive stormwater management program. The objective of this program is to reduce adverse hydrology and water quality impacts by limiting the quantity and increasing the water quality of runoff flowing to the county's streams and rivers.
  - This program will incorporate stormwater management programs for agricultural land that are developed and maintained within the Amador County Department of Agriculture
- b. Develop a recommended menu of best management practices (BMPs) to limit soil erosion and runoff from residential, commercial, mining, industrial and hazardous materials sites, which may include (but are not limited to) reduced pavement cover, permeable pavement, and drainage features which increase infiltration and groundwater recharge. The County will require use of some or all of these measures as permit conditions to reduce or avoid adverse erosion, water quality, and hydrology effects, including potential effects on the lifespan of existing water storage facilities. The menu may include low-impact development practices (such as naturalized stormwater management techniques and climate appropriate landscaping) which should be reviewed as part of Program P-1(e).

#### 3.9.3.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.13-9a and 4.13-9 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.13-9a and 4.13-9b would reduce impacts to stormwater drainage facilities because the County would ensure that new stormwater infrastructure is developed as needed to accommodate new growth, and would develop and implement a

comprehensive stormwater management program to reduce hydrology and water quality impacts. Impacts of specific new or expanded stormwater infrastructure would also be mitigated through project-specific CEQA review. This impact would therefore be reduced to less than significant after mitigation.

# 4 Significant and Unavoidable Impacts<sup>3</sup>

The Final EIR identified certain impacts within the following resource categories that cannot be mitigated to a less than significant level: aesthetics, agriculture, air quality, biological resources, greenhouse gases (GHGs), hydrology and water quality, population and housing, public services and utilities, and traffic and transportation. The Board hereby finds that, as explained below, for most of these impacts, feasible mitigation measures have been identified in the EIR and adopted that will lessen the following significant environmental impacts, but not to a less than significant level.

The Board finds, based on the facts set forth in the record, which include but are not limited to the facts as set forth below, those facts contained in the EIR and the Responses to Comments, and any other facts set forth in materials prepared by the County and/or County consultants, that there are no feasible mitigation measures or alternatives available to avoid or substantially lessen these impacts to a less than significant level.

#### 4.1 Aesthetics

#### 4.1.1 EFFECT ON SCENIC VISTAS (IMPACT 4.1-1)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in new development in the planning area, including buildings, structures, paved areas, roadways, utilities, and other improvements, potentially altering scenic vistas in the planning area. These new uses would occur west of Dew Drop, including in areas visible from major roadways such as SR 16, SR 49, SR 88, and Ridge Road; thereby substantially altering views from these roadways. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.1.1.1 Mitigation

### Mitigation Measure 4.1-1: Condition Projects to Minimize Effects on Scenic Vistas and Visual Character

- a. To reduce impacts associated with scenic vistas and visual character, the County will require that new projects be conditioned to incorporate measures to reduce their effect on scenic views and visual character to the maximum extent practicable. Conditions may include, but are not limited to, the following:
  - Limiting building heights.
  - Placing and orienting buildings to reduce or avoid impacts on scenic vistas or to be consistent with the existing visual character.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> EIR Chapter 4 provides further factual support for these findings.

- Regulating setbacks to be compatible with surrounding uses and existing visual character.
- Regulating signs to reduce or avoid impacts to scenic views or visual character.

#### 4.1.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measure 4.1-1 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.1-1 (Condition Projects to Minimize Effects on Scenic Vistas and Visual Character) would reduce impacts associated with scenic vistas and visual character by imposing conditions, such as limits on building heights, that reduce or avoids impacts. However, there are no feasible mitigation measures available that could fully preserve existing publicly accessible views throughout the planning area and prevent substantial impacts on scenic views, while still accommodating future growth in the County. Therefore, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

#### 4.1.2 DEGRADATION OF VISUAL CHARACTER (IMPACT 4.1-3)

Implementation of the General Plan would alter the existing visual character of unincorporated Amador County through changes and intensification in rural residential areas, agricultural lands, and conifer forests. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.1.2.1 Mitigation

#### **Implement Mitigation Measure 4.1-1**

#### 4.1.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measure 4.1-1 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.1-1 would reduce impacts to visual character but not to a less-than-significant level. No feasible mitigation is available that could fully preserve existing visual character throughout the planning area and prevent substantial degradation of visual character, while also accommodating future growth in the County. Because the basic purpose of the General Plan is to provide a framework governing future growth in the unincorporated part of the County, including accommodating a projected population increase to meet economic development and housing needs, no feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce the potential for new development to reduce effects on visual character to a less-than-significant level. The County cannot meet its economic development and housing needs without accommodating additional residents and workers, and the physical facilities necessary to accommodate these residents and workers will affect the existing visual character within the planning area. Therefore, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

#### 4.1.3 INCREASE IN LIGHT AND GLARE AND SKYGLOW EFFECTS (IMPACT 4.1-4)

Implementation of the General Plan would require lighting of new development, which could cause increased light and glare, potentially obscuring views of stars and other features of the night sky. In addition, nighttime lighting or the presence of reflective surfaces on buildings in commercial and

industrial areas may result in light and glare shining on existing and proposed residences in the vicinity of these land uses and onto motorists traveling along SR 49, SR 88, Ridge Road, and other local roadways in day and nighttime conditions. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.1.3.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.1-4: Condition Projects to Minimize Light and Reflectance

- a. To reduce impacts associated with light and glare, the County will require that new projects be conditioned to incorporate measures to reduce light and reflectance to the maximum extent practicable. Conditions may include, but are not limited to, the following:
  - Exterior building materials on non-residential structures shall be composed of a minimum 50% low-reflectance, non-polished finishes.
  - Bare metallic surfaces (e.g., pipes, vents, light fixtures) shall be painted or etched to minimize reflectance.
  - Require public lighting in commercial, industrial, and residential areas to be of a type(s) that are shielded and downward directed, utilizing light sources that are the best available technology for eliminating light bleed and reflectance into surrounding areas to the maximum extent possible.
  - Prohibit light fixtures that are of unusually high intensity or brightness or that blink or flash.
  - Use automatic shutoffs or motion sensors for lighting features to further reduce excess nighttime light.

#### 4.1.3.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measure 4.1-4 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. New urban development under the General Plan would permanently add nighttime lighting in areas that are currently relatively void of nighttime light and glare. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.1-4 would reduce the potential light and glare impacts of future development projects to the maximum extent practicable, but would not reduce the impacts to a less-than-significant level because it is infeasible to eliminate all substantial future sources of light and glare. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. Thus, the impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.2 Agricultural and Forest Resources

#### 4.2.1 CONVERSION OF FARMLAND (IMPACT 4.2-1)

Under the General Plan, future development, including residential dwellings or lot splits within the RR (Rural-Residential), RL (Residential Low Density) and AT (Agricultural Transition) land use designations, future mining activities within the MRZ (Mineral Resource Zone) designated areas, future public facilities in the PS (Public Service) designation, and construction of roadways and utilities, could

result in the conversion of 310.5 acres of Farmland to nonagricultural uses. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.2.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.2-1a: Implement Program P-11, Farmland

- a. It is the County's objective to maintain key farmlands for agricultural and agritourism uses, and reduce impacts related to conversion of Farmland (Prime Farmland, Farmland of Local or Statewide Importance, and Unique Farmland) to other uses. The County will seek to keep Farmland in agricultural designations when land use or zoning changes are proposed in the unincorporated area. For future changes to non-agricultural designations that affect Farmland areas, the County will reduce or avoid loss of Farmland to the extent feasible.
- b. The County will also work with cities and LAFCO to promote the protection of Farmland, including identifying alternatives to expansion of spheres of influence into areas of Farmland.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.2-1b: Implement Program D-1a(9), Development Proposal Evaluation

a. The County will review proposed projects for consistency with goals, policies, and implementation programs of this general plan.

Evaluation criteria for discretionary development proposals include:

• The presence of Farmland, proximity of development to working farms, and other effects on agricultural resources. Where the potential for conflicts exist that could adversely affect the operations of working farms, the County will work with the applicant to provide setbacks or use other site planning techniques (such as berms, fencing, landscaping, and building orientation), as appropriate, to substantially reduce or avoid impacts to agriculture from encroachment by other conflicting land uses. Include conditions (such as sizing of facilities or service area boundaries) for proposals which would require infrastructure improvements into areas of Farmland to avoid inducing urban growth.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.2-1c: Implement Agricultural Land Conversion Easements

In order to reduce the loss of Farmland (Prime Farmland, Farmland of Statewide Importance, and Unique Farmland) through conversion to non-agricultural uses, the County shall require that when granting discretionary approvals or permits, the applicant shall purchase an agricultural conservation easement to mitigate for the loss of Farmland exceeding 5 acres, to be granted in perpetuity. The easement should be purchased for equivalent value Farmland in Amador County at a minimum acreage ratio of 1:1.

#### 4.2.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.2-1a, 4.2-1b, and 4.2-1c have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.2-1a, 4.2-1b, and 4.2-1c would reduce impacts related to the conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use because the County will seek to reduce or avoid conversion of Farmland to the extent feasible, including through evaluation of projects to use site planning techniques to avoid impacts related to encroachment by other land uses. The County will also condition projects to ensure that residential development is compatible with surrounding agricultural activities. The County will also reduce the cumulative loss of Farmland by requiring that one acre of Farmland be protected through conservation easements for each acre of

Farmland that is permanently removed from agricultural use. However, because no new Farmland would be created, and the productivity of existing Farmland would not be improved as a result of implementing Mitigation Measures 4.2-1a, 4.2-1b, and 4.2-1c, full compensation for losses of Farmland would not be achieved and a net loss of Farmland could still occur. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. This impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Comments on the NOP from the Foothill Conservancy suggested that the EIR consider 3:1 mitigation for agricultural land conversion. This mitigation measure was not included in the EIR because the 1:1 mitigation proposed in Mitigation Measure 4.2-1c, together with Mitigation Measures 4.2-1a and 1b, substantially reduce Farmland conversion impacts, and because a net loss of Farmland would occur even with 3:1 mitigation. In addition, 3:1 mitigation may be economically infeasible for project applicants to implement, as evidenced by the fact that no other California jurisdiction imposes a uniform 3:1 mitigation ratio for agricultural land conversion.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

#### 4.2.2 LAND USE CONFLICTS WITH EXISTING AGRICULTURAL USES (IMPACT 4.2-3)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in changes to the physical environment which could result in conflicts with agricultural uses. These conflicts could impair agricultural activities and potentially cause conversion of agricultural lands to other uses. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.2.2.1 Mitigation

#### **Implement Mitigation Measures 4.2-1a, 4.2-1b, and 4.2-1c**

#### 4.2.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.2-1a, 4.2-1b, and 4.2-1c have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.2-1a, 4.2-1b and 4.2-1c would reduce impacts related to conflict with agricultural uses by requiring use of setbacks and site planning techniques to buffer agricultural lands from incompatible uses and by reducing future zoning and land use changes that would affect Farmland. Implementation of these mitigation measures would substantially reduce potential conflicts, but not to a less-than-significant level. No additional feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce potential land use conflicts to a less-than-significant level. Therefore, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Comments on the NOP from the Foothill Conservancy suggested that the EIR consider as a mitigation measure 200-foot setbacks for uses conflicting with agricultural uses. This mitigation measure was not included in the EIR because Mitigation Measure 4.2-1b would substantially reduce potential conflicts with agricultural uses. Where the potential for conflicts exist that could adversely affect agricultural operations, the County will work with the applicant to provide setbacks or use other site planning techniques (such as berms, fencing, landscaping, and building orientation), as appropriate, to substantially reduce or avoid impacts to agriculture from encroachment by other conflicting land uses.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

#### 4.2.3 RESULT IN CONVERSION OF FORESTLAND TO NON-FOREST USE (IMPACT 4.2-5)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in land use changes, including construction of new residential, commercial, and industrial uses which could directly and indirectly result in conversion of forestland to non-forest use. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.2.3.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.2-5a: Implement Program P-10, Timber Production

- a. In order to reduce impacts related to conversion of forestland, timberland, and Timberland Production Zones (TPZ) to other uses, the County will seek to keep forestland and timberland in compatible land use designations and zone districts. The County will maintain land presently designated Open Forest or other general plan designations and zoned TPZ in those current general plan designations if a change would result in the conversion of existing forested lands.
- b. The County will continue to designate lands which are prime timberlands as Timber Production Zone areas. For lands so designated, the County will encourage responsible forestry and timber harvesting.
- c. The County will continue to encourage value-added activities (such as sawmills, cogeneration plants, timber-based manufacturing, and other uses) which contribute to the economic viability of timber production at appropriate locations.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.2-5b: Implement Program D-1a(10), Development Proposal Evaluation

 The County will review proposed projects for consistency with goals, policies, and implementation programs of this general plan.

Evaluation criteria for discretionary development proposals include:

Proximity to and compatibility with forestland, timberland, and Timberland Production Zones.
The County will work with the applicant to provide setbacks or use other site planning techniques
(such as berms, fencing, landscaping and building orientation) in order to substantially reduce or
avoid impacts to forestland, timberland, or Timberland Production Zones from encroachment by
incompatible land uses.

#### 4.2.3.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.2-5a and 4.2-5b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.2-5a and 4.2-5b would substantially lessen potential conversion of timber- and forestland to non-forest use by keeping forestlands in compatible designations, and evaluating discretionary project proposals to reduce encroachment by incompatible uses into areas of timberland. However, conversions of timber- and forestland would still occur, and no additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. Therefore, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.3 Air Quality

#### 4.3.1 CONSTRUCTION-RELATED EMISSIONS (IMPACT 4.3-1)

Implementation of the General Plan would lead to project-generated construction activities that would result in emissions of ROG,  $NO_x$ ,  $PM_{10}$ , and  $PM_{2.5}$  with the potential to substantially contribute to emissions concentrations that exceed the NAAQS and CAAQS (Table 4.3-1). Construction-related emissions of these criteria air pollutants and precursors could violate or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation, result in a cumulatively considerable net increase in non-attainment criteria pollutants, and/or expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.3.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.3-1a: Implement Measures to Control Particulate Matter Emissions Generated by Construction Activities

- a. The County will require each project applicant, as a condition of development project discretionary approval, to implement fugitive dust control measures to meet the requirements of Amador Air District Rule 218 (Fugitive Dust). Example measures include, but are not limited to:
  - Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are not limited to soil piles, graded areas, unpaved parking areas, staging areas, and access roads.
  - Cover or maintain at least two feet of free board space on haul trucks transporting soil, sand, or
    other loose material on the site. Any haul trucks that would be traveling along major roadways
    should be covered.
  - Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved construction roads to 15 miles per hour (mph).
  - All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to be paved should be completed as soon as
    possible. In addition, building pads should be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding
    or soil binders are used.
  - Maintain all construction equipment in proper working condition according to manufacturer's specifications. The equipment must be checked by a certified mechanic and determine to be running in proper condition before it is operated.
  - Water exposed soil with adequate frequency for continued moist soil. However, do not overwater to the extent that sediment flows off the site.
  - Suspend excavation, grading, and/or demolition activity when wind speeds exceed 20 mph.
  - Plant vegetative ground cover (fast-germinating native grass seed) in disturbed areas as soon as possible. Water appropriately until vegetation is established.
  - Treat site accesses to a distance of 100 feet from the paved road with a 6 to 12-inch layer of wood chips, mulch, or gravel to reduce generation of road dust and road dust carryout onto public roads.

• Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the construction site regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take corrective action within 48 hours.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.3-1b: Reduce Exhaust Emissions from Construction Equipment

- b. The County will require each project applicant, as a condition of development project discretionary approval, to implement measures to reduce exhaust emissions from construction equipment. Example measures include:
  - Where feasible, equipment requiring the use of fossil fuels (e.g., diesel) shall be replaced or substituted with electrically driven equivalents (provided that they are not run via a portable generator set).
  - To the extent feasible, alternative fuels and emission controls shall be used to further reduce exhaust emissions.
  - Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing the time of idling to 5 minutes (as required by the state airborne toxics control measure [Title 13, Section 2485 of the California Code of Regulations]). Provide clear signage that posts this requirement for workers at the entrances to the site.
  - The hours of operation of heavy-duty equipment and/or the amount of equipment in use at any
    one time shall be limited.
  - Staging areas for heavy-duty construction equipment shall be located as far as possible from sensitive receptors.
  - Implement construction best management practices to minimize fugitive dust emissions. Best
    management practices should be approved by AAD and could include, but are not limited to
    Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District's Basic Construction Emission
    Control Practices. To the extent feasible, use best available control technology at the time of
    construction activities to minimize exhaust emissions from construction equipment and vehicles.
    Provide construction management plan for minimizing fugitive dust and exhaust emissions to
    Amador Air District prior to commencing construction activities.

#### 4.3.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.3-1a and 4.3-1b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Mitigation Measures 4.3-1a and 4.3-1b would reduce this impact, but not to a less-than-significant level. Construction ROG, NOx PM<sub>10</sub>, and PM<sub>2.5</sub> emissions could still violate or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation, result in a cumulatively considerable net increase in non-attainment criteria pollutants, and/or expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations because the intensity of construction activity and the acreage of ground disturbance that could occur at any one point in time, would be substantially high and/or take place in close proximity to existing or future planned sensitive receptors (e.g., residents, schools). No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. The impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

# 4.3.2 GENERATION OF LONG-TERM OPERATIONAL (REGIONAL) EMISSIONS OF ROG, $NO_X$ , $PM_{10}$ , AND $PM_{2.5}$ (IMPACT 4.3-2)

Operational area- and mobile-source emissions from implementation of the General Plan would lead to long-term operational emissions of ROG, NO<sub>x</sub>, PM<sub>10</sub>, and PM<sub>2.5</sub> that could violate or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation, result in a cumulatively considerable net increase in non-attainment criteria pollutants, and/or expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.3.2.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.3-2a: Implement Reduction Measures for Discretionary Projects

- a. The County will require each project applicant, as a condition of development project discretionary approval, to implement measures to reduce operational emissions of criteria air pollutants. Measures to reduce operational emissions will only be required for projects that exceed the applicable thresholds of significance for ROG, NOx, PM<sub>10</sub>, or PM<sub>2.5</sub> emissions, as demonstrated by project-level CEQA analysis. It should be noted that measures and programs implemented as a result of the climate action plan would also reduce air quality emissions from new and existing projects. Example measures include:
  - Install solar, wind, and geothermal power systems and solar hot water heaters.
  - Install solar panels on unused roof and ground space and over carports and parking areas.
  - Promote "least polluting" ways to connect people and goods to their destinations.
  - Incorporate bicycle lanes, routes and facilities into roadway systems.
  - Require amenities for non-motorized transportation, such as secure and convenient bicycle parking.
  - Institute teleconferencing, telecommute and/or flexible work hour programs to reduce unnecessary employee transportation.
  - Provide information on alternative transportation options for consumers, residents, tenants and employees to reduce transportation-related emissions.
  - Purchase, or create incentives for purchasing, low or zero-emission vehicles.
  - Create a ride sharing program. Promote existing ride sharing programs e.g., by designating a
    certain percentage of parking spaces for ride sharing vehicles, designating adequate passenger
    loading and unloading for ride sharing vehicles, and providing a web site or message board for
    coordinating rides.
  - Enforce and follow limits regarding idling times for commercial vehicles, including delivery and construction vehicles.

• To the extent feasible and practical, construct new roadways for residential, commercial, or industrial projects in the County using materials that minimize particulate matter emissions (e.g., paved roads rather than unpaved, dirt roads). Roads should also be permeable when feasible and appropriate for the scale and intensity of planned use.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.3-2b: Implement Program D-7, Air Emissions and Sensitive Receptors

- a. In the review of development proposals, the County will require projects to comply with all applicable Amador Air District (AAD) rules, and obtain all required AAD permits.
- b. In the review of development proposals, the County will reference the guidelines presented in the ARB's Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective (ARB Land Use Handbook), or the Amador Air District guidelines and recommendations available at the time, when establishing buffers around existing or proposed sources of toxic air contaminants or odorous emissions. If the buffer distances stated in the ARB Land Use Handbook are maintained for sensitive receptors, projects should qualitatively evaluate if the proposed operational activities would exceed the assumptions used by ARB to develop the established buffer distances. If projects would be located closer than the prescribed buffer distances to sensitive receptors, would result in substantial TAC emissions directly or indirectly (e.g., industrial sources), or for land use projects that would expose sensitive receptors to substantial TAC concentrations (e.g., residential land uses located near existing TAC sources), the County will require an HRA to be performed by project applicants to determine whether existing or proposed on-site sensitive receptors will be exposed to significant levels of TAC emissions. An HRA would only be required for those projects that would be anticipated to expose sensitive receptors to substantial TAC concentrations based on the project description or other relevant characteristics as determined by County Planning staff during the environmental review process. If the results of the HRA indicate a significant impact, the individual project applicant shall employ measures (e.g., air filters, project redesign) to reduce exposures to levels below the acceptable limits (e.g., 10 in a million excess cancer risk, 1.0 health hazard index).

#### 4.3.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.3-2a and 4.3-2b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Mitigation Measures 4.3-2a and 4.3-2b would reduce this impact, but not to a less-than-significant level, because project-level mitigation cannot be guaranteed to be effective for all projects. Operational  $PM_{10}$ , and  $PM_{2.5}$  concentrations could still violate or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation, result in a cumulatively considerable net increase in non-attainment criteria pollutants, and/or expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less than significant level. The impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

# 4.3.3 EXPOSURE OF SENSITIVE RECEPTORS TO SHORT- AND LONG-TERM EMISSIONS OF TOXIC AIR CONTAMINANTS (IMPACT 4.3-4)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in exposure of sensitive receptors to short- and long-term emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants (TACs) from on-site stationary and mobile sources, or from off-site mobile sources. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.3.3.1 Mitigation

#### **Implement Mitigation Measure 4.3-2b.**

#### 4.3.3.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measure 4.3-2b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Where environmental review under CEQA indicates TAC concerns, the County will require individual projects constructed under the General Plan to also prepare an HRA, reduce exposure to sensitive receptors, and/or to implement alternative approaches to development that reduce exposure to toxic air contaminant sources. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.3-2b would lessen health-related risks associated with operational sources of TAC emissions. However, exposure to substantial TAC concentrations would not necessarily be reduced to less-than-significant levels. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. Therefore, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.4 Biological Resources

#### 4.4.1 ADVERSE EFFECT ON SPECIAL-STATUS SPECIES (IMPACT 4.4.-1)

Implementation of the General Plan would include new development in the planning area, including buildings, structures, paved areas, roadways, utilities, and other improvements. These new uses would occur in existing developed communities and undeveloped areas of the County. This would result in direct impacts to special-status species inhabiting future growth areas or in indirect impacts resulting from loss or modification of suitable habitat. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.4.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.4-1a: Implement Program D-4, Biological Resources

When considering discretionary development proposals, it is the County's objective to avoid or substantially reduce impacts to special-status species, riparian habitat, Ione chaparral, oak woodlands, and wetlands (including vernal pools and non-jurisdictional wetlands) through project design and modification to the extent feasible.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.4-1b: Special-Status Species Protection

When considering discretionary development proposals implementing the General Plan, the County, through CEQA reviews, will require assessments of potential habitat for special-status species on proposed projects sites, and avoidance or substantial reduction of impacts to that habitat through feasible alternatives or mitigation measures, including compensatory mitigation where unavoidable losses of occupied habitat would occur.

Mitigation measures will be developed consistent with applicable state and federal requirements. For those species for which published mitigation guidance exists (such as VELB, burrowing owl, and Swainson's hawk), developed mitigation measures will follow the guidance provided in these publications or provide a similar level of protection.

If previous published guidance does not exist, mitigation will be developed in consultation with the appropriate agencies (USFWS for federally listed plant, wildlife and fish species; NMFS for listed anadromous fish species; CCDFW for state listed species, species of special concern and CRPR-ranked species). The County will require project applicants to obtain any required take permits prior to project implementation.

#### 4.4.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a and 4.4-1b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a and 4.4-1b would reduce impacts on special-status species resulting from implementation of the General Plan by requiring the consideration of special-status species habitat in site selection, and by implementing mitigation in accordance with regulatory guidance and the best available science. Complete avoidance of all impacts would not be possible because special-status species would occur on land which would transition to developed land uses under the General Plan. Similarly, although these mitigation measures would lessen reduction in wildlife habitat and help prevent substantial reductions in the number or restrictions to the range of endangered and threatened species, substantial reductions in habitat could still occur. No additional feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. This impact would be significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.4.2 SUBSTANTIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON IONE CHAPARRAL, A SENSITIVE NATURAL COMMUNITY (IMPACT 4.4-3)

Impacts to Ione chaparral would result primarily from mining of the Ione formation, but could also result from incremental loss of this community due to industrial and urban development and infrastructure projects. The General Plan contains policies that encourage preservation of Ione chaparral (Policies OS-3.4 and OS-4-1). However, these policies do not guarantee that conservation measures will be implemented and that Ione chaparral will be protected in the long term. The impact to Ione chaparral would be significant.

#### 4.4.2.1 Mitigation

Implement Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a and 4.4-1b.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.4-3: Ione Chaparral Avoidance and BMPs

The County will require project applicants to submit a mitigation plan for unavoidable impacts to Ione chaparral. The mitigation plan will address how Ione chaparral to be retained on the project site will be avoided or how impacts will be minimized. The mitigation plan will include the following:

- BMPs for work near Ione chaparral to prevent the inadvertent spread of pathogens. BMPs may include the establishment of buffers and exclusion zones and mandatory equipment cleaning prior to and after work to prevent cross contamination among sites.
- Consideration of the recovery plan for the Ione chaparral plant community, once published, and other publications on the community or associate species.

- Measures for the management of soil-borne pathogens before, during and after project implementation and measures aimed at the prevention of their spread.
- Methods to be implemented to avoid and/or compensate for impacts on Ione chaparral at a ratio
  adequate to offset the loss of Ione chaparral functions and values. At a minimum, Ione chaparral
  losses will be compensated at a 1:1 ratio.

Because Ione chaparral is known to support several federally listed plant species as well as other plant species considered special-status species by local and state agencies, mitigation will be developed in consultation with USFWS and CDFW, as appropriate depending on species status. Mitigation may include replanting and enhancement of degraded stands of Ione chaparral. However, because it is difficult to rehabilitate land to support Ione chaparral once it has been mined, planting and enhancement will be combined with preservation to help ensure the loss of habitat is compensated. The preferred conservation method will be the purchase of conservation easements by project applicants. Mitigation lands will be managed for the long term protection and survival of Ione chaparral and, if possible, be contiguous with lands already protected to maximize the likelihood of mitigation success.

If a project requires a Reclamation Plan under the State's Surface Mining and Reclamation Act (SMARA), the plan may be developed to address multiple agencies' requirements to avoid redundancy, and would address protection of Ione chaparral as required by SMARA's Reclamation Plan standards and by CEQA.

#### 4.4.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a, 4.4-1b and 4.4-3 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a, 4.4-1b, and 4.4-3 would reduce impacts on Ione chaparral by requiring avoidance and minimization of impacts on Ione chaparral through feasible project design modifications and BMPs and development of mitigation plans to compensate for unavoidable losses of Ione chaparral. However, the distribution of this sensitive natural community is extremely limited and mining activities directly depend on the same substrates where this plant community grows; thus avoidance, minimization and mitigation options to prevent substantial adverse effects are very limited. No additional feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. The impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

#### 4.5 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

#### 4.5.1 GENERATION OF GHG EMISSIONS (IMPACT 4.7-1)

The General Plan would result in an operating GHG efficiency of 8.2 MT CO2e (metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent) per service population per year. The General Plan contains a variety of policies and programs aimed at reducing GHG emissions:

▶ Policy C-10.1: Evaluate the potential effects of climate change on the County's human and natural systems and prepare strategies that allow the County to appropriately respond and adapt.

- ▶ Policy C-10.2: Develop and adopt a comprehensive strategy to reduce GHGs within Amador County by at least 15 percent from current levels by 2020.
- ▶ Policy C-10.3: Guide new development to areas where pedestrian and bicycle access to existing activity centers are possible, in order to reduce the need for automobile travel and VMT.
- ▶ Policy C-10.4: Work with service providers to ensure that transit offerings in the County are stable or expanding, and that transit is tailored to meet residents' needs.
- ▶ Policy C-10.5: Require new development projects to incorporate building placement and design features to increase energy efficiency in new structures.
- ▶ Policy C-10.6: Support green building through incentives for Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certification of new commercial, industrial, public, and multi-family residential buildings. Promote incentives for compliance with this standard as a way to increase the energy efficiency of new structures. Promote increased energy efficiency and green building practices through the County's use of these practices.
- ▶ Policy C-10.7: Support parcel-scale energy generation, including addition of solar panels for residential structures and cogeneration for larger commercial or industrial uses.

It is uncertain whether the policies in the General Plan would ensure that the region would meet the emission reduction goals of AB 32 or the significance threshold of 3.092.53 MT CO2e per service population per year in 2030. Therefore, long-term operational emissions associated with the General Plan would result in a significant impact, which would be further increased by construction GHG emissions. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.5.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.7-1a: Develop and Implement a Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan

The County will develop and implement a GHG reduction plan. The GHG reduction plan will have three primary objectives: to reduce total greenhouse gas emissions in the county to 1990 levels by 2020 pursuant to the AB 32 GHG reduction targets, to the extent feasible to meet the SB 32-based 2030 efficiency metric of 3.092.53 MT CO<sub>2</sub>e per service population, and to create adaptation strategies to address the impacts of climate change on the county. As noted in Table 4.7-1, farming, mining, logging, and manufacturing jobs are not included in the jobs or emissions estimates and therefore this mitigation measure would not apply to those activities and sources. The contents of the GHG reduction plan would include:

- A description the County's rationale for developing and implementing the plan, describing state policy mandates to reduce GHG emissions.
- GHG emissions forecasts for 2020 and 2030. Forecasts will build upon the baseline GHG
  emissions inventory provided in the General Plan EIR for the base year 2005 (the AB 32 base
  year), with any necessary updates.
- Emission reduction measures and actions. This will include a description of the feasible measures
  and actions that are necessary to reduce emissions in the County and achieve the reduction
  targets. Measures could include, but are not limited to the following and the Attorney General's

Office mitigation measures (CAPCOA 2010) (CAPCOA 2010 documents the effectiveness of many of these measures in reducing GHG emissions):

- 1. Increase density and location efficiency of new development.
- 2. Improve pedestrian and transit access and amenities in new development.
- 3. Implement trip reduction and carpool programs.
- 4. Support telecommuting and alternative work schedules for new job-generating uses.
- 5. Install programmable thermostat timers for new buildings.
- 6. Use on-site renewable energy systems.
- 7. Limit outdoor lighting requirements for new commercial properties.
- 8. For new commercial land uses, employers allow telecommuting and alternative work schedules for employees.
- 9. Provide electrical vehicle and carpool vehicle priority parking in new commercial sites.
- 10. Install low-flow water fixtures in all new residential and commercial developments.
- 11. Adopt a water conservative strategy applicable to all residential and commercial developments.
- 12. Require commercial building landscaping to be water-efficient (e.g., native or drought-resistant plants, minimize turf and lawn area).
- 13. Recycle demolished construction materials.
- 14. Use alternative fuels, electric, and/or hybrid construction equipment.
- 15. Protection and adaptation strategies. This section will describe strategies, policies, and measures that will be used to protect the County from, and facilitate adaptation to, the potential effects of climate change.
- 16. Benchmarks, monitoring procedures, amendment requirements, and other steps needed to ensure the County achieves its emissions reduction, protection, and adaptation goals.
- 17. Re-evaluation of policies, and measures relevant to climate change in the General Plan each time the General Plan is updated.

### Mitigation Measure 4.7-1b: Implement Interim Project-Specific Greenhouse Gas Reduction Measures

Until a Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan is adopted, the County will require discretionary projects to implement mitigation measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions to help meet the 2020 emission reduction goals of AB 32 and the <u>SB 32-based</u> significance threshold of <u>3.092.53 MT CO2e</u> per service population per year in 2030. This process will include:

- Evaluating project emissions compared to the 2020 emission reduction goals of AB 32 and the SB 32-based significance threshold of 3.092.53 MT CO2e per service population per year in 2030, and formulating feasible measures necessary for the project to demonstrate the ability to help meet these targets. Reduction potentials for adopted measures should be calculated using the most currently available research and literature and CAPCOA's Quantifying Greenhouse Gas Mitigation Measures report (CAPCOA 2010).
- Assessing VMT and implementing measures to reduce VMT, including but not limited to:
  - 1. Providing pedestrian, bicycle, and/or transit access, amenities, or funding, including (but not limited to) internal access, bike lanes, bike parking, and ride sharing;
  - 2. Traffic calming measures to reduce vehicle speeds;
  - 3. Providing a mix of uses and density that support pedestrian and transit access;
- Assessing energy consumption and implementing measures to reduce energy use. Sample
  measures include but are not limited to installing energy efficient appliances and boilers, "cool"
  roofs and pavements, higher-efficiency interior and exterior lighting, and on-site renewable
  energy generation.
- Reducing water use, including but not limited to use of grey water, low-flow fixtures, waterefficient landscapes and irrigation systems, reduced turf, and native or drought-tolerant
  landscaping.

#### 4.5.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.7-1a and 4.7-1b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Mitigation Measure 4.7-1a would require development of a formal GHG reduction plan that would ensure GHG reduce emissions to be consistent with the AB 32 2020 goal and to the extent feasible to meet the SB 32-based 2030 efficiency metric of 3.092.53 MT CO2e per service population. Mitigation Measure 4.7-1b would require that individual projects would implement measures to reduce GHG emissions during the interim period until the GHG reduction plan is adopted. However, it is unclear whether Mitigation Measures 4.7-1a and 4.7-1b would achieve the 2020 emission reduction goals of AB 32 and the 2030 SB 32-based efficiency metric of 3.092.53 MT CO2e per service population due to uncertainties in the timing and effectiveness of implementation of State GHG regulations, as well as uncertainties in the ability of feasible mitigation measures to achieve the 2020 goals and the 2030 efficiency metric. No additional feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. Therefore, the impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

#### 4.5.2 CONFLICT WITH A GHG REDUCTION PLAN (IMPACT 4.7-2)

The General Plan would conflict with any applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing GHG emissions because it would not achieve AB 32's emission reduction goals. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.5.2.1 Mitigation

#### **Implement Mitigation Measures 4.7-1a and 4.7-1b**

#### 4.5.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.7-1a and 4.7-1b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Mitigation Measure 4.7-1a would require development of a formal GHG reduction plan that would ensure GHG reduce emissions to be consistent with the AB 32 2020 goals and to the extent feasible to meet the SB 32-based 2030 efficiency metric of 3.092.53 MT CO2e per service population. Mitigation Measure 4.7-1b would ensure that individual projects would implement measures to reduce GHG emissions. However, it is unclear whether Mitigation Measures 4.7-1a and 4.7-1b would achieve the 2020 emission reduction goals of AB 32 and the SB 32-based 2030 efficiency metric of 3.092.53 MT CO2e per service population due to uncertainties in the timing and effectiveness of implementation of State GHG regulations, as well as uncertainties in the ability of feasible mitigation measures to achieve the 2020 goals and the 2030 efficiency metric. No additional feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. Therefore, the impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

#### 4.6 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

#### 4.6.1 EXPOSURE OF STRUCTURES TO URBAN AND WILDLAND FIRE (IMPACT 4.8-7)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in development of areas considered to have a moderate, high, or very high fire threat level. Compliance with California Building Code regulations and other state fire safety requirements would minimize wildland fire risks. However, despite implementing regulatory requirements, the General Plan would still place increasing numbers of people and structures in areas subject to high- and very-high fire hazard severity, exposing people and structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death. Thus, this impact would be significant.

#### 4.6.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.8-7a: Implement Program D-2: Fire-Safe Development

- a. The County will review new development applications in moderate, high, and very high fire hazard severity zones to confirm they meet the standards of the Title 24 Wildland Urban Interface Building Codes and 14 CCR 1270.
- b. The County will require new structures and improvements to be built to support effective firefighting.
- c. New development applications in very high fire hazard severity zones shall include specific fire protection plans, actions, and/or comply with Wildland Urban Interface codes for fire engineering features.
- d. The County will seek fire district input on development applications to allow proposed projects to incorporate fire-safe planning and building measures. Such measures may include (but are not limited to) buffering properties, creating defensible space around individual units, using fire-resistant

building materials, installing sprinkler systems, and providing adequate on-site water supplies for firefighting.

- e. Transportation improvements shall incorporate access for firefighting, within and between existing neighborhoods to provide improved connectivity, but also in areas with no structures. Access standards include minimum width, surface, grade, radius, turnaround, turnout, and bridge standards, as well as limitations on one-way roads, dead-end roads, driveways, and gate entrances.
- f. Where public water is available, the County will consult with water agencies on needs for additional water, water mains, fire hydrants, and related appurtenances needed to meet required fire flow criteria and for sufficient water capacity to serve peak demands of multiple fire engines to protect improvements from wildland fires.
- g. A 100' setback for defensible space will be required, when possible, for high density multiple-family residential or sensitive uses (e.g., care homes, schools, large day care facilities, etc.) proposed to be located in high or very high fire hazard severity zones.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.8-7b: Implement Program F-3: Fire Services Funding

a. The County will consult with the Amador Fire Protection District to establish funding mechanisms, including impact fees, to offset fire protection costs for new development in areas of high wildfire risk.

#### 4.6.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.7-7a and 4.7-7b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.8-7a and 4.8-7b would reduce impacts associated with an increased risk of wildland fires because they would require vegetation management, reduce the fire threats associated with new development in the wildland urban interface, and identify funding sources for improved fire protection. However, implementation of these programs would not reduce the hazard below the level of significance. Because nearly the entire County is characterized as a high- or very high- fire hazard severity zone, construction of new residential, commercial, and industrial uses would result in an increased population in areas subject to significant wildland fire risks. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. This impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.7 Hydrology and Water Quality

# 4.7.1 Interference with Groundwater Recharge or Substantial Depletion of Groundwater Supplies (Impact 4.9-4)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in new development in the planning area, including buildings, structures, paved areas, roadways, utilities, and other improvements. This new development would result in additional impervious surfaces and could reduce groundwater recharge and the yield of hydrologically connected wells. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.7.1.1 Mitigation

Implement Mitigation Measure 4.9-1c: Implement Program P-1e, Zoning Code and Development Regulations.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.9-4a: Implement Program F-2a, Future Water Supplies and Funding

a. In consultation with the County's water suppliers and local agencies, the County will identify and pursue alternative funding sources for projects that improve water resources and management in Amador County.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.9-4b: Implement Program P-3 a1-3 and b, Future Water Supply

- a. The County will provide input to water providers in their efforts to plan for coordinated response to future water demand, and future water supply emergencies, including needed capacity during wildfires, and droughts. These efforts would include integrated regional water management plans (addressing surface and groundwater resource, wastewater, stormwater treatment and use, development of reclaimed water, and flooding). These plans should include information on areas with water service capacity. The objective of this planning effort is to assure sufficient reliable water supplies are available to serve new projects, as well as existing and planned development. This planning effort will include:
  - 1. Planning for adequate water supply and water treatment capacity to support future development.
  - Development and implementation of reasonable best management practices for water conservation. These may include (but are not limited to) use of graywater, reclaimed, or recycled water for irrigation, water-conserving plumbing fixtures, and low-water landscapes.
  - 3. Development of water-use standards and regulations to limit demands during water supply emergencies and droughts.
- b. The County will consult with water suppliers as they pursue water and wastewater plans to develop adequate water supplies through expansion of surface water storage, conjunctive use of surface water and groundwater, water conservation, and water recycling.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.9-4c: Adequate Water Supply

a. Where required by State law, the County shall prepare water supply assessments pursuant to the California Water Code (§10910-10915) at the applicants' expense to analyze the ability of water supplies to meet the needs of regulated projects, The County shall not approve projects which cannot demonstrate an adequate water supply.

#### 4.7.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.9-4a, 4.9-4b, 4.9-4c, and 4.9-1c have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.9-4a, 4.9-4b, 4.9-4c, and 4.9-1c would reduce the potential for impacts on groundwater levels, but not to a less-than-significant level because the General Plan could still substantially deplete groundwater supplies and interfere substantially with groundwater recharge. These mitigation measures would require water

conservation BMPs, standards, and regulations to limit demand in normal and drought years. Mitigation Measure 4.9-4c would require that any developments as a result of the General Plan have adequate water supplies, both in the AWA service area and the fractured rock groundwater environments outside of the service area and DWR-defined groundwater basins in the western portion of the County under the auspices of the MAC IRWMP. Mitigation Measure 4.9-4b would also require that the County consult with water suppliers to insure adequate water supplies without depleting groundwater, would implement conjunctive use and other approaches to insure sustainable perennial yield and avoidance of overdraft to help ensure reliable groundwater levels, and would involve County support of groundwater studies and management plans by local and state agencies. Mitigation Measure 4.9-1c would require the use of LID techniques in new development, which would help to maintain the surface area available for recharge. However, since the majority of groundwater use in the planning area would continue to come from individual private wells, and data concerning groundwater yield is not consistently available, and no additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

#### 4.8 Noise

# 4.8.1 RESULT IN A SUBSTANTIAL TEMPORARY OR PERIODIC INCREASE IN AMBIENT NOISE LEVELS (IMPACT 4.11-1)

Short-term construction source noise levels could result in a substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels at nearby noise-sensitive receptors. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.8.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.11-1a: Implement Program D-11(m), Noise Standards

All construction equipment shall be properly maintained per manufacturers' specifications and fitted with the best available noise suppression devices (e.g., mufflers, silencers, wraps); all impact tools will be shrouded or shielded; and all intake and exhaust ports on power equipment will be muffled or shielded.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.11-1b: Construction Noise Abatement

The County will require the use of noise control techniques during construction activities to avoid effects on nearby sensitive receptors. In addition to properly maintained construction equipment, these techniques may include temporary construction sound barriers adjacent to construction noise sources or receptors when all other feasible methods fail to reduce construction noise to acceptable levels.

#### 4.8.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.11-1a and 4.11-1b have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.11-1a and 4.11-1b would reduce impacts from construction noise requiring on-site mitigation of noise-generating equipment and use of construction noise control techniques, potentially including temporary construction sound barriers, where appropriate. Individual, new development projects would be required to undergo project-specific environmental review. If project-level significant impacts are identified, project-specific mitigation measures would be required under CEQA. However, construction noise, depending on the location of

nearby sensitive receptors in relation to a particular construction site, could result in a substantial temporary increase in ambient noise levels at those receptors even after all feasible mitigation measures are imposed. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. As a result, impacts are significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.8.2 RESULT IN A SUBSTANTIAL PERMANENT INCREASE IN AMBIENT (TRAFFIC) NOISE LEVELS (IMPACT 4.11-2)

Long-term project-generated traffic noise under the General Plan could create a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels at noise-sensitive receptors due to increased traffic noise. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.8.2.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.11-2: Implement Program D-11(h), Noise Standards

During review of development proposals by the Land Use Agency and CEQA review, the County will apply noise standards from Tables N-3 and N-4 in the Noise Element. New developments proposing noise-sensitive land uses in areas exposed to existing or projected noise levels from transportation and other noise sources shall incorporate noise control techniques, including but not limited to those identified in Table N-2 [Table 4.11-12] to reduce noise exposure in outdoor activity areas and interior spaces to acceptable levels, as specified in Tables N-3 [Table 4.11-1] and N-4 [Table 4.11-2] of the General Plan.

#### 4.8.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.11-2 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.11-2 would reduce traffic noise impact for new potentially noise-sensitive uses; these uses would be required to reduce noise levels in accordance with the County's noise standards. In addition, individual, new development projects and transportation projects would be required to undergo project-specific environmental review. If project-level significant impacts are identified, project-specific mitigation measures would be required under CEQA.

However, increases in traffic noise would also have the potential to affect existing developed uses. Since long-term noise levels from project-generated vehicular traffic would result in substantial increases in ambient noise levels based on the significance criteria identified above in Table 4.11-10, and no additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.8.3 EXPOSE NOISE SENSITIVE RECEPTORS TO OPERATIONAL (TRAFFIC) NOISE LEVELS EXCEEDING STANDARDS (IMPACT 4.11-3)

Long-term traffic noise under the General Plan would exceed OPR standards at noise-sensitive receptors. Development under the General Plan would increase traffic noise levels substantially and above applicable noise standards for sensitive receptors. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.8.3.1 Mitigation

#### **Implement Mitigation Measure 4.11-2**

#### 4.8.3.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.11-2 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. With implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.11-2, traffic noise impacts would be reduced because new potentially noise-sensitive uses would be required to adhere to the noise standards set forth in these mitigation measures. In addition, individual, new development projects and transportation projects would be required to undergo project-specific environmental review. If project-level significant impacts are identified, project-specific mitigation measures would be required under CEQA. However, even with implementation of this program, traffic noise could exceed standards at some locations, and increases in traffic noise would also have the potential to affect existing developed uses. Since long-term noise levels from project-generated vehicular traffic would cause certain roadway segments to exceed 60 dBA Ldn, and no additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.8.4 EXPOSE NOISE SENSITIVE RECEPTORS TO RAILROAD NOISE LEVELS EXCEEDING AMADOR COUNTY STANDARDS (IMPACT 4.11-4)

Long-term noise generated by railroads could exceed noise levels at existing and future noise sensitive receptors, exposing them to substantial increases in noise levels. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.8.4.1 Mitigation

#### **Implement Mitigation Measure 4.11-2**

#### Mitigation Measure 4.11-4: Implement Program D-11(i), Noise Standards

The County will require the evaluation of railroad noise impacts for any proposed residential or other sensitive use development located within 750 feet of a railroad corridor. The evaluation shall include potential for waking associated with rail movement and horn blowing.

#### 4.8.4.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.11-2 and 4.11-4 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. With adherence to and implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.11-2 and 4.11-4, program-level railroad noise impacts would be reduced by requiring design considerations specific to noise levels and the potential for increase in the incidence of noise due to rail traffic, both instantaneous and average daily noise levels, in order to maintain the noise level standards of the County. In addition, individual, new development projects would be required to undergo project-specific environmental review. If project-level significant impacts are identified, project-specific mitigation measures would be required under CEQA.

However, even with implementation of these measures, rail noise would exceed standards at some locations, including for existing sensitive receptors along the rail line. Thus, since long-term noise levels from rail traffic on land uses that could be permitted under the project would result in substantial increases in ambient noise levels based on the significance criteria identified above in Table 4.11-9, and

no additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.8.5 EXPOSURE OF NOISE SENSITIVE RECEPTORS TO STATIONARY SOURCE NOISE LEVELS EXCEEDING AMADOR COUNTY STANDARDS. (IMPACT 4.11-5)

Existing and future stationary sources of noise could conflict with noise standards and affect nearby sensitive receptors, exposing them to substantial increases in noise levels. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.8.5.1 Mitigation

#### **Implement Mitigation Measure 4.11-2**

#### Mitigation Measure 4.11-5a: Implement Program D-11(c), Noise Standards

Where legally permitted, the County will require that the newest land use is responsible for mitigating noise, whether as a generator or sensitive receptor. If a new use that generates noise is proposed adjacent to lands zoned for uses that may be sensitive to noise (i.e., residential neighborhoods), then the noise-generating use is responsible for mitigating noise consistent with Noise Element Tables N-3 [Table 4.11-1] and N-4 [Table 4.11-2] standards along the property line of the affected land use. Where sensitive uses are proposed near noise sources or lands with zoning that would permit new noise sources, these new uses are responsible for mitigating their noise exposure consistent with the standards in Tables N-3 and N-4 of the Noise Element. The County seeks to protect the continued viability of economically valuable activities that produce noise (including farm operations, mining activities, commercial and industrial facilities, and airports).

#### Mitigation Measure 4.11-5b: Implement Program D-11(d), Noise Standards

During review of development proposals, the County will apply daytime and nighttime land use/noise environment standards at the property line of the source as shown in Table N-4 [Table 4.11-2] of the Noise Element for non-transportation sources.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.11-5c: Implement Program D-11(e), Noise Standards

During review of development proposals, the County will apply the standards in Table D-11-1 [Table 4.11-10]. These standards identify what changes to ambient noise levels at the property line of a sensitive receptor will be considered to be significant noise increases. Land uses within the County that are considered to be noise-sensitive include any residential property or residential unit located within a vertical mixed-use development on a single-parcel, residential divisions of land, residential land use designations, schools, churches, hospitals, care facilities, libraries, and auditoriums.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.11-5d: Implement Program D-11(f), Noise Standards

During review of development proposals by the Land Use Agency and CEQA review, the County will apply the noise standards identified in Table N-3 [Table 4.11-1], as measured at the property line. These standards limit acceptable periodic noise increases to the levels shown in Table D-11-2 [Table 4.11-13].

Table 4.11-13 Allowable Increases in Hourly Ambient Noise Levels	
Period of Noise Level Increase	Allowable Increase
Cumulative period of 30 minutes per hour	0 dB L <sub>eq</sub>
Cumulative period of 15 minutes per hour	5 dB L <sub>eq</sub>
Cumulative period of 5 minutes per hour	10 dB L <sub>eq</sub>
Cumulative period of 1 minutes per hour	15 dB L <sub>eq</sub>
Not be exceeded at any time	20 dB L <sub>eq</sub>
Note: CNEL = community noise equivalent level; dB = decibels; L <sub>dn</sub> = c Sources: Federal Interagency Committee on Noise. 1992 (August). Fe Issues. Washington, DC. Page 3-5.	, ,

#### 4.8.5.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.11-2, 4.11-5a, 4.11-5b, 4.11-5c, and 4.11-5d have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.11-2, 4.11-5a, 4.11-5b, 4.11-5c, and 4.11-5d, would reduce noise levels attributable to stationary sources. However, it may not be feasible for some projects to achieve the County's noise standards or the allowable increases in Table 4.11-10 or allowable hourly increase in Table 4.11-13, of this EIR, (60 dBA  $L_{eq}$  daytime, 45 dBA  $L_{eq}$  nighttime) at noise sensitive receptors. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-significant level. Therefore, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.9 Population and Housing

#### 4.9.1 PERMANENT INCREASE IN POPULATION GROWTH. (IMPACT 4.12-1)

Implementation of the General Plan would result in substantial population growth through future development of residential, commercial, and industrial uses throughout the planning area. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.9.1.1 Mitigation

No feasible mitigation measures are available.

#### 4.9.1.2 Finding

Because the purpose of the General Plan is to accommodate the most recent population growth, housing, and employment projections in an orderly manner, no feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce the potential for population growth to a less-than-significant level. The County cannot meet its economic development and housing needs without accommodating additional residents and workers. Because there are no feasible mitigation measures, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

#### 4.10 Public Services and Utilities

#### 4.10.1 INCREASED DEMAND FOR WATER SUPPLIES. (IMPACT 4.13-1)

Implementation of the General Plan would increase the demand for surface water and groundwater supplies in the planning area. Although the County's water purveyors have identified plans to provide an adequate water supply, uncertainties regarding the availability of long-term water supplies needed to serve new development under the General Plan in certain locations make this impact significant.

#### 4.10.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.13-1a: Implement Program D-1a(4-5), Development Proposal Evaluation

a. The County will review proposed projects for consistency with goals, policies, and implementation programs of this general plan.

Evaluation criteria for discretionary development proposals include:

- 4. Availability of public water and wastewater, and ability to connect to existing water and wastewater systems. The objective of this program is to avoid impacts related to lack of reliable water supply, including sufficient water for fire hydrant flow criteria, or wastewater service. If feasible, new units will be required to connect to nearby existing water or wastewater systems. Project applicants must demonstrate the availability of water supply, water treatment capacity and wastewater treatment.
  - If increased water or wastewater capacity is required, applicants must pay their fair share of the necessary improvements. Where septic or connection to an existing wastewater system is not feasible, the County will require new development to demonstrate a means of wastewater collection, treatment, and reuse or disposal will be created that would be operated by an approved entity with adequate technical, financial, and managerial resources to assure safe and effective operation. Any such proposed method shall be consistent with goals and objectives of the general plan as well as any planning goals of the operating entity.
- 5. Availability of water and septic capacity. For projects being served by private well and septic systems, the applicant must demonstrate the availability of sufficient water and septic treatment capacity in accordance with the County's Code.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.13-1b: Implement Program P-3 a1-3 and b, Future Water Supply

a. The County will provide input to water suppliers in their efforts to plan for coordinated response to future water demand, and future water supply emergencies, including needed capacity during wildfires, and droughts. These efforts would include integrated regional water management plans (addressing surface and groundwater resource, wastewater, stormwater treatment and use, development of reclaimed water, and flooding). These plans should include information on areas with water service capacity. The objective of this planning effort is to assure sufficient reliable water supplies are available to serve new projects, as well as existing and planned development. This planning effort will include:

- 1. Planning for adequate water supply and water treatment capacity to support future development.
- 2. Development and implementation of reasonable best management practices for water conservation. These may include (but are not limited to) use of graywater, reclaimed, or recycled water for irrigation, water-conserving plumbing fixtures, and low-water landscapes.
- 3. Development of water-use standards and regulations to limit demands during water supply emergencies and droughts.
- b. The County will consult with water suppliers as they pursue water and wastewater plans to develop adequate water supplies through expansion of surface water storage, conjunctive use of surface water and groundwater, water conservation, and water recycling.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.13-1c: Implement Program F-1, Infrastructure Improvements

- a. In order to assure that adequate infrastructure is in place to support existing and planned development, the County will consult with water and wastewater providers to support development of new treatment facilities or conveyance systems to minimize:
  - 1. Disposal by leach field in areas of marginal soils or site conditions which may lead to degrading groundwater quality.
  - 2. Potential threats to water resources or the public from wastewater treatment system failures.
  - 3. The risk of loss of life or property due to inadequate water infrastructure that serves fire hydrants.
- b. The County will maintain and improve existing drainage and stormwater infrastructure. Where right-of-way is available, new drainage and stormwater infrastructure may be developed as needed. The County will explore consolidation of this function to a single County department or responsible agency. When maintaining or developing drainage and/or stormwater infrastructure, the County will consider vector control needs.
- c. The County will consult with businesses interested in expanding existing operations or establishing new operations regarding installation of necessary infrastructure improvements. County actions may include:
  - 1. Share existing engineering studies and plans (in conjunction with Amador Water Agency and other water providers) on water supply and treatment capacities, wastewater collection, conveyance and treatment capacities, stormwater drainage and roadway improvements.
  - 2. Consult with project applicants where County improvement plans call for extension or upgrades to infrastructure.
  - 3. Consider financing options to assist applicants in providing necessary infrastructure, including tax credits, deferred fee payment programs, reimbursement of costs for infrastructure improvements and amortization of infrastructure fees.
  - 4. Allow for phased extension or upgrades to infrastructure in conjunction with approved phasing plans for site development.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.13-1d: Implement Program F-2a-c & e, Future Water Supplies and Funding

- a. In consultation with the County's water suppliers and local agencies, the County will identify and pursue alternative funding sources for projects that improve water resources and management in Amador County.
- b. Consult with Amador County water purveyors to find adequate water for agricultural users. Agricultural water users should be encouraged to utilize surface water supplies, reclaimed water or treated wastewater. Encourage water purveyors to develop an agricultural water fee scale.
- c. Consult with Amador County water purveyors to retain access to water rights and both existing and potential points of diversion on all rivers and waterways within the County.
- e. Encourage local, state and federal water development projects beneficial to Amador County and work to develop additional water rights.

#### 4.10.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.13-1a, 4.13-1b, 4.13-1c, and 4.13-1d have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of mitigation measures 4.13-1a, 4.13-1b, 4.13-1c, and 4.13-1d would reduce this impact by requiring any development that would occur under the General Plan to demonstrate available water supply, from a public system if available or from a private water well meeting the County's existing requirements, along with efforts to fund and efficiently provide future capacity. However, because of uncertainties associated with the potential availability of future surface water and groundwater supplies in some locations, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable. No other feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact to less than significant levels.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.10.2 INCREASED DEMAND FOR WATER CONVEYANCE AND TREATMENT FACILITIES. (IMPACT 4.13-2)

Implementation of the General Plan would increase demand for water storage, conveyance, and treatment facilities in the planning area. The availability of new water service connections is restricted by limited capacity at the Ione and Tanner WTPs and supply facilities at the Jackson Valley Irrigation District. New or expanded water supply facilities that could have significant impacts would be needed to serve growth under the General Plan. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.10.2.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure: Implement Mitigation Measures 4.13-1a, 4.13-1b 4.13-1c, and 4.13-1d

#### 4.10.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.13-1a, 4.13-1b, 4.13-1c, and 4.13-1d have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of mitigation measures 4.13-1a, 4.13-1b, 4.13-1c, and 4.13-1d would reduce this impact by requiring any development that would occur under the General Plan to demonstrate available water supply facilities, along with efforts to fund and efficiently provide future facility capacities. However, because of uncertainties associated with the future

water conveyance and treatment capacity in certain locations, and because project-specific mitigation of the impacts of specific water supply facilities cannot be guaranteed, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable. No other feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact to less than significant levels.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.10.3 INCREASED DEMAND FOR WASTEWATER COLLECTION, CONVEYANCE, AND TREATMENT FACILITIES. (IMPACT 4.13-3)

Implementation of the General Plan in compliance with the Central Valley Regional Water Control Board requirements would increase the demand for wastewater collection, conveyance, and treatment facilities in the planning area. AWA maintains eight community leachfield systems and two systems treat wastewater to a secondary level; however, some of these systems have limited capacity to serve new development. Wastewater collected by the AWA in the Martell area is conveyed to the Sutter Creek WWTP, which is currently operating at capacity. New or expanded wastewater facilities that could have significant impacts would be needed to serve growth under the General Plan. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.10.3.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure: Implement Mitigation Measures 4.13-1a, 4.13-1b, and 4.13-1c

#### 4.10.3.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.13-1a, 4.13-1b, and 4.13-1c have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Implementation of mitigation measures 4.13-1a, 4.13-1b, and 4.13-1c would reduce this impact by requiring any development that would occur under the General Plan to demonstrate available wastewater conveyance and treatment capacity, and working to fund and efficiently provide future capacity. However, because of uncertainties associated with the future wastewater conveyance and treatment capacity, and because project-specific mitigation of new or expanded wastewater facilities cannot be guaranteed, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable. No other feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact to less than significant levels.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 4.11 Transportation

# 4.11.1 INCREASE IN TRAFFIC LEVELS ON STATE HIGHWAYS RESULTING IN UNACCEPTABLE LOS. (IMPACT 4.14-1)

Development and land use changes consistent with the General Plan would result in increased traffic levels on the following state highways within the County that would operate below the Caltrans LOS thresholds:

► SR 16 from the Sacramento/Amador County Line to SR 49

- ► SR 49 from the Calaveras/Amador County Line to the City of Jackson;
- ► SR 49 from SR 104 in Martell to the City of Plymouth;
- ▶ SR 88 from the San Joaquin/Amador County Line to Kirkwood Meadows Drive; and
- ▶ SR 104 in Ione and Martell.

This impact would be significant.

#### 4.11.1.1 Mitigation

#### Mitigation Measure 4.14-1a: Implement Program D-1a(6), Development Proposal Evaluation

a. The County will review proposed projects for consistency with goals, policies, and implementation programs of this general plan.

Evaluation criteria for discretionary development proposals (Program D-1a(6) shall also apply to ministerial development proposals) include:

• Impact on traffic and transportation infrastructure and provision of alternative transportation. The County will continue to require developments to pay into the traffic mitigation fee program(s) to mitigate impacts to roadways.

The County will require future ministerial and discretionary projects that exceed threshold traffic volumes to conduct traffic studies (following Amador County Traffic Impact Study Guidelines). The purpose of these traffic studies will be to identify and mitigate any cumulative or project impacts (roadways below the County's standard of LOS C for rural roadways, and LOS D for roadways in urban and developing areas) beyond the limits of the mitigation fee program(s).

Projects will be required to mitigate their identified offsite impacts by constructing improvements and/or pay a "fair share" of those improvements that would be required to mitigate impacts outside the established mitigation fee program(s) (See Program F-4). [see Mitigation Measure 4.14 1b, below] The objective of this program is to substantially reduce or avoid traffic impacts, including cumulative impacts, of development which would occur to implement the General Plan.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.14-1b: Implement Program F-4, Transportation Improvements

- a. Maintain the Regional and Local Traffic Impact Fee programs so that new transportation needs (including bicycle and pedestrian needs) generated by new development are paid for by the development on a proportional basis. Increased roadway capacity should, to the extent legally possible, be funded through developer fees to the extent legally possible traffic impact fees.
- b. Use the County's annual Capital Improvement Program (CIP) process to prioritize, fund, and build required roadway improvements, and to address phasing and construction of circulation infrastructure throughout the County. Coordinate CIP priorities with the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and planned improvements to Caltrans facilities.
- c. Use the established CIP process to implement the circulation system shown on the Circulation Diagram (Figure CM-1). The County will secure funding for roadway improvements, will design and

build new roadways, and will complete roadway repairs and improvements. Future roadways must meet the County's roadway classification design specifications and performance criteria.

- d. For those project that require a traffic study, per Mitigation Measure 4.14-1a, and which identify required roadway improvements that are not included in the current RTP or CIP at the time, a fair-share fee calculation shall be conducted to identify the applicable fair-share requirements for the identified improvement(s). The results of fee calculation shall be paid and accounted for in a special account to fund the identified improvement(s), as applicable. The special account list for fair share funded improvement projects shall be posted or reported on a yearly basis to reflect total fair share contributions of the development projects to the identified traffic improvement(s).
- e. Review the Regional and Local Traffic Impact Fee program and the CIP process to ensure that bicycle and pedestrian improvements, goods movement, and transit facilities are represented to provide for the provision of Complete Streets.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.14-1c: Implement State Highway Roadway Improvements

- a. Caltrans has ultimate jurisdiction for implementing improvements—such as addition of travel lanes, turn lanes, or construction of bypasses—on State highways. The County will work with Caltrans and ACTC to implement roadway improvements required to meet Caltrans LOS standards on the identified segments of SR 16, SR 49, SR-88, and SR 104, to the extent feasible. These improvements consist of:
  - Improving SR 16 to four lanes throughout the County.
  - Improving SR 49 to four lanes from French Bar Rd in Jackson to Bush Street in Plymouth
  - Improving SR 88 to four lanes throughout the County.
  - <u>Improve existing Provide a new two lane Ione bypass facility on SR 104, on an</u> alignment north of the City of Ione to serve as the Western Ione Roadway Improvement Strategy (WIRIS). between existing SR 104 west of Ione and SR 88 near Jackson Valley Road (east).

#### 4.11.1.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.14-1a, 4.14-1b, and 4.14-1c have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Mitigation Measures 4.14-1a and 4.14-1b would require that projects under the General Plan provide their fair share of funding for future transportation improvements.

Mitigation Measure 4.14-c describes roadway improvements that would be required to improve LOS for state highways in Amador County. For the following segments, implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.14-1c would reduce the significant impacts on state highway LOS at the following locations, but not to a less-than-significant level, for the following reasons (post-mitigation LOS for the identified segments is provided in Appendix E of this document):

b. Even with widening to four lanes, some of the urban portions of SR 49 in Jackson and north of SR 104 (east) in Martell could still experience LOS E or F conditions.

- c. If the portion of SR 49 from Amador/Calaveras County line to French Bar Rd in Jackson remains as two lanes consistent with the SR 49 transportation route concept then LOS would change from LOS C to E.
- d. The portion of SR 88 west of SR 104 (east) near Martell could still experience LOS E conditions.
- e. Even with widening to four lanes, some of the urban portions of SR 88 in Martell, Jackson, and Pine Grove could still experience LOS E or F conditions.
- f. If portions of SR 88 remain as two lanes or two-lanes with passing lane then LOS impacts on these portions would change from LOS D to F.
- g. If the portion of SR 104 in Martell from SR 88 to SR 49 remains as two lanes consistent with the SR 104 transportation route concept then this roadway would operate at LOS E.

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.14-1c would reduce the significant LOS impacts on the remaining state highway segments LOS to a less-than-significant level, by allowing these facilities to operate at LOS C or higher (See Appendix E for details). However, roadway expansion projects and new roadways could have the unintended adverse effect of inducing traffic and increasing VMT.

Caltrans's Transportation Concept Reports (TCRs) establish the "concept" or desired LOS for specific corridor segments and identify long-range improvements necessary to bring the existing facility up to the design concept to adequately serve 20-year traffic forecasts. In some cases (including SR 49 and SR 104), the necessary improvements to achieve LOS standards with implementation of the General Plan would require improvements beyond the existing Caltrans TCR plans. Furthermore, although the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) identifies numerous improvements to state highways—including intersection improvements, passing lanes, and an Ione bypass—that would improve LOS, funding has not been identified to demonstrate with certainty that these improvements will be built before significant traffic impacts occur. Improvements to state highways would require a mix of State funding (including State Highway Operations and Protection Program, which provides funding for capital improvements relative to the maintenance, safety, and rehabilitation of state highways and bridges, and Minor construction program funding) and local funding, with the Amador County Traffic Mitigation Fee Nexus Plan as the primary local source of funding. Specific funding mechanisms and contributions for the remainder of the improvements identified in Mitigation Measure 4.14-1c have not been identified in the RTP.

The County and Caltrans may coordinate and implement improvements in accordance with the Transportation Route Concept for each facility that may reduce impacts at each of these facilities to a less-than-significant level. The County cannot assure the timely funding and implementation of improvements to State highways. Furthermore, the timing of many of these improvements is uncertain, and funding sources for these improvements have not been identified with certainty. Because of these uncertainties related to the timing and availability of funding for state highway improvements, as well as the fact that implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.14-1c would still not achieve acceptable LOS at several locations, this impact would be significant and unavoidable. No other feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact to less-than-significant levels.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

# 4.11.2 INCREASE IN TRAFFIC LEVELS ON LOCAL ROADWAYS RESULTING IN UNACCEPTABLE LOS. (IMPACT 4.14-2)

Development and land use changes consistent with the General Plan would result in increased traffic levels that could produce unacceptable LOS conditions on portions of Ridge Road, Buena Vista Road, Camanche Parkway, Camanche Road, Jackson Valley Road, and New York Ranch Road. This impact would be significant.

#### 4.11.2.1 Mitigation

#### Implement Mitigation Measures 4.14-1a and 4.14-b.

#### Mitigation Measure 4.14-2: Implement Local Roadway Improvements

- a. The County will consult with ACTC to implement roadway improvements as required to meet the County's LOS standard (LOS C outside cities and developed communities, and LOS D within cities and developed communities). Typical improvements to be implemented may include (but are not limited to):
- b. Shoulder widening, lane widening, addition of left turn lanes or passing lane, and other intersection improvements to improve traffic carrying capacity;
- c. Addition of left-turn lanes and other intersection improvements to improve intersections and major access points; and
- d. Widening roadways from two lanes to four lanes.

#### 4.11.2.2 Finding

The Board finds that the provisions of Mitigation Measures 4.14-1a, 4.14-1b, and 4.14-2 have been required in, or incorporated into, the General Plan. Funding has not been identified to demonstrate with certainty that these improvements will be built before General Plan growth causes unacceptable LOS. The Regional Traffic Mitigation Fee Program is the primary local source of funding, both for improvements to local roads, and for local contributions to improvements on State facilities. Specific funding mechanisms and contributions for the improvements identified in Mitigation Measure 4.14-2 have not been identified. Mitigation Measures 4.14-1a and 4.14-1b would generate funding for improvements based on the "fair share" of the cost from each project that would proceed under the General Plan. However, the table of identified unfunded road improvement projects from the County's CIP contained in the Technical Appendices of the 2004 RTP indicates that more than \$96 million in local road improvements had no foreseeable funding source at that time (ACTC 2004:VII-2). Given the lack of funding for improvements that are already needed under baseline conditions, and uncertainty related to the timing of future projects, funding might not be in place and all improvements might not be feasible prior to increases in traffic that would result in inadequate LOS on the facilities identified in this impact discussion. Because of these uncertainties related to the timing and availability of funding for improvements, this impact would be significant and unavoidable. As discussed above, roadway expansion projects and new roadways could have the unintended adverse effect of inducing traffic and increasing VMT. No other feasible mitigation measures are available to reduce this impact to less than significant levels.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

# 5 Cumulative Impacts<sup>4</sup>

### 5.1 Impact 6-1 Cumulative Aesthetic Impacts

The General Plan would result in significant impacts related to scenic vistas (Impact 4.1-1), scenic highways (Impact 4.1-2), degradation of existing visual character (Impact 4.1-3), and new sources of light and glare (Impact 4.1-4). Although Mitigation Measures 4.1-1, 4.1-2, and 4.1-4 would help reduce these impacts, as explained in Section 4.1 there are no feasible mitigation measures to reduce these impacts to a less-than-significant level.

Land use changes that would occur in the planning area with implementation of the General Plan would create significant cumulative impacts on scenic vistas, visual character, and light and glare and skyglow effects. Although impacts related to scenic highways (SR 88) are significant with implementation of the General Plan, in the regional context, because projected growth in the incorporated cities would not affect conditions along the portion of SR 88 that is designated as a scenic highway, there would be no significant cumulative effects related to scenic highways.

#### 5.1.1 FINDING

Despite mitigation measures identified in the EIR that would reduce impacts related to scenic vistas, visual character, and increased light and glare and skyglow effects, these impacts would occur in the context of broader regional growth and land use change, and therefore result in cumulatively considerable contributions to significant cumulative impacts. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce these impacts to a less-than-cumulatively considerable level. These impacts would remain cumulatively considerable and unavoidable even after mitigation.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

# 5.2 Impact 6-2 Cumulative Agricultural and Forest Resources Impacts

Because only a tiny fraction of the more than 93,000 acres of land under Williamson Act contracts could potentially be developed for residential use under the General Plan, the impact on lands under Williamson Act contracts (Impact 4.2-2) is less than significant and there would be no significant cumulative effects on these lands. All General Plan land use designations, except industrial, are compatible with existing forestland and timberland zoning districts and the General Plan does not allow industrial land use in any new forest or timberland areas; therefore, impacts related to conflicts with forestland and Timberland Zoning (Impact 4.2-4) are less than significant and would not contribute to significant cumulative effects.

Because agricultural and forest resources in the planning area represent the largest share of these resources within the County as a whole, the significant impacts resulting from the implementation of the General Plan including Farmland conversion (Impact 4.2-1), conflict with existing agricultural uses (Impact 4.2-3), and conversion of forestland to non-forest uses (Impact 4.2-5) represent significant

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> EIR Chapter 6 provides further factual support for the cumulative impact findings.

cumulative impacts because regional growth would add to these impacts; the General Plan's contribution to these impacts would be cumulatively considerable.

Through mitigation measures, the County will seek to reduce impacts related to conversion of Farmland), including evaluation of projects to use site-planning techniques to avoid or reduce encroachment on Farmland and through enforcement of the County's Agricultural Lands and Operations Ordinance. The County will also reduce the cumulative loss of Farmland by requiring that one acre of Farmland be protected through conservation easements for each acre of Farmland that is permanently removed from agricultural use. However, no new Farmland would be created and the productivity of existing Farmland would not be improved though these measures. Mitigation measures would also reduce conversion of forestland to non-forest uses.

#### 5.2.1 FINDING

The purpose of the General Plan is to accommodate long-range physical development of the community. There is no additional feasible mitigation other than the mitigation measures referenced in the EIR for impacts related to conversion of Farmland and forestland to other uses, and conflicts with existing agricultural uses. Given the growth in population and resulting development from implementation of the General Plan, combined with growth and development in the incorporated cities, and the rural nature of the regional setting, impacts related to conversion of Farmland and forestland to other uses from implementing projects under the General Plan, and on conflicts with agricultural uses, would result in cumulatively considerable contributions to significant cumulative impacts. These impacts would remain cumulatively considerable and unavoidable even after mitigation No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce impacts on Farmland conversion, conflicts with existing agricultural uses, and conversion of forestland to non-forest uses to less-than-cumulatively considerable levels.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

## 5.3 Impact 6-3 Cumulative Air Quality Impacts

Construction activities associated with General Plan implementation could result in significant criteria air pollutant and precursor emissions (Impact 4.3-1). Although the County will implement several mitigation measures to reduce this impact (Mitigation Measures 4.3-1a and 4.3-1b) these measures would not reduce the impact to a less-than-significant level. However, construction related emissions are temporary and based on the projected growth rate in the County, the amount of development occurring simultaneously is not anticipated to result in a considerable cumulative impact. Additionally, during site grading and rock blasting activities related to construction under the General Plan, serpentine soils could be disturbed potentially exposing sensitive receptors (e.g., schools) to naturally occurring asbestos (NOA) (Impact 4.3-5); however, the County would implement Mitigation Measure 4.3-5, which would reduce the impact to less than significant. Because the exposure would be localized and short-term, construction activities would not result in a significant cumulative effect.

Implementation of the General Plan is not anticipated to generate significant long-term CO emissions (Impact 4.3-3) from local mobile sources and long-term project operations, because they do not significantly differ from the County's CO emissions average; therefore, this impact (CO emissions) is not a significant cumulative effect. The County would also implement Mitigation Measure 4.3-6 that requires projects to undergo environmental review and to mitigate for odor impacts (Impact 4.3-6), resulting in a

less than significant impact. Odor impacts are inherently localized and site-specific, and therefore, would not contribute to a significant cumulative effect.

Increases in operational emissions associated with new development under the General Plan would emit additional criteria air pollutants and precursors (ROG, NOX,  $PM_{10}$ , and  $PM_{2.5}$ ) (Impact 4.3-2). Although Mitigation Measures 4.3-2a and 4.3-2b would reduce these impacts, there would still be significant long-term impacts on the region's emission profile. There is no additional feasible mitigation. The General Plan's operational emissions would contribute to a significant cumulative effect, and are cumulatively considerable.

Exposure to toxic air contaminants (TACs) (Impact 4.3-4), associated with the use of heavy-duty construction equipment for projects implemented under the General Plan would not result in significant impacts to sensitive receptors (e.g., schools) because they are typically isolated to a single area (e.g., project site) and for a short period of time. Therefore, construction activity TACs would not result in a significant cumulative impact. However, TACs associated with operations of new development (stationary sources) could result in significant impacts to sensitive receptors. Although ARB's Air Quality and Land Use Handbook establishes siting distances from sensitive receptors, ARB also acknowledges that local agencies need to balance these "buffer zones" with other considerations, such as transportation needs. Implementation of the General Plan may result in operation of new land uses in areas that could expose sensitive receptors to existing TAC sources. Increased exposure to TACs under the General Plan emissions would contribute to a significant cumulative effect, and is a cumulatively considerable impact. Although Mitigation Measures 4.3-2a, 4.3-2b and 4.3-4a would reduce these impacts, they would still be significant. There is no additional feasible mitigation.

#### 5.3.1 FINDING

In the regional context, and despite mitigation measures identified in the EIR that would reduce impacts related to long-term operational emissions and exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs, these impacts are cumulatively considerable contributions to significant cumulative air quality impacts. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce these impacts to a less-than-cumulatively considerable level. These impacts would remain cumulatively considerable and unavoidable even after mitigation.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 5.4 Impact 6-4 Cumulative Biological Resources Impacts

The geographic scope for cumulative biological impacts includes the entire County, as well as other nearby related habitat areas in eastern Sacramento and San Joaquin Counties and northwestern Calaveras County. Despite mitigation measures identified in the EIR that would reduce impacts to biological resources, the General Plan would have significant and unavoidable effects and significant cumulative effects on special-status species (Impact 4.4-1) resulting from land uses that would be allowed under the Plan. These new land uses could potentially reduce habitat and result in a loss of occurrences of species that are already vulnerable or imperiled statewide. Additionally, impacts to Ione chaparral (Impact 4.4-3) would remain significant after mitigation and result in significant cumulative effects under the General Plan.

Significant impacts related to riparian habitat (Impact 4.4-2), oak woodlands (Impact 4.4-4), and wetlands (Impact 4.4-5) would be less than significant after mitigation under the General Plan. However, impacts

to riparian habitat, oak woodlands, and wetlands from implementation of the General Plan in the regional context would result in significant cumulative impacts. Although Mitigation Measures 4.4-1a, 4.4-1b, 4.4-2, 4.4-3, 4.4-4a, 4.4-4b, and 4.4-5 would reduce these impacts, the incremental contribution from new development under the General Plan is a cumulatively considerable contribution to significant cumulative impacts with regard to riparian habitat, oak woodlands, and wetlands.

#### 5.4.1 FINDING

Despite mitigation measures identified in the EIR to reduce impacts related to special status species, Ione chaparral, riparian habitat, oak woodlands, and wetlands, implementation of the General Plan would result in cumulatively considerable contributions to significant cumulative impacts on these resources. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce these impacts to a less-than-cumulatively considerable level. These impacts would remain cumulatively considerable and unavoidable even after mitigation.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 5.5 Impact 6-5 Cumulative Cultural Resources Impacts

The scope for cumulative impacts to cultural resources includes the entire County, where a similar environment and similar historic and prehistoric occupation patterns yield similar resources. Cumulative gains in population, households, and jobs would require a commensurate increase in infrastructure, capital facilities, services, housing, and commercial uses in the planning area and the incorporated cities. Each of these increases carries with it a corresponding increase in the magnitude of ground disturbance and the construction of new buildings and structures and other site development.

The General Plan would have significant effects related to the destruction of or damage to known cultural resources (Impact 4.5-1). The General Plan's contribution to significant cumulative impacts on known cultural resources would also be cumulatively considerable. Mitigation Measures 4.5-1a and 4.5-1b would reduce this impact to less than significant and less than cumulatively considerable levels.

The General Plan's impacts on cultural resources related to as-yet-unknown cultural resources (Impact 4.5-2) and disturbance of human remains (Impact 4.5-3) are significant, but would be reduced to a less-than-significant level with implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.5-1a, 4.5-1b, and 4.5-2. Although the cumulative impact on cultural resources and human remains from regional development would also be significant, these same mitigation measures would also reduce the General Plan's contribution to cumulative impacts on cultural resources to less than cumulatively considerable.

#### 5.5.1 FINDING

For the reasons discussed above, implementing the General Plan, with applicable mitigation measures, would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact on cultural resources.

# 5.6 Impact 6-6 Cumulative Geology, Soils, Minerals, and Paleontological Resources Impacts

Geology and soil hazards, including seismic ground shaking (Impact 4.6-1), seismic ground failure (Impact 4.6-2), landslides or avalanche (Impact 4.6-3), soil erosion (Impact 4.6-4), unstable soils (Impact 4.6-5), expansive soils (Impact 4.6-6), and soils with poor septic suitability (Impact 4.6-7) are related to conditions and circumstances at specific, individual sites. Although cumulative development in the County and its incorporated cities may include numerous projects with geologic and soil impacts, these impacts would affect each individual project, rather than resulting in an additive significant cumulative effect. Therefore, development under the General Plan would not result in a significant cumulative impact related to geology and soils.

The planning area has substantial mineral resources, including unique resources such as the Ione Formation. Development under the General Plan could result in a significant impact on known mineral resources (Impact 4.6-8) and create a significant cumulative impact because regional construction of new residential dwellings or non-residential uses in areas near existing or potential sources of mineral resources could affect their availability. However, Mitigation Measures 4.6-8a and 4.6-8b would require the County to regulate land uses in MRZ-2 areas (mineral resource zones) to ensure compatibility with mineral extraction, and would also evaluate development proposals to substantially reduce or avoid loss of mineral extraction potential, including locally important minerals. These measures would reduce the General Plan's impact to less than significant and render it less than cumulatively considerable postmitigation.

Regional growth could add to the General Plan's significant impacts on unknown and potentially unique paleontological resources (Impact 4.6-9). Implementation of the General Plan would result in construction and other earthmoving activities that could disturb previously unknown paleontological resources in the County. However, implementation of Mitigation Measure 4.6-9 would reduce the General Plan's impact to less than significant and would render the General Plan's contribution to a significant cumulative impact to less than cumulatively considerable post-mitigation. Because implementation of the General Plan would not change existing land uses or increase risks or exposure to hazards adjacent to water bodies large enough to be subject to seiche (lakes and reservoirs including Camanche Reservoir, Pardee Reservoir, Lake Amador, etc.), this Impact (4.6-10) is less than significant and also less than cumulatively considerable.

#### 5.6.1 FINDING

For the reasons discussed above, implementing the General Plan, with applicable mitigation measures, would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact on geological, soil, mineral, and paleontological resources.

### 5.7 Impact 6-7 Cumulative Greenhouse Gas Emissions Impacts

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions impacts are inherently cumulative (Impacts 4.7-1 and 4.7-2), so the General Plan's significant GHG impacts are also cumulatively considerable contributions to significant cumulative GHG impacts. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.7-1a and 4.7-1b (Develop and Implement a Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan and Implement Interim Project-Specific Greenhouse Gas Mitigation Measures) would not render the General Plan's contributions to cumulative GHG impacts less than significant or less than cumulatively considerable.

#### 5.7.1 FINDING

Despite inclusion of mitigation measures identified in the EIR to reduce impacts related to GHG emissions, implementation of the General Plan would result in cumulatively considerable contributions to significant cumulative impacts. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce these impacts to a less-than-cumulatively considerable level. These impacts would remain cumulatively considerable and unavoidable even after mitigation.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

# 5.8 Impact 6-8 Cumulative Hazards and Hazardous Materials Impacts

The cumulative context for hazards and hazardous materials would be the County and its incorporated cities, where similar terrain and transportation systems present similar hazards.

Regional growth and development in the County would increase the use, transport, and disposal of hazardous materials (Impact 4.8-1). However, as with the County, other regional jurisdictions are required to follow federal, state and local hazardous materials regulations that would ensure that this incremental impact and the cumulative impact would be less than significant.

Regional growth and development would result in increased traffic congestion and additional residents requiring evacuation in case of an emergency, resulting in significant incremental and cumulative impacts regarding interference with adopted emergency plans (Impact 4.8-2). Population growth would also increase the potential for people to be exposed to hazards related to abandoned or unused mines (Impact 4.8-3) and creating hazards through location of development on sites on the Cortese List (Impact 4.8-4), resulting in cumulatively significant impacts. However, Mitigation Measures 4.8-2a (Implement Program P-12, Emergency Response), 4.8-2b (Implement Program D-10, Evacuation Planning and Routes), 4.8-3a (Implement Program D-9, Hazardous Materials), 4.8-3b (Implement Program D-8, Soils and Geotechnical Evaluation), and 4.8-4 (Implement Program P-14, Hazardous Materials Tracking), would reduce these impacts under the General Plan to less than significant. These mitigation measures would also render the General Plan's contribution to the significant cumulative impacts to less than cumulatively considerable post-mitigation.

Implementation of the General Plan would increase the population within 2 miles of a public or public use airport (Impact 4.8-5) (Westover Field Airport); however, General Plan policies LU-13.1 and LU-13.2 would ensure projects implementing the General Plan would be consistent with the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP), resulting in a less-than-significant impact. Regional growth in the incorporated cities of Sutter Creek and Jackson would also increase the population within 2 miles of Westover Field Airport. However, as with the General Plan, compliance with the ALUCP would result in a less-than-significant cumulative effect. Additionally, growth in the County would not increase hazards related to private airstrips (Impact 4.8-6) because land use designations and minimum lot sizes apply within proximity to the private airstrips. With no substantial increase in the concentration of people in areas subject to elevated crash hazards, the private airstrips impact is both less than significant and less than cumulatively considerable.

Regional growth in Amador County would place an increasing number of residents and structures in wildfire hazard zones (Impact 4.8-7). This impact would be a significant and cumulatively considerable

impact, and the General Plan's incremental contribution would be cumulatively considerable. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.8-7a and 4.8-7b would reduce the General Plan's contribution to this impact, but the impact would remain significant and the incremental contribution cumulatively considerable.

#### 5.8.1 FINDING

For the reasons discussed above, implementing the General Plan, with applicable mitigation measures, would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact on hazards and hazardous materials, other than wildfire hazards. Despite mitigation measures identified in the EIR that would reduce impacts related to wildfire hazards, implementation of the General Plan would result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact with regard to exposure of structures to urban and wildland fire. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-cumulatively considerable level. This impact would remain cumulatively considerable and unavoidable even after mitigation.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 5.9 Impact 6-9 Cumulative Hydrology and Water Quality Impacts

Development that would occur under to the General Plan and growth in the County's cities would combine to create significant cumulative impacts related to water quality and erosion (Impacts 4.9-1 through 4.9-3). Mitigation Measures 4.9-1a, 4.9-1b, 4.9-1c, 4.9-2, and 4.9-3 would reduce the General Plan's direct water quality impacts to less-than-significant levels, and would also reduce the General Plan's contributions to these cumulative water quality impacts to less than cumulatively significant. See Section 4.9 for a more detailed explanation.

Impacts from regional development on groundwater recharge and supplies (Impact 4.9-4) would be significant, and the General Plan's cumulative contribution of this impact would be cumulatively significant. Although Mitigation Measures 4.9-4a, 4.9-4b, and 4-9.4c would reduce the General Plan's contribution to this significant cumulative impact, the General Plan's incremental contribution would remain significant and cumulatively considerable.

Flood hazards could increase due to increases in impermeable surfaces and alterations to stormwater drainage (Impacts 4.9-5) caused by regional growth and development. These impacts would be cumulatively significant, and the General Plan's regional contribution would be cumulatively considerable. Mitigation measures that would be applied to the General Plan (4.9-5a, 4.9-5b, and 4.9-5c) would reduce these impacts and render the General Plan's contribution to this impact less than significant and less than cumulatively considerable through minimizing exposure of people and structures to flood hazards, prohibiting development in floodways, and managing stormwater to avoid increases in severity for downstream flooding.

Portions of Amador County are subject to inundation in the unlikely event of the failure of dams on the Mokelumne River, North Fork Mokelumne River, Bear River, and Jackson Creek (Impact 4.9-6). However, because these dams (Pardee, Salt Springs, Lower Bear River, and Jackson Creek dams) were constructed and are maintained in a manner consistent with California Water Code Division 3, which has regulatory jurisdiction over these dams and contains specific requirements for maintenance and operations, emergency work, investigations and studies, repairs, alterations, and inspections, risks of

inundation are less than significant and less than cumulatively considerable. Although growth allowed under the General Plan and in the cities could potentially place additional people and property as risk from dam or levee failure, there is no evidence to suggest that dam failure is likely, and implementation of the General Plan would do nothing to increase the risk of dam failure.

#### 5.9.1 FINDING

For the reasons discussed above, implementing the General Plan, with applicable mitigation measures, would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact on hydrology and water quality, other than groundwater recharge and supplies. Despite mitigation measures in the General Plan EIR that would reduce impacts related to groundwater recharge and supplies, implementation of the General Plan would result in cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-cumulatively considerable level. This impact would remain cumulatively considerable and unavoidable even after mitigation.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 5.10 Impact 6-10 Cumulative Land Use and Planning Impacts

Development that would occur under the General Plan and the plans of surrounding communities would not result in significant cumulative impacts related to land use. These plans establish a framework for the orderly development of the region, and would not result in land uses or circulation routes that would physically divide existing communities, or conflict with existing plans, policies, or regulations. Therefore, implementation of the General Plan would not contribute to a significant cumulative land use impact.

#### 5.10.1 FINDING

For the reasons discussed above, implementation of the General Plan would not result in a cumulatively considerable incremental contribution to a significant cumulative impact related to division of existing communities or conflicts with other adopted land use plans.

### 5.11 Impact 6-11 Cumulative Noise Impacts

The General Plan would result in significant impacts related to temporary [construction] noise increases (Impact 4.11-1) and vibration (Impact 4.11-7); however, construction noise from individual projects would be localized and would not result in an additive cumulative effect. Therefore, the General Plan and regional growth would not result in a significant cumulative impact related to temporary construction noise or vibration.

Operational noise from regional growth would primarily occur from motor vehicle traffic (Impacts 4.11-2 and 4.11-3). Future land uses consistent with the General Plan would create new vehicle trips that would result in substantial increases in ambient noise levels near roadways in the unincorporated County, including ambient noise levels above noise standards. Regional growth adds vehicle trips to these roadways, resulting in a significant cumulative traffic noise impact. Therefore, implementation of the General Plan would result in a cumulatively considerable impact on traffic noise. Although Mitigation

Measure 4.11-2 would reduce the impact, traffic noise impacts resulting from implementation of the General Plan would remain significant and cumulatively considerable.

The General Plan would result in significant impacts related to exposure of sensitive receptors (e.g., schools) to railroad noise (Impact 4.11-4). In particular, growth associated with the Newman Ridge project could increase the number of daily trains by up to 3 trains per day, which could increase the area for sensitive receptor exposure to railroad noise. Although Mitigation Measures 4.11-2 and 4.11-4 would reduce the impact, this cumulative impact would be significant, and the General Plan's contribution would be considerable.

The General Plan would result in significant impacts related to exposure of sensitive receptors to stationary source noise levels (Impact 4.11-5); however, effects on sensitive receptors from individual projects would affect local areas, rather than resulting in an additive cumulative effect. Therefore, regional development would not result in a cumulative significant impact regarding noise exposure from stationary sources for sensitive receptors.

Similarly, impacts to new development from airport noise (Impact 4.11-6) or mining vibration (Impact 4.11-7) are localized impacts, so regional growth would not combine with General Plan growth to cause significant cumulative airport noise or mining vibration impacts.

#### 5.11.1 FINDING

For the reasons discussed above, implementing the General Plan, with applicable mitigation measures, would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact on noise, other than traffic and railroad noise. Despite mitigation measures identified in the EIR to reduce traffic and railroad noise impacts, implementation of the General Plan would result in cumulatively considerable contributions to these significant cumulative impacts. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce these impacts to a less-than-cumulatively considerable level. These impacts would remain cumulatively considerable and unavoidable even after mitigation.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

# 5.12 Impact 6-12 Cumulative Population and Housing Impacts

The General Plan and the plans of surrounding communities establish a framework for the orderly development of the region, and would not result in land uses or circulation routes that would require construction of replacement housing elsewhere (Impact 4.12-2). This cumulative impact would be less than significant.

Although these plans provide a mechanism for accommodating the growth forecast for the region and for individual jurisdictions, implementation of these plans would result in substantial population growth over baseline conditions (Impact 4.12-1), resulting in a significant cumulative impact to which the General Plan would make a cumulatively considerable contribution. No feasible mitigation is available that would render the General Plan's incremental contribution to population growth to less than significant or less than cumulatively considerable.

#### 5.12.1 FINDING

Implementation of the General Plan would result in cumulatively considerable contributions to a significant cumulative population growth impact. No feasible mitigation is available to reduce this impact to a less-than-cumulatively considerable level.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

### 5.13 Impact 6-13 Cumulative Public Services and Utilities Impacts

The focus on the cumulative impact analysis for public services and facilities is whether implementation of the General Plan, in combination with the impacts of city general plans and plans of other public agencies in Amador County, could create a significant cumulative impact due to the need for the construction of additional facilities to serve the population and businesses of Amador County.

Water supply and wastewater service providers serving the unincorporated areas of Amador County also serve incorporated cities. The Amador Water Agency (AWA) provides either raw or treated water to the County's cities, and the Sutter Creek wastewater treatment facility serves both incorporated and unincorporated areas. Although some water providers (the Central Amador Water Project [CAWP] and the Jackson Valley Irrigation District (JVID) and some wastewater systems (Pine Grove, Buckhorn, and several smaller systems) serve only the unincorporated area, cumulative impacts related to water supply, water conveyance, and wastewater service would be similar to project specific impacts described in the analysis in Chapter 4.13, "Public Services and Utilities" (Impacts 4.13-1 through 4.13-3). These cumulative impacts would be significant, and the General Plan's contribution to these impacts would be cumulatively considerable. Mitigation Measures 4.13-1a, 4.13-1b, 4.13-1c, and 4.13-1d would reduce the General Plan's contribution to cumulative water and wastewater impacts, but the impacts would remain significant and cumulatively considerable.

The analysis in Section 4.13, "Public Services and Utilities," demonstrates that Kiefer Landfill has ample capacity to accommodate solid waste generation (Impact 4.13-4) from city growth, as well as from growth and development under the General Plan. Therefore, there is no significant cumulative impact.

The geographic scope of cumulative public services impacts to fire protection and law enforcement services, public schools, and parks and recreational facilities is generally limited to the boundaries of the affected service provider. Future regional growth would result in increased demand for these services and facilities within these boundaries throughout the region. Regional growth could add to the General Plan's significant impacts on fire and law enforcement services (Impacts 4.13-5 and 4.13-6), creating significant cumulative impacts to which the General Plan's contributions would be cumulatively considerable. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 4.13-5a, 4.13-5b, 4.13-5c, and 4.13-5d would reduce these impacts to less than significant under the General Plan, and render its contribution less than significant and less than cumulatively considerable. New or expanded facilities will be subject to CEQA review and mitigation to reduce both project-specific and cumulatively considerable impacts. See Section 4.13 for further explanations.

Impacts resulting from implementation of the General Plan on schools and parks and recreation facilities (Impacts 4.13-7 and 4.13-8) are less than significant, and regional growth would not contribute to a significant cumulative effect because school districts and recreation providers must continue to evaluate the level of service desired and the funding sources available to meet increases in demand. These services

are ensured through concurrency requirements, assessment district requirements, and development impact fees. School enrollment trends have also been stable or declining and school facilities to accommodate regional growth could be accommodated at existing school sites. Because school districts and recreation providers are generally planning for projected regional growth, with expanded facilities funded through impact fees, implementation of the General Plan would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact. New or expanded facilities will be subject to CEQA review and mitigation to reduce project-specific impacts.

The General Plan's impact on stormwater drainage facilities (Impact 4.13-9) would be significant, and would contribute to a significant cumulative impact related to the need for new stormwater drainage facilities; however, implementing Mitigation Measures 4.13-9a and 4.13-9b would render the General Plan's contribution to this significant cumulative impact to less than significant and less than cumulatively considerable.

#### 5.13.1 FINDING

For the reasons discussed above, implementing the General Plan, with applicable mitigation measures, would not result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact on public services and utilities, other than water supply and wastewater. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce water supply and wastewater impacts to a less-than-cumulatively considerable level. These impacts would remain cumulatively considerable and unavoidable even after mitigation.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

## **5.14 Impact 6-14 Cumulative Transportation Impacts**

The traffic analysis included in this EIR addresses cumulative impacts to the regional transportation system (state highways and county roads). A regional traffic model was used to analyze impacts of the General Plan development, together with projected regional growth. The regional traffic model already assumes a level of growth for other nearby jurisdictions based on plans and population/employment projections. Impacts 4.14-1 and 4.14-2 are considered cumulative by nature because anticipated land use forecasts for other areas are included in the traffic model.

For example the increase in traffic levels on certain state highway and local roadway segments would result in unacceptable LOS and would be a significant cumulative impact (Impacts 4.14-1 and 4.14-2), to which the General Plan's contribution is cumulatively considerable. Mitigation Measures 4.14-1a through 4.14-1c for state highways and 4.14-2 for local roadways would reduce but would not render this impact less than significant or less than cumulatively considerable. See Section 4.14 for further explanations.

No other transportation impacts associated with the General Plan were found to be significant, and regional growth would not add to these impacts to create significant cumulative impacts. Impacts related to air traffic patterns and design hazards (Impacts 4.14-3 and 4.14-4) are localized, so growth in cities would not result in additive cumulative impacts. Conflicts by other jurisdictions with adopted policies, plans, or programs for alternative transportation (Impact 4.14-5) would not have an additive effect when combined with County actions under the General Plan, so there would be no significant cumulative impact.

#### 5.14.1 FINDING

Despite mitigation measures identified in the EIR that would reduce impacts related to impacts on state highways and local roadways, implementation of the General Plan would result in a cumulatively considerable contribution to a significant cumulative impact with regard to unacceptable LOS on state highways and local roadways. No additional feasible mitigation is available to reduce these impacts to a less-than-cumulatively-considerable level. These impacts would remain cumulatively considerable and unavoidable even after mitigation.

Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 (a)(3), the Board finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities for highly trained workers, make infeasible certain mitigation measures or project alternatives identified in the Final EIR.

# 6 Project Alternatives<sup>5</sup>

Public Resources Code § 21002 provides that "public agencies should not approve projects as proposed if there are feasible alternatives...which would substantially lessen the significant environmental effects of such projects." "Feasible" means "capable of being accomplished in a reasonable period of time taking into account economic, environmental, legal, social, and technological factors" (CEQA Guidelines § 15364). The concept of feasibility also encompasses whether a particular alternative promotes the project's underlying goals and objectives, and whether an alternative is impractical or undesirable from a policy standpoint. (See *City of Del Mar v. City of San Diego* (1982) 133 Cal.App.3d 410; *California Native Plant Society v. City of Santa Cruz* (2009) 177 Cal.App.4th 957.)

When CEQA findings are made after EIR certification, the lead agency decision-making body independently evaluates whether the alternatives are actually feasible, including whether an alternative is impractical or undesirable from a policy standpoint. (See California Native Plant Society v. City of Santa Cruz (2009) 177 Cal.App.4th 957.) In making this determination, the decision-making body considers information in the Draft EIR, additional information in the Final EIR and elsewhere in the administrative record, and policy factors. (See Guidelines Section 15091(a)(3).) Where the feasibility of alternatives evaluated in the EIR is dependent upon changes in existing laws, regulations or funding patterns, the decision-making body must consider the likelihood that such changes will occur within the time frame for implementation of the proposed project.

An EIR must only evaluate reasonable alternatives to a project that could feasibly attain most of the project objectives and evaluate the comparative merits of the alternatives (CEQA Guidelines § 15126.6(a)). The General Plan project objectives are listed in Section 1.3 of these Findings. In all cases, the consideration of alternatives is to be judged against a rule of reason. The lead agency is not required to choose the environmentally superior alternative identified in the EIR if the alternative is infeasible.

During the General Plan update process, there were a number of conceptual land use alternatives considered by County staff, decision makers, and the public. The County developed a series of diagrams, with accompanying analysis and narrative to facilitate a public discussion regarding the preferred alternative that should be used as the basis of developing the General Plan.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> EIR Chapter 5 provides further factual support for the alternatives findings.

The primary difference between General Plan and EIR alternatives has to do with their purpose. General Plan alternatives are designed to evaluate various development and conservation concepts for the purpose of exploring different policy directions and emphasis in the General Plan update process. General Plan alternatives provide the platform for a discussion of pros and cons of different conceptual approaches to managing land use change, resource conservation, transportation, local economy, and other key General Plan policy topics. EIR alternatives – those presented in this section – are developed specifically to reduce significant impacts attributable to implementing the General Plan.

Alternatives considered in the EIR are described below. Following the description of each alternative, the alternative's impacts are compared to those of the General Plan.

### 6.1 Alternative 1 – No Project/Existing General Plan

This alternative assumes that the General Plan would not be implemented but instead the County would build out as provided in the existing General Plan, as it has been amended in the time since adoption. As with the General Plan, this alternative assumes that the DOF-forecasted growth would occur. However, unlike the General Plan (where approximately half of the forecast growth would be accommodated in town centers and the Regional Service Center), growth in Alternative 1 would occur following historical growth patterns. The increase in commercial and industrial square footage would be similar to that provided for by the General Plan, although this alternative would not include 1,300 acres designated for Industrial use northwest of Ione in the General Plan. Although encompassing the same number of residential units when comparted to the General Plan, this alternative would involve more dispersed development.

#### 6.1.1 IMPACT ANALYSIS

#### 6.1.1.1 Aesthetics

Alternative 1 would accommodate a similar number of new residents to the General Plan, but in a scattered pattern across Residential Suburban (RS) and Agricultural Transition (AT) areas, with no focus on developing mixed-use centers at Martell, Pine Grove, Buckhorn, and River Pines. A similar amount of commercial and industrial development would occur, in existing Commercial (C) and Industrial (I) designated areas across the planning area. As with the General Plan, the development that would likely occur under Alternative 1 would be similar to and intermingled with existing development, and would significantly change scenic vistas, visual character, resources within a state scenic highway, and increase light and glare and skyglow effects. Aesthetics impacts would be similar under Alternative 1 compared to the General Plan. [Similar]

#### 6.1.1.2 Agricultural and Forest Resources

Alternative 1 would also result in significant impacts related to conversion of Farmland; however, it may have a greater impact on the cancellation of Williamson Act contracts because of more scattered development. Alternative 1 would exacerbate land use conflicts between agricultural and residential and commercial uses on Farmland of statewide, regional and local importance because a greater number of new residential units would be accommodated in AT and RS areas that are currently sparsely developed. Alternative 1 would have greater agricultural resources impacts than the General Plan.

Alternative 1 would not conflict with Forestland and Timberland zoning. Like the General Plan, Alternative 1 would potentially increase conflicts with Forestland uses, leading to the conversion of forestland to non-forest uses. Alternative 1 would likely have greater significant impacts than the General

Plan on conversion of forestland to non-forest uses due to more scattered development, but would not have new significant impacts related to forest resources. [Greater]

#### 6.1.1.3 Air Quality

Alternative 1 would include a similar number of new residential units and a similar amount of other development to the General Plan, and would result in similar significant construction emissions of criteria air pollutants. This alternative would have higher VMT than the General Plan because development would be more scattered and automobile emissions are a large component of operational air pollutant emissions; thus, operational emissions of criteria air pollutant effects would be greater than for the General Plan. Significant impacts related to emission of dust containing naturally occurring asbestos (NOA), and exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic air contaminants (TACs) and odors would be similar to the General Plan. As with the General Plan, impacts related to carbon monoxide (CO) emissions would be less than significant because of the similar amount and type of development to the General Plan. [Greater]

#### 6.1.1.4 Biological Resources

Alternative 1 would have a similar amount of new development as the General Plan, but new residential uses would be dispersed on larger lots potentially disturbing a larger area of habitat. Because of this difference, significant impacts related to habitat loss, population reduction, riparian habitat, Ione chaparral, oak woodlands, and wetlands would all be greater under Alternative 1 compared to the General Plan. [Greater]

#### 6.1.1.5 Cultural Resources

Alternative 1 would have a similar amount of new development as the General Plan, but new residential uses would be dispersed on larger lots disturbing a larger footprint and increasing the potential effects on all cultural resources. Because of this difference, significant and potentially significant cultural resource impacts would be greater under Alternative 1 compared to the General Plan. [Greater]

#### 6.1.1.6 Geology, Soils, Mineral Resources, and Paleontological Resources

Alternative 1 would have a similar amount of new development as the General Plan, resulting in similar exposure to seismic hazards, landslides, avalanches and seiche; however, new residential uses would be dispersed at a lower density, potentially reducing soil hazards because of greater design flexibility on individual sites. Although reduced, soil erosion would still be significant. Significant mineral and paleontological resources impacts would be greater than the General Plan because of the larger area which would be affected. [Greater]

#### 6.1.1.7 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Although there would be a similar amount of new development under Alternative 1, the development would be more scattered increasing VMT and thus GHG emissions compared to the General Plan; thus, the impact would be greater. Similar to the General Plan, this alternative would exceed the applicable GHG the significance threshold of 3.092.53 MT CO2e per service population, and conflict with SB 32 and AB 32's emission reduction target. When compared to the General Plan, the alternative would have a greater impact regarding conflicts with a GHG emission reduction plan, policy, or regulation because GHG emissions would be higher. [Greater]

#### 6.1.1.8 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Significant impacts related to interference with an adopted emergency-response plan, exposure to physical and/or chemical hazards related to mines, sites listed on the Cortese List, as well as a less-than-significant impacts related to hazards and hazardous materials including routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials, hazards related to proximity to private airstrips and public and public use airports, would be similar because of the comparable amount of new development as the General Plan. Although Alternative 1 would have a similar number of new residential units and amount of commercial and industrial development as the General Plan, the new residential units would be dispersed more widely throughout the County, especially in higher fire risk areas east of SR 49. Therefore, significant wildland fire hazard impacts would be greater under this Alternative compared to the General Plan. Because this alternative would have increased fire hazard impacts compared to the General Plan, hazards impacts would be greater under this alternative compared to the General Plan. [Greater]

#### 6.1.1.9 Hydrology and Water Quality

Alternative 1 would have similar significant impacts to water quality standards; waste discharge, or degradation of water quality; and exposure to flooding hazards, and a similar less-than-significant impact for levee or dam failure as the General Plan. This assumes that Alternative 1 would rely on the land use designations and policy direction from the existing General Plan and be in compliance with applicable federal and state regulations regarding water quality standards, and supply. Amador County Code includes regulations, provisions, and ordinances for floodplain management (including regulation of development within a floodplain), construction erosion control, enforcement, drainage performance standards, and wastewater location and performance standards.

Other significant hydrology and water quality impacts would be greater for Alternative 1 than for the General Plan. Development resulting from Alternative 1 would have increased runoff from impervious surfaces compared to the General Plan, and effects on groundwater recharge would also be greater because of the construction of more new private domestic wells than would occur with the General Plan. Construction activities associated with Alternative 1 would occur over larger areas than the General Plan and substantial construction-related alteration of drainages could result in soil erosion and stormwater discharges of suspended solids, increased turbidity, and potential mobilization of other pollutants from construction sites, as contaminated runoff to on-site and ultimately off-site drainage channels. [Greater]

#### 6.1.1.10 Land Use and Planning

Like the General Plan, Alternative 1 would not propose any land use or infrastructure changes that could divide an existing community. Because no change from the existing General Plan would occur in this alternative, there would be no conflict with other plans. Alternative 1 would not conflict with other plans, policies, or agency regulations, including the Amador Regional Transportation Plan, Amador LAFCO policies, and the Westover Field Airport Land Use Plan. [Similar]

#### 6.1.1.11 Noise

Alternative 1 would have similar significant effects compared to the General Plan from all sources of noise based on the same level of residential, non-residential and population growth as the General Plan. As with the General Plan, Alternative 1 would accommodate a variety of land uses, including residential, commercial, office, industrial, agricultural, open space and recreation, and institutional and public facilities (e.g., electrical substations, wastewater treatment facilities and filtered water treatment facilities, schools). The long-term operation of these uses could result in significant stationary source noise from sources such as mechanical equipment (e.g., pumps, generators, heating, ventilation, and cooling systems); landscape maintenance activities (e.g., lawn and garden equipment); office, commercial, and

industrial noise; agricultural activities; and other noise sources. Although development would be more scattered, Alternative 1 would have a comparable amount of development; thus, the noise impacts would be similar to the General Plan. [Similar]

#### 6.1.1.12 Population and Housing

Alternative 1 would have similar significant impacts resulting from a permanent increase in population growth to that of the General Plan. Alternative 1 would have the same projected population growth – total population growth would be 3,118 more than the 2010 population (22,123) and equal 25,241 by 2030. Alternative 1 would also result in a total of 13,364 residential units and 6,185,000 square feet of commercial and industrial uses by 2030. As with the General Plan, Alternative 1 would not propose new development or include direct physical changes that would result in removal or displacement of existing housing so this impact would also be less than significant. [Similar]

#### 6.1.1.13 Public Services and Utilities

Alternative 1 would have a similar amount of new development to the General Plan, although more of this new development would occur outside of areas which receive public water or wastewater services. Water and wastewater impacts would therefore be lesser than those of the General Plan, although these impacts would still be significant. Similar to the General Plan, impacts to fire protection and law enforcement services would be significant but would increase due to a more dispersed development pattern. Other public service and utilities impacts (including solid waste, school facilities, and parks) would be similar to the General Plan and therefore, also less than significant. [Similar]

#### 6.1.1.14 Transportation

Alternative 1 would result in significant LOS impacts on state highway facilities at 15 locations and on local roadways at 3 locations (see Table 5-3), which is less (for both highway facilities and local roadways) than the General Plan. Alternative 1 would have a similar amount of new development to the General Plan, therefore other transportation impacts, including air traffic patterns, design hazards, and non-motorized transportation and transit would be similar to those of the General Plan. [Lesser\*<sup>6</sup>]

#### 6.1.2 EVALUATION

Under the No Project/Existing General Plan Alternative, the County would continue to implement its existing (pre-update) General Plan adopted more than 20 years ago (1992), which would remain as the adopted long-range planning policy document for the County. As identified in the project description, the first objective for this project is to adopt a general plan that complies with current state law. Continuing development in the County under the existing General Plan (Alternative 1) would not meet this objective because it was mostly adopted and amended more than 20 years ago (between 1988 and 1991).

Adoption of this alternative would not provide the County a comprehensive update to goals and policies to help incorporate current planning, environmental, and regulatory trends and objectives. The updated General Plan better reflects current on-the-ground conditions than the existing General Plan. Alternative 1 also does not meet Objective 2 (focus development in existing communities) because development would be more scattered around the County.

Further, failure to adopt new economic strategies, such as those outlined in the Economic Development Element and the failure to update the County's land use designations make this alternative inconsistent

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Note: Asterisks (\*) indicate that lesser impacts would still be significant.

with objectives to support economic development. Without changes in the County's land use policies, the County would be unable to achieve basic project objectives such as protecting Amador County's unique character, managing and enhancing the County's natural resources, providing a multi-modal transportation network, and providing continued economic viability of agriculture.

The General Plan is focused on the community planning issues suggested by the public, Planning Commission, and Board during the extensive outreach that accompanied the General Plan update process. The General Plan addresses greenhouse gas emissions and climate change, where the existing General Plan does not. In many other ways, the existing General Plan does not address, or does not adequately address the full range of key social, economic, and environmental issues that will confront Amador County between now and 2030.

#### 6.1.3 FINDING

The Board finds that specific economic, financial, legal, social, technological or other considerations make Alternative 1 infeasible and rejects this alternative for the following reasons. First, Alternative 1 does not reduce any of the General Plan's significant impacts to less than significant levels. Second, as discussed above, Alternative 1 fails to meet many of the basic project objectives.

### 6.2 Alternative 2 – City- and Community-Center Growth

Alternative 2 would provide for future residential, commercial, and industrial growth focused within the Martell RSC, the Town Centers, and city spheres of influence (SOIs). This alternative assumes that development within unincorporated SOI areas will be required, as a condition of approval, to be consistent with city general plans. The expected number of residential units and commercial and industrial square footage would be similar to the General Plan and Alternative 1. The Martell RSC and the Town Centers at Buckhorn, Pine Grove, and River Pines would remain, and would be similar to the General Plan. The Camanche Village SPA would not be part of this alternative. Alternative 2 would introduce a new land use designation, Urban Reserve (UR), which is not present in the General Plan. The UR designation would be applied within the spheres of influence (SOIs) of Ione, Jackson, Plymouth and Sutter Creek, and approximately 375 residential units, would be provided for within these SOIs. At this time, Amador City's SOI is conterminous with its city limits. If this changes in the future, the UR designation would be applied within the revised SOI.

Alternative 2 would also revise policy language in several General Plan elements to be consistent with the above description.

#### 6.2.1 IMPACT ANALYSIS

#### 6.2.1.1 Aesthetics

Alternative 2 would result in similar impacts on alteration of scenic vistas, damage to scenic resources within a state scenic highway, degradation of visual character, and increase new light and glare and skyglow effects as the General Plan because it would include a similar number of new dwellings and amount of commercial and industrial development. Although a new Economic Development policy would necessitate the County identify minimum economically viable parcel sizes for future AG and GF land uses, this would not reduce the overall amount of development; the impacts would still be significant. [Similar]

#### 6.2.1.2 Agricultural and Forest Resources

Alternative 2 would reduce impacts related to conversion of Farmland and land use conflicts with existing agricultural uses through a combination of city- and community- centered growth and increased minimum parcel size requirements for economically-viable agricultural parcels; however, these impacts would still be significant. Impacts to Williamson Act contracts would be reduced and thus, similar to the General Plan, would not be significant.

Alternative 2 would include restrictions on the conversion of Farmland. The amount of future residential development which would occur in AG, AT, and RR areas would be approximately one-half of what would occur with the General Plan. This reduction would be partially accomplished through an increase in minimum lot sizes for AG (80 acres) AT (20 acres), and RR (10 acres) designation which would reduce potential for parcelization of viable agricultural land. Additionally, a new Economic Development policy would also necessitate the County identify minimum economically viable parcel sizes for both future AG and GF land use designations, reducing the impact to agricultural or forestland conversion. Also, Alternative 2 would direct the development of approximately 375 residential units to SOIs instead of the unincorporated area. Alternative 2 would likely have lesser, but still significant, impacts than the General Plan on conversion of forestland to non-forest uses because development would be focused on existing city centers and SOIs and the new Economic Development Element policy. Alternative 2 would also not conflict with forestland and Timberland zoning. Overall, impacts to agricultural and forest resources would be lesser under Alternative 2 compared to the General Plan, but because conflict to agricultural uses, and Farmland and forestland conversion would still occur, no significant impacts of the General Plan would be avoided. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.2.1.3 Air Quality

Alternative 2 would include a similar number of new residential units and a similar amount of other development to the General Plan, and would result in similar construction emissions of criteria air pollutants. This alternative would have lower VMT than the General Plan because development would be more focused around existing similar uses; thus, significant operational criteria air pollutant effects would be less than for the General Plan. Significant impacts related to emission of dust containing naturally occurring asbestos (NOA), and exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic air contaminants (TACs) and odors would be similar to the General Plan. As with the General Plan, impacts related to carbon monoxide (CO) emissions would be less than significant because of the similar amount and type of development to the General Plan. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.2.1.4 Biological Resources

Alternative 2 would have a similar amount of new development as the General Plan, but new residential uses would be concentrated in existing community areas and city spheres of influence. New development would potentially disturb a smaller area of habitat under this alternative. Because of this difference, impacts related to special status species habitat loss and population reduction, riparian habitat, Ione chaparral, oak woodlands, and wetlands would all be lesser under Alternative 2 compared to the General Plan, but still significant. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.2.1.5 Cultural Resources

Alternative 2 would have a similar amount of new development as the General Plan, but new residential uses would be concentrated in city spheres of influence. New development would disturb a smaller area under this alternative, but because current settlements tend to be co-located with earlier settlement locations, cultural resources are more prevalent in these areas. Overall, significant impacts related to cultural resources would generally be similar under Alternative 2 compared to the General Plan. [Similar]

#### 6.2.1.6 Geology, Soils, Mineral Resources, and Paleontological Resources

Alternative 2 would have a similar amount of new development as the General Plan, resulting in a similar exposure to seismic hazards, landslides, avalanches and seiche; however, new residential uses would be concentrated in and near existing communities potentially reducing hazards related to septic suitability because of increased use of public wastewater systems. Impacts related to unstable and expansive soils and erosion would be similar to those of the General Plan. Mineral and paleontological resources impacts, because of the smaller development footprint, would be less than the General Plan, but still significant. Although more development would take place along the mother lode in this alternative, areas of Ione Formation and paleontologically sensitive formations would be less affected compared to the General Plan. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.2.1.7 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Although a similar amount of new development would occur under Alternative 2, the development would be more focused around existing development compared to the General Plan, reducing VMT; thus, the impact on GHG emissions would be less than under the General Plan. Although GHG emissions would be reduced under this alternative, similar to the General Plan this alternative would exceed the applicable GHG the significance threshold of 3.092.53 MT CO2e per service population and conflict with SB 32 and AB 32's emission reduction target. When compared to the General Plan, the alternative would have a lesser impact regarding conflicts with a GHG emission reduction plan, policy, or regulation because GHG emissions would be lower. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.2.1.8 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

With a similar number of new residents compared to the General Plan, this Alternative would have similar less-than-significant impacts related to hazards and hazardous materials including routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials and proximity to private airstrips and public and public use airports. Significant impacts related to interference with an adopted emergency-response plan, exposure to physical and/or chemical hazards related to mines, and sites listed on the Cortese List would also be similar because of the comparable amount of new development. However, Alternative 2 would have the new residential units concentrated in and near existing communities, as well as a safety element policy that would restrict parcels to no less than 40 acres in high fire hazard zones without adequate evacuation plans and emergency response, resulting in a smaller area of "interface" with wildland areas. This would result in generally lower fire hazard. Therefore, wildland fire hazard impacts would be less under this alternative compared to the General Plan; however, these impacts would still be significant. Because this alternative would have reduced fire hazard impacts compared to the General Plan, hazards impacts would be less under this alternative compared to the General Plan. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.2.1.9 Hydrology and Water Quality

Alternative 2 would have similar significant impacts to water quality standards; waste discharge, or degradation to water quality; exposure to flooding hazards; and construction-related water quality impacts, and a similar less-than-significant impact for levee or dam failure as the General Plan. This assumes that Alternative 2 would be in compliance with applicable federal and state regulations regarding water quality standards, and supply, as well as the Amador County Code for floodplain management.

Alternative 2 has some potential to reduce impacts to hydrology and water quality because it would concentrate development in the Martell RSC, the Town Centers, and city spheres of influence (SOIs), and reduce by approximately one-half the amount of future residential development in AG, AT, and RR areas. The focus on development within existing developed areas would result in more new residential units and commercial and industrial facilities in areas that are already paved or covered with impermeable

materials. Alternative 2 would have lesser but still significant impacts related to downstream erosion and sedimentation, and interference with groundwater recharge. If development occurs through larger development projects, impacts would be further reduced by project-specific construction monitoring, water supply studies, and other mitigation measures. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.2.1.10 Land Use and Planning

Like the General Plan, Alternative 2 would not propose any land use or infrastructure changes that could divide an existing community. Because development under this alternative would either be similar to the General Plan or occur in accordance with city general plans, there would be no conflict with other plans. [Similar]

#### 6.2.1.11 Noise

As with the General Plan, Alternative 2 would have significant effects from all sources of noise based on the same level of residential, non-residential and population growth as the General Plan. Alternative 2 would accommodate a variety of land uses, including residential, commercial, office, industrial, agricultural, open space and recreation, and institutional and public facilities (e.g., electrical substations, wastewater treatment facilities and filtered water treatment facilities, schools). The long-term operation of these uses could result in significant levels of stationary source noise (e.g. mechanical equipment, landscape maintenance activities). However, development would be more focused around existing uses, population centers, and high-volume roadways, potentially exposing more sensitive receptors to long-term traffic noise, as well as temporary noise and vibration from construction, resulting in greater effects in higher density areas as compared to the General Plan. [Greater]

#### 6.2.1.12 Population and Housing

Alternative 2 would have similar significant impacts resulting from a permanent increase in population growth. Alternative 2 would have the same projected population growth as the General Plan – total population growth would be 3,118 more than the 2010 population (22,123) and equal 25,241 by 2030. Alternative 2 would also result in a total of 13,364 residential units and 6,185,000 square feet of commercial and industrial uses by 2030; however, this alternative would result in greater population growth to Martell RSC, the town centers, and into city spheres of influence (SOIs); and reduce by 50 percent residential development (and by extension population growth) in AG, AT, and RR areas. Alternative 2 would direct the development of approximately 375 residential units to SOIs instead of the unincorporated area. Similar to the General Plan, Alternative 2 would not propose new development or include direct physical changes that would result in removal or displacement of existing housing, so this impact would also be less than significant. [Similar]

#### 6.2.1.13 Public Services and Utilities

Alternative 2 would have a similar amount of new development to the General Plan, although a new policy in the Land Use Element would focus more of this new development in existing community areas which receive public water or wastewater services. Significant water and wastewater impacts would therefore be greater than those of the General Plan. However, a new Conservation Element policy would apply conservation measures (e.g. low flow plumbing fixtures) to reduce water use, helping to lower, but not eliminating, these significant impacts to water supply and utilities. Impacts on fire protection and law enforcement would be reduced because of more centralized development, but still significant. Impacts regarding solid waste, school facilities, and parks would be similar to those of the General Plan because of the similar growth expected under Alternative 2. [Similar]

#### 6.2.1.14 Transportation

Alternative 2 would result in significant LOS impacts on state highway facilities at 20 locations and on local roadways at 5 locations (see Table 5-3), which is less (for both state highway facilities and local roadways) than the General Plan. Additionally, VMT standards would be developed and applied to discretionary projects through a new Circulation Element policy, further reducing these impacts on the County's roadway system. Alternative 2 would have a similar amount of new development to the General Plan, therefore other transportation impacts, including air traffic patterns, design hazards, and non-motorized transportation and transit would be similar to those of the General Plan. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.2.2 EVALUATION

As mentioned earlier, Alternative 2 would result in a similar number of residential units and commercial and industrial square footage to the General Plan. Unlike the General Plan, it would exclude the Camanche Village SPA and introduce a new land use designation, Urban Reserve (UR), to be applied to the SOIs of the County's cities (Ione, Jackson, Plymouth, and Sutter Creek). Approximately 375 residential units would be provided within these SOIs (contingent on city general plan consistency) that may otherwise be located in the Regional Service Center at Martell and the Pine Grove, Buckhorn, and River Pines Town Centers.

Because some development would occur in the city SOIs, this alternative would reduce all impacts related to additional development, land coverage, demand for additional public services and utilities, and water supply. However, the alternative would not reduce any of the General Plan's significant impacts to less than significant levels. It also proposes more restrictive policies, as suggested by the Foothill Conservancy, than the General Plan, including restricting development in areas of wildfire risk, setting standards for preservation of agricultural lands and biological resource areas, using alternative circulation standards in addition to LOS standards, and setting measureable performance standards for reduced water use.

This alternative is undesirable from a policy standpoint because these restrictions would likely make some future development projects more difficult or economically infeasible, which may make it challenging for the County to accommodate the needs of future DOF-projected growth. For example, a new economic development policy would assess a fee on all building permits issued in high- or very-high hazard severity zones to fund full-time professional fires and emergency response services. While this may decrease exposure to risk of wildland fire hazards, as noted in the EIR, nearly the entire County is characterized as a high-or very high-fire hazard severity zone and requiring additional fees may make many projects, including housing and commercial development, economically infeasible. Also, a new Economic Development Element Policy would require a minimum parcel size for future agricultural and timber regions to be applied to future AG and GF land use designations. Under this policy, general plan amendments removing land from these designations would require that the amendment encourage growth contiguous to existing developed areas (including city SOIs) and not reduce agricultural viability to adjacent lands. This policy would reduce impacts related to conversion of agricultural or timberland to other uses within the County. However, as described earlier, agricultural and forest resources in the planning area represent the largest share of these resources within the County as a whole. Furthermore, while the County may actively seek to have new urban development within an incorporated city's SOI (Urban Reserve designated lands) annexed into the applicable city pursuant to a new Land Use Element policy, there is no guarantee that these areas will be annexed into the city. One purpose of the General Plan is to accommodate long-range physical development of the community and greater restrictions on development would make it difficult or infeasible for the County to adequately accommodate forecasted population growth.

This alternative is also undesirable from a policy standpoint because it conflicts with the following important General Plan goals and policies, including:

**Goal LU-1:** Attain a diverse and integrated mix of residential, commercial, agricultural, industrial, recreational, public, and open space land uses.

- ▶ Policy LU-1.2: Designate residential areas of varying densities to create the opportunity to provide affordable housing for all income levels. Consider affordable and senior housing needs in the siting and design of residential projects.
- ▶ **Policy E-4.2:** Promote a balance of commercial and industrial development to residential development which maintains the fiscal health of the county.

#### 6.2.3 FINDING

The Board finds that specific economic, financial, legal, social, technological or other considerations make Alternative 2 infeasible and rejects this alternative for the following reasons. First, Alternative 2 does not reduce any of the General Plan's significant impacts to less than significant levels. Second, as discussed above, Alternative 2 is undesirable from a policy standpoint because it conflict with several important General Plan goals and policies.

#### 6.3 Alternative 3 – Restricted Growth

This alternative would apply the same land use diagram as the General Plan, and was developed to evaluate the impacts of a lower growth alternative. Because Amador County has existing parcels which could accommodate the anticipated population growth between 2012 and 2030 without requiring discretionary action on the part of the County, changes to the land use map could not, in and of themselves, generate a lower-growth alternative. Because land use designation changes would not be sufficient to address this issue, this alternative would include an annual cap on the number of new residential building permits issued each year.

In Alternative 3, rather than the 1,685 new units which would be expected under the General Plan, a maximum of 50 building permits for new homes would be issued each year, resulting in a total of 750 new units countywide through 2030. The projected new commercial and industrial square footage was reduced by a similar percentage based on the reduced level of demand from new residents. This Alternative would not accommodate the unincorporated county's share of DOF-forecasted population growth for the County; as a result, a larger proportion of Amador County's growth would likely occur within the boundaries of one or more of the cities in this Alternative.

#### 6.3.1 IMPACT ANALYSIS

#### 6.3.1.1 Aesthetics

Alternative 3 would result in similar alteration of scenic vistas, scenic highways, and degradation of visual character as the General Plan. Although the overall number of new units and non-residential uses would be smaller under Alternative 3, they would develop under a similar pattern to existing conditions throughout the County. New light and glare and skyglow effects would be less than for the General Plan, because this alternative would include fewer new dwellings and a smaller amount of commercial and industrial development; however, although there would be less development, impacts would still be significant because it would create a new source of substantial light or glare. Because light, glare and

skyglow effects would be less, aesthetics impacts would be less under Alternative 3 than the General Plan. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.1.2 Agriculture and Forest Resources

Similar to the General Plan, Alternative 3 would not result in significant impacts in the cancellation of Williamson Act contracts, and in forestland and Timberland zoning. However, Alternative 3 would result in fewer impacts related to conversion of Farmland and land use conflicts with existing agricultural uses, and leading to the conversion of forestland to non-forest use, because it results in the development of fewer additional residential units and new commercial and industrial uses than the General Plan. Although the potential for Farmland and forestland conversion would be lesser under this alternative compared to the General Plan, agricultural and forest resources impacts would still be significant under Alternative 3. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.1.3 Air Quality

Alternative 3 would include a smaller number of new residential units and other development than the General Plan, and would result in fewer but still significant construction emissions of criteria air pollutants. Because this alternative would have lower VMT than the General Plan and mobile emissions are a large component of operational air pollutant emissions, operational criteria air pollutant effects would be less than the General Plan, but still significant. Impacts related to emission of dust containing naturally occurring asbestos (NOA) would be less than for the project, because there would be less development which could occur in NOA areas, and exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic air contaminants (TACs) and odors would also be less, but still significant. As with the General Plan, impacts related to carbon monoxide (CO) emissions would be less than significant because of the smaller amount and type of development to the General Plan. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.1.4 Biological Resources

Alternative 3 would have a smaller number of new residential units and lesser amount of new development compared to the General Plan. New development would potentially disturb a smaller potential area of habitat under this alternative. Because of this difference, significant impacts related to special status species habitat loss and population reduction, riparian habitat, Ione chaparral, oak woodlands, and wetlands would all be lesser under Alternative 3 compared to the General Plan, but still significant. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.1.5 Cultural Resources

Alternative 3 would have fewer new residential units and non-residential uses compared to the General Plan, resulting in a smaller development footprint and fewer potential effects on cultural resources. Because of this difference, all cultural resource impacts would be less under Alternative 3 compared to the General Plan, but still significant. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.1.6 Geology, Soils, Mineral Resources, and Paleontological Resources

Alternative 3 would have a smaller number of new residential units and reduced amount of new non-residential development compared to the General Plan, resulting in a smaller increase in exposure to seismic hazards, landslides, avalanches and seiche. Unstable and expansive soil, soil erosion, and septic suitability would be similar to the General Plan. Mineral and paleontological resources impacts would be less than with the General Plan because of the smaller development footprint, but still significant. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.1.7 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Under Alternative 3, there would be less development of residential and non-residential uses; therefore, the impact on GHG emissions would be less than under the General Plan. Although GHG emissions would be reduced under this alternative, similar to the General Plan this alternative would exceed the applicable GHG the significance threshold of 3.092.53 MT CO2e per service population and conflict with SB 32 and AB 32's emission reduction target. When compared to the General Plan, this alternative would have a lesser impact regarding conflicts with a GHG emission reduction plan, policy, or regulation because GHG emissions would be lower. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.1.8 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

Alternative 3 would have a smaller number of new residential units and lesser amount of commercial and industrial development compared to the General Plan, but the same land use diagram would be employed and would result in a similar significant impact regarding interference with an adopted emergency-response plan. Under this alternative, impacts related to exposure to physical and/or chemical hazards related to mines, sites listed on the Cortese List, and fire hazards would be reduced because of the smaller amount of new development, but would still be significant. With smaller amounts of development proposed, this alternative would also have less impact related to the already less-than-significant impacts of the General Plan for hazards and hazardous materials including routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials and hazards related to proximity to private airstrips and public and public use airports. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.1.9 Hydrology and Water Quality

Because it would include fewer new residential units and commercial and industrial development than the General Plan, Alternative 3 would have lesser but still significant construction-related water quality impacts; impacts to water quality standards; waste discharge, or degradation of water quality; and exposure to flooding hazards. This assumes that Alternative 3 would be in compliance with applicable federal and state regulations regarding water quality standards, and supply, as well as the Amador County Code for floodplain management. Also similar to the General Plan, this alternative would have a less-than-significant impact for levee or dam failure. Alternative 3 would reduce impacts related to downstream erosion and sedimentation, and interference with groundwater recharge because there would be less new development than would occur under the General Plan. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.1.10 Land Use and Planning

Alternative 3 would include the same land use diagram and the same or fewer infrastructure changes as would occur under the General Plan. The only difference between this alternative and the General Plan is a reduction in growth rate including a policy restricting residential building permits for new construction to 50 permits per year. Therefore, land use and planning impacts would be similar to the General Plan, including no conflict with other plans. [Similar]

#### 6.3.1.11 Noise and Vibration

Alternative 3 would have lesser but still significant impacts compared to the General Plan for temporary construction noise, long term generation of traffic noise, exposure of sensitive noise receptors, stationary source and airport noise, and construction groundborne vibration and noise based on the lower level of residential, non-residential and population growth compared to the General Plan. Alternative 3 would accommodate a variety of land uses, including residential, commercial, office, industrial, agricultural, open space and recreation, and institutional and public facilities (e.g., electrical substations, wastewater treatment facilities and filtered water treatment facilities, schools). The long-term operation of these uses

could result in significant levels of stationary source noise (e.g. mechanical equipment, landscape maintenance activities). Because there would be a lower level of development compared to the General Plan, traffic-related noise would be less, although still significant. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.1.12 Population and Housing

Alternative 3 would have lesser (but still significant) impacts resulting from a permanent increase in population growth. Alternative 3 would have a smaller increase in population growth – total population growth would be 1,388 more than the 2010 population (22,123) and equal 23,511 by 2030. Alternative 3 would result in a total of 12,429 residential units and 4,226,300 square feet of commercial and industrial uses by 2030. Alternative 3 would not propose new development or include direct physical changes that would result in removal or displacement of existing housing, so this impact would also be less than significant. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.1.13 Public Services and Utilities

Alternative 3 would have a lesser amount of new development to the General Plan, distributed similarly to the new development that would occur under the General Plan. Water and wastewater impacts would therefore be less than those of the General Plan, but still significant. Other public service and utilities impacts (including fire protection, law enforcement, solid waste, school facilities, and parks) would also be less than those of the General Plan because of the smaller amount of growth expected under Alternative 3. However, impacts to fire protection and law enforcement would still remain significant. [Lesser]

#### 6.3.1.14 Transportation

Alternative 3 would result in significant LOS impacts on state highway facilities at 17 locations and on local roadways at 6 locations (see Table 5-3), which is less (for both state highway facilities and local roadways) than the General Plan. Alternative 3 would implement the same land use plan as the General Plan, but would restrict the number of new building permits, resulting in less growth than the General Plan. Based on the lesser increase in new population and employment associated with non-residential uses on the same land use plan, this alternative would have lesser, but still significant, traffic impacts than the General Plan. With less new development, other transportation impacts, including air traffic patterns, design hazards, and non-motorized transportation and transit would be reduced compared to those of the General Plan. [Lesser\*]

#### 6.3.2 EVALUATION

As identified in Chapter 4 of the EIR ("Alternatives"), for purposes of the EIR, Alternative 3 is environmentally superior. This alternative would reduce all impacts related to additional development, land coverage, demand for additional public services and utilities, and water supply. To the extent that additional housing, service, and employment development would occur within cities, this alternative could increase public service, utilities, and potable water demand within cities; increase the extent of change in the visual environment related to more intense urban development; expose more sensitive receptors to urban noise; and increase traffic on city roadways. Also, this alternative would not reduce any of the significant impacts of the General Plan to less than significant levels.

Alternative 3 would not meet two basic project objectives:

Objective 3: Accommodate the most recent population growth, housing, and employment projections in an orderly manner. The County would not be able to accommodate the entire unincorporated county's share of DOF-forecasted population growth for the County; as a result, a larger proportion of Amador County's growth would likely occur within the boundaries of one or more of the cities in this alternative.

Objective 5 (Support provision of housing affordable to those who live or work in Amador County, including accommodating HCD's housing unit allocations for the County) because it would restrict growth and development of both residential and non-residential uses.

#### 6.3.3 FINDING

The Board finds that specific economic, financial, legal, social, technological or other considerations make Alternative 3 infeasible and rejects this alternative for the following reasons. First, Alternative 3 does not reduce any of the General Plan's significant impacts to less than significant levels, and many of the General Plan's significant impacts would likely be displaced to city boundaries. Second, as discussed above, Alternative 3 fails to meet the basic project objectives of accommodating projected growth and providing affordable housing.

# 7 Finding Regarding Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program

The Board finds that a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) has been prepared for the General Plan and has been adopted concurrently with these Findings (Public Resources Code, § 21081.6(a)(1)). Amador County will use the MMRP to track compliance with mitigation measures.

# 8 Statement of Overriding Considerations

Pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Section 15092, the Board finds that, in approving the General Plan, it has eliminated or substantially lessened all significant and potentially significant effects of the General Plan on the environment where feasible, as described in these Findings. Even with implementation of all feasible mitigation, however, the General Plan will result in significant and unavoidable impacts, both direct and cumulative, with the following resource categories: aesthetic resources, agricultural and forest resources, air quality, biological resources, greenhouse gas emissions, hazards and hazardous materials, hydrology and water quality, noise, population and housing, public services and utilities, and transportation.

The Board further finds that it has balanced the economic, legal, social, environmental, and other benefits, including regional or statewide environmental benefits, of the General Plan against the remaining unavoidable impacts in determining whether to approve the Plan and has determined that those benefits outweigh the unavoidable environmental impacts and that those impacts are acceptable. The Board makes this statement of overriding considerations in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15093, in support of approval of the General Plan.

The following analysis documents the reasons why, in the Board's judgment, the benefits of the General Plan as approved outweigh its unavoidable significant effects. Any one of the stated reasons below is sufficient to justify approval of the General Plan in spite of the unavoidable impacts. Thus, even if a court were to conclude that not every reason set forth in these Statements is supported by substantial evidence, the Board finds that any individual reason is separately sufficient. The conclusions about benefits are supported by the substantial evidence set forth in the EIR, the Findings set forth above, and in the documents contained in the administrative record.

# 8.1 The General Plan Reflects Current Trends, Changes in the Regulatory Environment, and Emerging Opportunities

The County initiated this comprehensive General Plan Update to achieve a number of important community objectives. The General Plan required revisions to better address the consensus vision of the community. Various updates were also necessary to address changes in the legislative, regulatory, and economic environment. The County wanted to draft a legally defensible General Plan and environmental analysis that provides clear and concise policy language to unambiguously guide decisions on projects, plans, and public investments between present and 2030. The existing General Plan has outdated policies that do not provide locally relevant guidance related to current state laws that relate to general plans or take into consideration emerging trends and opportunities, in addition the community's present-day goals. As identified in the project description, the first objective for this project is to adopt a general plan that complies with current state law. Continuing development in the County under the existing General Plan would not meet this objective because it was mostly adopted and amended more than 20 years ago (between 1988 and 1991).

# 8.2 <u>The General Plan Provides the Framework for Achieving the Community's Goals</u>

The General Plan provides the basis for Amador County's regulation of the overall amount, character, and location of urban development, as well as preservation and natural resource conservation, economic development, transportation, safety, public facilities and services, and housing. As the County's "constitution," the General Plan fulfills state legal requirements for long-range comprehensive planning and provides a framework for the County to exercise its land use entitlement authority, as provided under state law. The General Plan updates the County's existing General Plan. The General Plan is both comprehensive and internally consistent – it addresses a broad range of topics with policies that are mutually supportive.

The General Plan is intended to be implemented over the long-term. It identifies key locations within the County where there is capacity for growth using existing infrastructure, and identifies how the County will also protect, enhance, and maintain a high quality of life and the unique historical character of the community. Because the General Plan includes projections of future growth and development capacity, it serves as a tool for the County and other service providers to plan for services, facilities, infrastructure improvements, and environmental mitigation.

The General Plan is intended to be a decision making guide used on a daily basis. The County will rely on the General Plan when reviewing private development applications, public investments, and other important actions to ensure that they are consistent with General Plan goals. Actions taken by the Board should help to achieve General Plan objectives. The General Plan also provides a guide for other public or private agencies or organizations that do business in the County's Planning Area.

Beyond its regulatory function, the General Plan articulates Amador County's consensus vision for the future. Development of the General Plan was in part to promote a shared understanding among decision makers, County staff, other public agency staff, property owners, developers and builders, and the general public of the community's long-term goals. The General Plan addresses issues of great importance to the community, such as job creation, fiscal and economic sustainability, resource conservation, and the local quality of life.

The General Plan is meant to be a living document that is regularly reviewed and adjusted to remain consistent with the County's s long-term vision. The County will encourage projects that support General Plan goals, adhering to the framework presented in the General Plan to manage growth and development at a fiscally and environmentally supportable pace. Some variation from the policy language may be allowed, so long as such variations further General Plan goals. As conditions and needs change, the County may consider proposed amendments to the General Plan. Some of these will be policy changes, while others may be changes to land use designations.

# 8.3 <u>The General Plan Provides a Long-Range Guide for Growth and Conservation</u>

The General Plan provides the County with a guide for day-to-day decision making toward long-term prosperity and sustainability. Together, the General Plan Elements are a comprehensive statement of the goals, policies, standards, and implementation programs for managing growth and conservation within the County's Planning Area.

The General Plan is structured to achieve its goals by the year 2030. The planning process allows periodic updates to address any deviations from the General Plan's goals or political-economic conditions. The General Plan's goals, objectives, and policies are intended to maintain and enhance the character of the community, while allowing for economic growth and conservation of environmental resources. The updated policies are considered feasible and as such, take into account current land economic conditions and realistic growth assumptions. Population and employment growth forecasts were considered in the development of the 2030 General Plan, including updates to the land use diagram and allowable densities and development intensities. These updates were required in order to adequately provide for local population growth, economic development, and job expansion while supporting the community's goals to manage and enhance the County's natural resources such as mineral, timber, and open space, as well as preserving its unique historical characteristics and natural areas.

# 8.4 <u>The General Plan Helps Achieve</u> Community Objectives

The population is projected to grow and the County is responsible for accommodating its fair share through housing and jobs creation, and the provision of adequate services (e.g., utilities, parks, fire protection) in a safe manner. One of the County's responsibilities and objectives is to develop in an orderly manner to accommodate growth, housing, jobs, and to provide for adequate services for existing and future community members. It is also the County's duty to balance its responsibilities, goals, and objectives with the environmental impacts resulting from development by avoiding or reducing these impacts through mitigation measures to the extent feasible. However, it may not always be possible to reduce all impacts to a less than significant level, as not all mitigation measures are feasible in light of important project objectives, or County fiscal sustainability.

Amador County residents and businesses value a high quality rural lifestyle, historic resources, healthy natural environment, vibrant local economy, scenic resources and vistas, and services that meet people's needs. The primary benefit of the Amador County General Plan (General Plan) is that it allows the County to control, to the degree possible, its own destiny in achieving these objectives. It will provide the flexibility needed to accommodate growth and change while effectively managing the County's wealth of natural resources.

#### 8.4.1 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

One of the primary goals for the General Plan is to guide development and resource conservation in a way that supports the County's economic base. The General Plan is designed to provide orderly growth and offer residents a greater range of employment opportunities. While general plans are not precise tools for targeting and attracting businesses, the policy framework herein is critical in establishing the overall context for economic development and economic opportunity in the County during the coming decades.

The County's economic goal to continue the economic viability of the County's agricultural production will depend on development patterns that allow for conserving the County's land base necessary to conduct agricultural activities. Additional growth is anticipated and thoughtful community design and land use and transportation planning can reduce the impacts on Important Farmland and other natural resources, while balancing the needs of the growing community. The Economic Development Element of the General Plan addresses the appropriate balance the will allow the County to maintain agricultural economic viability, while expanding services, commercial and business development, and employment opportunities suited to the local workforce through careful coordination with related policies and programs from the other elements.

#### 8.4.1.1 Agricultural and Forest Resources

Agriculture is important to the history, character, culture, economy, and environment of Amador County. The County's primary agricultural policy is to maintain the economic viability of agricultural land uses. For this reason, economic issues related to agriculture are addressed in the Economic Development Element, which also includes the majority of goals and policies for agriculture in the General Plan, and a description of the county's agricultural areas and produce.

Timber harvesting is an important industry in Amador County. Amador County supports the continued viability of timber harvesting. Effective management and production of timber resources can also reduce the risk of catastrophic wildfire, especially in the eastern portion of the county. The Economic Development Element includes a goal (E-11) and policies describing conservation and protection of timber resources.

The General Plan project objectives support and enhance agricultural and forest resources. Project Objective 7 manages and enhances the County's natural resources including agricultural and timber resources. Project Objective 10 provides for the continued economic viability of the County's agricultural production and the conservation of the land base necessary to conduct agricultural activities.

#### 8.4.1.2 Job-Generating Uses

Project Objective 4 encourages development of higher-wage jobs and support business, especially locally-owned and unique businesses. Much of the County's commercial and retail activity takes place in the Martell Regional Service Center and the three rural Town Centers, located in Buckhorn, Pine Grove, and River Pines. The AEDC anticipates the fastest growing industry in the County will be personal services until approximately 2020, followed by public services and retail trade. The goal of the General Plan is to

enhance these communities, building upon existing infrastructure, transportation, and local businesses. The General Plan includes a mixing of land uses in these communities to support residential, commercial, public, and industrial uses (those that are compatible with residential and sensitive uses) that could provide new economic opportunities for both existing and new businesses, as well as jobs for local residents.

#### 8.4.1.3 Tourism

In addition to attracting and expanding commercial and industrial businesses, the County's economic development strategy includes components directed to the agricultural industry, with a particular focus on tourism, agri-tourism and agriculture-supporting businesses. Agri-tourism could include hospitality services, such as bed-and-breakfasts, farm stays, farm tours, winery tours, education, entertainment, and outfitter services. In addition to agricultural attractors, historic resources, scenic beauty, outdoor recreation opportunities, and tribal gaming offer continued opportunities to boost tourism. By attracting tourists, Amador County will also increase demand for service and retail industry jobs supporting these visitors.

#### 8.4.2 NATURAL AND HISTORIC ENHANCEMENT

Historic resources such as the County's gold-rush-era towns and buildings, cultural and artistic offerings, vineyards and agricultural lands, and other natural resource areas all offer valuable opportunities to enjoy the County's scenic beauty and outdoor activities. Given the importance and anticipated growth of tourism and visitor services within the County's economy, the County's economic development activities should include preservation and enhancement of resource areas attractive to visitors as a high priority.

The second project objective is to focus development of new residential, commercial and industrial uses in and near existing communities. The General Plan would focus new growth toward existing unincorporated communities (Martell, Pine Grove, Buckhorn, River Pines) which represent key centers in the County, each with unique future development objectives that respond to the priorities established by the community in its Vision Statement. The Town Centers and the Regional Service Center seek to restore and build anew the county's historic town environments, creating places where residents and visitors can walk and bike to services, stores, restaurants, parks and other public uses. Focusing growth in these areas that already exist and contribute to these effects will also help maintain the scenic features and night sky in other more rural sections of the County.

#### 8.4.3 REDUCING TRAFFIC

As identified in the General Plan EIR and the above Findings, development under the General Plan, and Alternatives 1, 2, and 3 would result in significant and unavoidable impacts regarding long-term operational and mobile-source emissions and GHG emissions. Project Objective 8 calls for a multi-modal circulation network that accommodates vehicles, pedestrians, cyclists, and public transportation. Implementation of the General Plan would reduce VMT per service population for the region compared to existing conditions. The General Plan's Land Use Element contains several policies that would promote high-density, mixed-use, and infill development. Policies LU-1.2 and 1.3 would help promote areas with higher density residential land uses that are connected via transit, bicycle, and pedestrian transportation, which would reduce the need for single-occupancy vehicle trips and vehicle miles traveled in the region. Policies LU-10.1 to 10.3 would promote mixed use Town Centers that site residents, jobs, and retail amenities in proximity of each other to reduce the need for motor vehicle travel and facilitate the use of transit, bicycle, and walking to reach daily necessities. Policies LU-11.1 and 11.2 further support these development patterns (i.e., mixed use, high density) in the Martell RSC. In addition, Policy LU-11.2

promotes low impact development and green building standards to reduce energy and water consumption, which would also indirectly reduce air quality emissions in the region.

To an extent for a mostly rural county, the General Plan can encourage shifts in travel to transit, bicycling, and walking. Land use and transportation policies that reduce VMT benefit not only pedestrians, cyclists, and transit users, but the community as a whole. Land and transportation policies that reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT) also reduce harmful air pollution, enhance mobility, and reduce commuting time. Communities that provide for efficient transportation choices can reduce household and business costs. Land-efficient development patterns reduce VMT and air pollution, but also reduce upfront and ongoing infrastructure costs (per unit). Many other benefits are available to communities that thoughtfully integrate land use, transportation, design, and infrastructure planning. The General Plan allows the County to comply with existing legislative requirements for non-vehicular transportation and optimizes local choices for practical alternatives to the single occupant vehicular trip.

#### 8.4.4 ACCOMMODATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND FAIR SHARE

The County is committed to a vision of a sustainable, rural community that increases housing choices for all current and future residents. The most immediate challenge to finding adequate housing is cost, although condition and suitability are also important factors. For this reason, the State and local governments have made housing affordability a focus of public policymaking. California Government Code Section 65584 requires each city and county plan to accommodate a fair share of the region's housing construction needs. As identified in the General Plan EIR, the population and jobs are forecasted to grow in Amador County. Without adequate construction of new housing, housing demand and cost would continue to grow. The County also cannot meet its economic development and housing needs without accommodating these additional residents and workers. Project Objective 5 is to provide affordable to those who live or work in Amador County, including HCD's housing unit allocations. Under the General Plan, the County could accommodate DOF-projected growth and its fair share of the region's housing construction need.

#### 8.4.5 Maintaining and Enhancing Services

Project Objective 9 is to maintain and enhance access to services, including health services, emergency services, quality child care and senior services, and education opportunities for children and adults. As identified in the General Plan EIR and the above Findings, existing facilities have the capacity to accommodate projected growth and development under the General Plan in terms of increased need for handling solid waste, public education, and parks and recreation opportunities.

# 8.5 <u>The General Plan Addresses ing</u>Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Land Use use planning decisions directly affect local air quality. Since transportation is a major source of criteria pollutants and toxic air contaminants, land use and transportation planning policies must be coordinated in order to protect public health and the environment. Additionally, operational GHG emissions would be primarily generated by energy and mobile sources associated with growth and development under the General Plan. Because of this, it is important to take advantage of co-benefits of land and transportation policies that reduce VMT and promote alternatives to automobile travel, which in turn reduces household and business transportation costs, harmful air pollution, and time spent commuting, and enhances mobility.

Development under the General Plan will focus on development in the County's commercial and retail activity centers (Region Service Center of Martell and the Town Centers of Buckhorn, Pine Grove, and River Pines), building upon existing infrastructure, transportation, and local businesses. These mixed-use communities will support residential, commercial, public, and industrial uses (those that are compatible with residential and sensitive uses) that could provide new economic opportunities for both existing and new businesses, as well as jobs for local residents, and will help reduce mobile-source emissions through reduced vehicle use. Additionally, the General Plan includes the development of a GHG emission reduction program. The GHG reduction programs will work toward reducing GHG emissions and create adaptation strategies to address the impacts of climate change on the County to maintain and enhance the quality of life in the community.

### 8.6 The General Plan Improving Improves Fiscal Sustainability

The County's fiscal sustainability will be enhanced through expanding the local revenue base, while managing up-front and ongoing costs associated with new and existing development. Thoughtful community design is required for efficient and cost-effective infrastructure and public service provision. Thoughtful community design can also reduce household and business costs related to energy, transportation, and other infrastructure. In general, municipal costs can be reduced with more compact, planned development. The County can help to free up discretionary income that can support expanded local retail activity through planning strategies that reduce travel and utility costs for households. The General Plan has provided a policy framework that will, through implementation of the General Plan, help to reduce household transportation costs and household and business utility costs.

County revenues come from a variety of sources. Property tax revenue increases as property values increase. Property values increase as the desirability of the community increases. Factors include good public safety, quality schools, proximity to retail and service businesses, low commute times, pedestrian amenities, proximity to "walk and ride" fixed rail transit stations, and other factors. Sales tax is also an important source of local revenue. Retail location decisions depend on local household composition, disposable income, access to labor and markets, and existing retail competition.

The ability of the County to attract additional retail activity will depend on attracting a concentration of additional households and associated household incomes. Population growth, including an increased daytime working population, will create opportunities for new retail and commercial services to serve expanding local needs, which will, in turn provide opportunities to increase County revenues.

This page intentionally left blank.